
 

 

Tommy Dunn 
Chairman, District Five 

 
Brett Sanders 

V. Chairman, District Four 

PO Box 8002, Anderson, South Carolina 29622-8002 | www.andersoncountysc.org 
 
 

John B. Wright, Jr. 
District One 

 
Glenn Davis 

District Two 

Ray Graham 
District Three 

 
Jimmy Davis 

District Six 

M. Cindy Wilson 
District Seven 

 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 

 
 
 

Rusty Burns 
County Administrator 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

Special Presentation Meeting 
Tuesday, November 1, 2022, at 6:00 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
2. RESOLUTIONS/PROCLAMATIONS: 
 
   a. 2022-061:  A Resolution honoring Michelle Ducworth and Twin Creeks Lavender Farm; and other matters 

related thereto.  
Hon. Cindy Wilson 

 
   b. 2022-063: A Resolution recognizing Flexon/USW on the company's recent expansion. 

All Council 
 

   c. 2022-064: A Resolution to accept PARD Grant award. 
Hon. Tommy Dunn 

 
   d. PROCLAMATION: A Proclamation designating November 2022 as Family Court Awareness Month in 

Anderson County. 
Hon. Tommy Dunn 

 
 

3. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

AGENDA 
ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 

REGULAR MEETING 
Tuesday, November 1, 2022, at 6:30 p.m. 

Historic Courthouse 
101 S. Main Street 

Anderson, South Carolina 
Chairman Tommy Dunn, Presiding 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE                                                          Hon. Glenn Davis 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, November 1, 2022 
 
Page 2 

 

   
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES                                            September 20, 2022, October 4, 2022                             
minutes not received October 18, 2022 

 
 
4. CITIZENS COMMENTS                                                                                                        Agenda Matters Only  
 
 
 
5. ORDINANCE THIRD READING:  
 
   a. 2022-042: An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and among 

Anderson County, South Carolina, Third Stage Capital US-Piedmont I, LLC and Latitude Applied 
Technologies, LLC with respect to certain economic development property in the County, whereby such 
property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the provision of certain special source 
credits; and other matters related thereto. [Project Hurricane] (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME 
LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
   b. 2022-043: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
Third Stage Capital US-Piedmont I, LLC and Latitude Applied Technologies, LLC; and other matters related 
thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 

 
   c. 2022-049: An Ordinance authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and 

between Anderson County, South Carolina and Hartwell Resort, LLC with respect to certain economic 
development property in the county, whereby such property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of taxes, 
including the provision of certain special source credits; and other matters related thereto. [Project Cove] 
(PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
    
    d. 2022-050: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park to include certain property of 
Hartwell Resort, LLC; and other matters related thereto. (PUBLIC HEARING THREE MINUTE TIME 
LIMIT) 

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes)   

 
    
 
 
6. ORDINANCE SECOND READING:  
 
    a. 2022-048: An Ordinance authorizing an infrastructure financing agreement on behalf of Tetramer Technologies 

LLC and Hoobastank Industries LLC, for a new project (Tetramer 2) to be located in an already existing jointly 
owned and operated industrial park in conjunction with Greenville County (Tetramet MCIP), and other matters 
related thereto. [Project Choco]. 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, November 1, 2022 
 
Page 3 

 

   
 

 
    b. 2022-051: An Ordinance to approve a lease agreement between Anderson County, South Carolina, and 

Equinox Mill Affordable, LP for a parcel of real property identified as Tax Map parcel 123-11-02-026 which is 
part of the former Equinox Mill site located at 200 Jackson Street, Anderson, South Carolina; and other matters 
related thereto. 

Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 
 

     
 
 

    c. 2022-052: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 
park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park. [SRPF/Greenville Park 25, 
LLC] 

Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 
     
 
    d. 2022-053: An Ordinance to approve the grant of a fiber company right of way easement to WC Fiber, LLC on 

property owned by Anderson County, South Carolina located at 399 Simmons Ford Road, Townville, South 
Carolina (TMS No. 016-00-01-003); and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Rusty Burns (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
7. ORDINANCE FIRST READING:  
 
    a. 2022-054: An Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of a joint county industrial and business 

park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge the park; and other matters related 
thereto.  

 
Mr. Burriss Nelson (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
8.  RESOLUTIONS:  
 
    a. 2022-062: A Resolution expressing intent to cease County maintenance on and to authorize County consent to 

judicial abandonment and closure of a section of right-of-way of Broyles Point Road designated as C-08-0063; 
and other matters related thereto. 

 
Mr. Matt Hogan (allotted 5 minutes) 

 
 
 
9.  APPROVAL OF CONTRACT FOR ARCHITECTURAL DESIGN SERVICES FOR NEW ANDERSON 

COUNTY DETENTION CENTER 
Mr. Brett Sanders 

 
 
 
10. EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
     a. Receipt of legal advice subject to Attorney-Client privilege regarding final plats for subdivision projects which 

have not been submitted within the time requirements of Anderson County Code Section 24-367. 
     b. Council action following Executive Session. 
    
     
 



 
 
Anderson County Council Meeting Agenda, November 1, 2022 
 
Page 4 

 

   
 

 
11. CHANGE ORDERS/BID APPROVALS: 
      a. Change Order Band Shell Ampitheater 
      b. Bid #23-011 Hurricane Creek Pump Station 
      c. Bid #23-013 ASEC Walkway Improvement 
 
     
12. REQUEST BY COUNCIL:  
      a. SC High School Soccer Coaches Association-All Districts 
      b. United Way of Anderson/Westside Community Center-All Districts 
 
 
      
 
13. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:    
       
 
14. CITIZENS COMMENTS               Non-Agenda Matters 
 
 
15. REMARKS FROM COUNCIL 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 

 

 
 

Anyone who requires an auxiliary aid or service for effective communication, or a 
modification of policies or procedures in order to participate in this program, service 

or activity please contact the office of the program, service or activity as soon as 
possible but no later than 24 hours before the scheduled event. For assistance, please 

contact the Clerk to Council at (864) 260-1036. 



 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-061 

A RESOLUTION HONORING MICHELLE DUCWORTH AND  
TWIN CREEKS LAVENDER FARM; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO 

 
WHEREAS Michelle Ducworth is an Anderson County native and spent her formative years developing 
a love for growing crops and raising cattle while she worked on the family farm in Williamston, and  
 
WHEREAS Upon the passing of her father, Dr. Lyman Ducworth Jr., in 2015, Michelle felt called upon 
to continue the family's century-long agricultural tradition at the home and farm she loved so much as a 
child, and 
 
WHEREAS with the support and encouragement of her mother Barbara and brother Scott, and after 
many months of toil and trial, as well as the setting out of 7,500 plants, in 2017 Michelle renewed the 
family heritage with the opening of Twin Creek Lavender Farm, and  
 
WHEREAS five years later, the success of Twin Creek Lavender Farm has exceeded all expectations, 
offering three acres of organically grown lavender for both harvest and self-pick, and producing essential 
oils, lavender honey, and more than 100 bath and beauty products, making the farm a prime agritourism 
destination, and  
 
WHEREAS the success of Twin Creeks Lavender Farm led to Michelle being featured in the May 2022 
edition of Southern Living magazine, a distinction she considers to be the highlight of her career thus far 
as a farmer, and  
 
WHEREAS Michelle takes her greatest pride in being able to provide an opportunity for Andersonians 
and those traveling from across the nation to visit this special place of beauty and peace, here on the land 
she so adoringly calls God's Country. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby congratulates 
Michelle Ducworth on the success of Twin Creek Lavender Farm and extends its appreciation to the entire 
Ducworth family for their efforts to preserve heritage farming and the proud tradition of agriculture in 
our community. 
 
RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 1st day of November 2022. 
 
 
______________________               ______________________          ______________________ 
Tommy Dunn, Council Chairman           John B. Wright, Jr. District 1                Glenn Davis, District 2 
 
 
 
 
______________________               ______________________          ______________________ 
Ray Graham, District 3                                 Brett Sanders, District 4                          Jimmy Davis, District 6 
 
 
 
                                                                           ATTEST: 
______________________              
M. Cindy Wilson, District 7           
                                                                       ____________________          ___________________ 
                                                                       Rusty Burns                                                 Renee Watts 
                                                                             County Administrator                                Clerk to Council 



 
RESOLUTION 2022-063 

 
A RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING FLEXON / USW ON THE COMPANY’S RECENT EXPANSION 

 
WHEREAS Flexon Industries, a division of the U.S. Wire & Cable Corporation, is a long-time member of 
Anderson County’s family of industries, and 
 
WHEREAS Flexon recently completed an expansion of its Anderson County plant, which added 200,000 square 
feet to their facility on Oscar Drive and created 120 new jobs, and 
 
WHEREAS with this expansion, Flexon / USW becomes the largest watering hose manufacturer and the leading 
maker of extension cords in North America, and 
 
WHEREAS each year at the Anderson facility, Flexon will be producing enough garden hoses to wrap around the 
earth seven times, and 
 
WHEREAS the expansion brings to the Anderson production facility state-of-the-art automation machinery that will 
increase product quality procedures and plant efficiencies and double production output to stay ahead of the 
tremendous demand for high-quality domestic products, and 
 
WHEREAS in addition to being a strong supporter of the local economy, Flexon has a strong commitment to 
sustainability, recycling more than six million pounds of reusable materials annually at the Anderson facility, which 
equals more than 400 truckloads of material that would have otherwise gone to a landfill, and 
 
WHEREAS it is the desire of the County Council to recognize locally-based firms for their special achievements 
and contributions to the community. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson County Council hereby congratulates Flexon / USW 
CEO David Rauch, CFO Joe Folkman, President Warren Swindlehurst, and all of their associates on their recent 
expansion, and extends its appreciation for the company’s ongoing efforts to produce American-Made products of 
the highest quality possible, be good stewards of the environment, and provide unparalleled service to business 
partners and employees. 
 
RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled this 1st day of November, 2022. 
 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY:                                              ATTEST: 
 
_______________________                                                   ________________________ 
Tommy Dunn                                                                                    Rusty Burns 
County Council Chairman                                                                 County Administrator 
 
 
                                                                                                           __________________________ 
                                                                                                           Renee Watts 
                                                                                                           Clerk to Council 





A PROCLAMATION DESIGNATING NOVEMBER 2022 AS  
AS FAMILY COURT AWARENESS MONTH IN ANDERSON COUNTY 

 

WHEREAS, the mission of the Family Court Awareness Month Committee (FCAMC) is to increase 
awareness of the importance of a family court system that prioritizes child safety and acts in the best interest 
of children, and; 

WHEREAS, the mission at the FCAMC is fueled by the desire to create awareness and change in the 
family court system for the conservatively estimated, 58,000 children a year ordered into unsupervised 
contact with abusive parents, while honoring the hundreds of children who have been reported as murdered 
during visitation with a dangerous parent, and; 

WHEREAS, the mission of the FCAMC is to increase awareness of the importance of empirically-based 
education and training on domestic violence and child abuse, including emotional, psychological, physical, 
and sexual abuse, as well as childhood trauma, coercive control, and post-separation abuse for judges and 
all professionals working on cases within the family court system, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of the FCAMC is to increase awareness of the importance of using scientifically 
valid, evidence-based, treatment programs and services that are proven in terms of safety, effectiveness, 
and therapeutic value, and; 
 
WHEREAS, the mission of FCAMC is to educate judges and other family court professionals on evidence-
based, peer-reviewed research.  Such research is a critical component to making decisions that are truly in 
the best interest of children. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Anderson County does hereby proclaim November 
2022 as Family Court Awareness Month 
 
PROCLAIMED this 1st day of November 2022 
 
FOR ANDERSON COUNTY:     
 
 _______________________   _________________________    _______________________              
 Tommy Dunn, Chairman         John B. Wright, Jr.                        Glenn Davis 
 District Five                             District One                                   District Two 
 
 
 _______________________   _________________________    _______________________     
 Ray Graham                             Brett Sanders                                Jimmy Davis                            
 District Three                           District Four                                 District Six 
 
                                                  _________________________ 
                                                  Cindy Wilson 
                                                  District Seven 
                                  
                                                  
 ATTEST: 
 
 _______________________    _________________________      
 Rusty Burns                              Renee Watts                             
 County Administrator              Clerk to Council                        



State of South Carolina   )

County  of Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

SEPTEMBER 20, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS 
LEON HARMON 
JANIE TURMON



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I would
2 like to call the Special Presentation meeting of
3 September 20th to order.  I’d like to welcome each and
4 every one of y’all here tonight.  And thank y’all for
5 coming.
6 We’re going to switch things around a little bit. 
7 We’re going to move number three up to number two,
8 2(a), we’re going to move that.  We’ve got some people 
9 here that’s got another meeting to get to.  And by
10 means hope they’ll get to.  Chairman of the Fire
11 Commission is here.  We’re going to have him here, Mr.
12 Keaton, and some more folks.
13 At this time I’d like to ask Chief Billy Gibson if
14 he would step forward.  I think he’s got a thing he
15 wants to do up here at the podium.  Mr. Burns, help him
16 get through there.  
17 BILLY GIBSON:  Thank you, Mr.
18 Chairman.  It’s my pleasure to be here tonight.  A
19 great honor for me because this gentleman I’ve known
20 for quite some time, probably longer than he would be
21 willing for me to tell.  Worked with my dad back in the
22 day, so that kind of gives his age away just a little
23 bit.  
24 Mr. Paul Brown has been a staple in the media
25 around Anderson County and the upstate of South
26 Carolina for fifty years, I guess, or possibly even
27 better.  I think his longevity alone would speak to the
28 relationships and the fine work that he does, much less
29 what we have seen, the product that he has been able to
30 put forth.  
31 The South Carolina Firefighters’ Association each
32 year chooses members of our media partners to honor
33 with an excellence in media award.  And it’s based on
34 the relationships that they’ve built with their local
35 community, as well as statewide.  It was my honor to be
36 able to nominate Mr. Brown this past year.  We were --
37 actually presented the award at the firefighters’
38 conference back in June.  Unfortunately he was not able
39 to be with us, but we felt like it would be fitting to
40 do that in a public setting.  And we appreciate the
41 Council having us up here tonight to be able to do
42 that.  
43 We’ve got several folks, we call it his entourage,
44 that’s with us tonight.  I’d like for them to come up;
45 Chief Charlie King who is the past president of the
46 Firefighters’ Association; Josh Holtzheimer who is the
47 current president of the Firefighters’ Association;
48 also we have the chairman of the Fire Commission with
49 us tonight.  We’d like for them to come up tonight and
50 Chief Holtzheimer to just kind of read the award and



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
3

1 then we’ll do the actual presentation.
2 JOSH HOLTZHEIMER:  The Media
3 Appreciation Award is presented to Mr. Paul Brown by
4 the South Carolina State Firefighters’ Association in
5 honor and appreciation of your support and assistance
6 in informing the public about fire education and life
7 safety issues given June 9, 2022 at the South Carolina
8 Fire Rescue Conference.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Before Mr. Brown
10 comes up, I’d just like to say a few words.  I want to
11 appreciate Chief Gibson for all the fine, outstanding
12 work he’s done in the past in Anderson County.  Enjoyed
13 working with him for many years.  I think he’s done an
14 outstanding job.  I want to also welcome Chief King
15 here.  Appreciate Mr. King coming.  He’s the new Chief
16 of the City of Anderson Fire Department.  Known Mr.
17 King for years.
18 I just want to say a few words.  I don’t think they
19 could give this to a better person.  I’ve known Mr.
20 Brown for many, many years.  And when Chief Gibson says
21 fifty years, I don’t want to think it’s been that long. 
22 I’m showing my age, too.  But I remember Mr. Brown
23 treated me with a lot of respect when I was a twenty-
24 two year old kid, Fire Chief of the fire department. 
25 He treated me with a lot of respect.  Enjoyed working
26 with him.  He always done a job professionally and
27 treated us -- and if we messed up he would sort of
28 guide me around and make sure and everything.  And I
29 remember when my brother passed away he was up there
30 and treated it with dignity and everything.  And I
31 really do appreciate the relationship we’ve had with
32 Mr. Brown and hope we have many, many more and
33 especially being on Council how he’s treated me, too. 
34 But on the fire end and the service, done a great
35 outstanding job for the firemen, the fire service and
36 the citizens of Anderson County reporting the news and
37 getting the job done.  And we really do appreciate it.
38 Thank you very, very much.
39 Chief Gibson, if all Council members would like to
40 step down, we’d like to take a part in this right here.
41 PRESENTATION OF AWARD
42 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Brown, do you
43 have anything you’d like to say?
44 APPLAUSE
45 PAUL BROWN:  This won’t take
46 long.  I just want to -- the relationships that you
47 build when you decide that you’re going to stay put and
48 cover your people doing what they do has its benefits. 
49 And one is that you begin to know -- like Billy said, I
50 covered his dad when he was at Easley.  And Charlie,



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
4

1 I’ve covered his parents.  And I remember when he was
2 born.  And so you build those kinds of relationships
3 and you can’t get that when you’re in a place and you
4 leave after two or three years.  And me and my family 
5 -- and I want to thank all of them for showing up
6 tonight -- we’ve been a part of the Anderson County
7 community since the mid-seventies.  My kids all went to
8 school here.  My grandkids were born here.  My great
9 grandkids were both here.  And this is home.  And this
10 means an awful lot to me.  And I appreciate it very
11 much.  Of course, it goes without saying that the
12 firemen and the first responders have a special place
13 in my heart because I see firsthand what they do day in
14 and day out, how they put their lives on the line to
15 help the rest of us.  And I’ve got two people that are
16 involved in that.  Shawn and Lisa have been EMS and
17 paramedics for decades.  And so it’s a family situation
18 for me, but it’s also a community pride thing that the
19 people that we have in Anderson County working to keep
20 the rest of us safe and get us out of trouble when we
21 get into trouble.  And it phenomenal.  And thank you
22 very much for this.  I appreciate it.
23 APPLAUSE
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Again, I want to
25 appreciate Mr. Brown and his family for being here
26 tonight.  And I want to thank Chief Gibson and all his
27 folks for bringing this and being a part of this
28 tonight.  And good luck to Chairman Keaton on his
29 meeting.  I know he’s got to get to a meeting.  
30 So we’ll let them clear out and we’ll get started
31 here in just a minute.
32 We’ll get back into order now.  We’ll move on to
33 item number 2, a Resolution and Proclamation, it’s
34 2(a), 2022-052.  Honorable Council Lady Ms. Cindy
35 Wilson.  Ms. Wilson.
36 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.
37 Chairman.  Wow.  Are we not blessed in this county with
38 the most awesome people.  
39 This is a Resolution congratulating the Palmetto
40 High School Junior ROTC upon receiving the Air Force
41 Junior ROTC 2021-2022 Distinguished Unit Award, the Air
42 Force Junior ROTC 2021-2022 "Silver Star" Community
43 Service with Excellence Award, and the 2022 Southeast
44 Region Cadet Leadership Course Unit of Excellence
45 Award; and other matters related thereto.
46 Whereas, the objectives of the Junior ROTC program
47 - located in close to 870 high schools across the
48 United States and abroad with an enrollment of more
49 than 125,000 who complete more than 1.6 million hours
50 of community service each year - are to educate and



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
5

1 train high school cadets in citizenship and life
2 skills, promote community service, instill
3 responsibility and self-discipline through character
4 education, and to provide instruction in air and space
5 fundamentals; and
6 Whereas, the Palmetto High School Air Force Junior
7 ROTC is open for enrollment to middle and high school
8 students who are in the 8th to 12th grades; and
9 Whereas, for the fifteenth year, the Palmetto High
10 School Air Force Junior ROTC has won the Air Force
11 Junior ROTC Distinguished Unit Award, as well as the
12 “Silver Star” Community Service with Excellence Award,
13 the 2022 Southeast Region Cadet Leadership Course
14 Unit of Excellence Award, and numerous other honors for
15 individual cadets.
16 Now, therefore, be it resolved that the Anderson
17 County Council hereby congratulates the Palmetto High
18 School Air Force Junior ROTC, expresses the community’s
19 pride in their accomplishments, and thanks them for
20 representing Anderson County so well in service to
21 their community and country.
22 Resolved in a meeting duly assembled this 20th day
23 of September 2022.
24 May I put that in the form of a motion, please?
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion.  Do
26 we have a second?
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
29 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor -- Ms. Wilson.
30 CINDY WILSON:   Just want to say,
31 this is only a small snapshot of this unit’s
32 accomplishments over the years.  They get out and they
33 pick up litter.  They do so many incredible things. 
34 Sergeant Livingston and Colonel Creamer do so much for
35 these young people.  It’s just phenomenal.  They may
36 hit me upside the head here shortly for say this, but
37 they’ve actually gone out of their way to make sure
38 these young people had clothes and equipment when some
39 of them couldn’t afford it.  I just can’t say enough
40 positive things.  We are so blessed to have this group
41 and their leaders in our county.  Thank you.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  All in
43 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
44 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously.  Ms.
45 Wilson.
46 CINDY WILSON:   May we have our unit
47 join us down front and our council members.
48 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
49 FEMALE:  I just want to say
50 not only for myself but also from my unit, thank you so



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
6

1 much for this honor, the recognition and the
2 opportunity to serve our community and our country. 
3 Thank you so much.
4 APPLAUSE
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Give them a minute
6 to get out and we’ll get started.
7 At this time we’ll move on to Resolution 2(b),
8 2022-054.  Honorable Councilman Ray Graham.  Councilman
9 Graham.
10 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
11 Chairman.  I bring this in the form of a motion.  This
12 is in reference to Resolution R2022-054.
13 This is a Resolution to recognize and honor the
14 2022 Dixie Ponytails World Series Champion "Starr-Iva
15 All Stars" Girls Softball Team; and other matters
16 related thereto.
17 WHEREAS, comprising twelve girls representing three
18 different teams from the Starr and Iva recreational
19 departments, the 2022 12-and-under Starr-Iva All-Stars
20 team competed in the Girls Softball State Championship
21 in July, facing team representing the Midland Valley
22 and Bamberg communities; and,
23 WHEREAS, the Starr-Iva All-Stars took the state
24 title on the strength of strong performances in all
25 aspects of the game, with the offense scoring a total
26 of 36 runs off of 44 hits and 26 stolen bases, the
27 defense turning in a perfect fielding percentage, and
28 the pitching staff allowing no hits and only four walks
29 with 29 strikeouts over the course of fourteen innings;
30 and,
31 WHEREAS, fresh off their dominating state
32 championship performance, the team traveled more than
33 700 miles to Alexandria, Louisiana to compete in the
34 2022 Dixie Ponytails World Series, where they would
35 represent South Carolina against teams from all across
36 the southeastern United States; and,
37 WHEREAS, at the World Series the Starr-Iva team’s
38 dominance was again on display for all to see as they
39 outscored their opponents 63 to 17 over the course of
40 five games in five days; and,
41 WHEREAS, the team’s offense was fueled by 70 hits
42 with 27 stolen bases and only nine strikeouts; and,
43 WHEREAS, in the field, the defense turned in an
44 amazing performance, finishing with a .979 fielding
45 percentage and only 2 errors.
46 WHEREAS, the pitching staff continued to show its
47 power, allowing only 30 hits with 38 strikeouts over
48 the course of 25 innings; and,
49 WHEREAS, this Girls Softball World Series victory
50 is the first for a team from our area in more than ten



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
7

1 years, and only the second such victory over the last
2 twenty years, and;
3 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Anderson
4 County Council hereby congratulates the Starr-Iva
5 All-Stars on their superlative performance on the
6 field, and thanks you for being “All-Stars” off the
7 field as well, representing us all with pride,
8 determination and respect.
9 LET THIS BE RESOLVED in a meeting duly assembled
10 this 20th day of September, 2022.
11 Mr. Chairman, I bring that in the form of a motion.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion Mr.
13 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
14 RAY GRAHAM:  Just want to ---
15 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.
16 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
17 Chairman.  Just want to congratulate these young ladies
18 on their achievement, a very successful season.  And
19 Mr. Chairman, I’d like to ask them to come down and
20 present this to them.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   All in favor of the
22 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
23 the motion carries unanimously.  Mr. Graham.  Mr.
24 Burns.
25 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION 
26 MALE:  First and foremost
27 is -- what I want to say is how much we appreciate this
28 opportunity to come here tonight and display these
29 young ladies.  Thank you to the county for the support
30 in getting us to Louisiana.  It helped out a lot as far
31 as traveling expenses go.  And the entire county, the
32 way that they stepped forward.  The girls had a real
33 short time.  It was a little over a week to raise money
34 to pay for hotel rooms, gas money, food and everything
35 else.  And it just goes to show you the kind of support
36 that we have in a county like this where everybody
37 comes together in a time of need, whether it be good or
38 bad and step up to the plate and open their pockets and
39 their wallets and their arms and everything else to
40 help get these girls here.  Because these young ladies,
41 they a hundred percent deserve every bit of the credit
42 they get.  We took three teams.  And we had also a
43 short time while we were raising money to practice and
44 get girls that might not have been exactly a hundred
45 percent familiar to come together and have some kind of
46 team chemistry to go to a state and a World Series.  It
47 was almost like a dream team.  Every one of them came
48 together and they completely just dominated their
49 opponents.  They loved every minute of it.  Everything
50 goes to them and it was all for them.  And we want to,



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - September 20, 2022
8

1 once again, tell you how much we appreciate this
2 opportunity today.  Thank you.
3 APPLAUSE
4 TOMMY DUNN:   That will conclude
5 this part of the Council meeting.  We’ll reconvene --
6 meeting will be adjourned.  We’ll reconvene back here
7 at 6:30 to start our regular Council meeting.
8
9 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:21 P.M.)



9

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

SEPTEMBER 20, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
10

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the regular Anderson County Council
3 meeting to order of September the 20th.  I’d like to
4 welcome each and every one of you here tonight and
5 thank y’all for coming.
6 First of all on the agenda tonight, we’re going to
7 be doing invocation and pledge of allegiance from
8 Honorable Councilman Mr. Jimmy Davis.  
9 Before we do that I’d like for all if we would keep
10 in mind the Driver family, Ms. Gloria Driver, who used
11 to be the clerk to council a few years ago.  She’s got
12 some health issues.  And let’s keep her family in our
13 thoughts and prayers, please, as we move forward
14 Councilman Davis.
15 JIMMY DAVIS:  May we bow in
16 prayer.
17 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY JIMMY DAVIS
18 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time do we
19 have a motion to approve the minutes of the September
20 6th meeting?
21 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson.
23 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
25 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
26 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
27 unanimously. 
28 We’re going to move on to item number 4, citizens
29 comments.  As Mr. Harmon calls your name, the first go-
30 around is agenda items only.  Address the chair. 
31 You’ve got three minutes.  Mr. Harmon.  
32 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, ---
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Excuse me.  Please
34 state your name and district for the record.  Go ahead,
35 Mr. Harmon.
36 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, first
37 speaker is Mike Shiplet.
38 MIKE SHIPLET:  My name is Mike
39 Shiplet.  I live on Dixon Road in Anderson, South
40 Carolina.  I’m here tonight to ask y’all here at 
41 County Council to approve the zoning change on the
42 property on Dixon Road.  This is a prime piece of
43 industrial property.  It has railroad right-of-way.  It
44 has everything we need.  And I feel like it would be a
45 lot less impact for this company to put their building
46 on this property and take their traffic back to Pearman
47 Dairy instead of coming into Dixon.
48 If we did build houses on this, which if we can’t
49 get it changed over it’ll go to residential, would
50 really overload our community with traffic.  So at this



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
11

1 time I hope the Council will consider our request.  
2 Thank you.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
4 Harmon.
5 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Mike
6 Settle.
7 MIKE SETTLE:  Hello.  My name is
8 Mike Settle.  I live at 213 Andalusion Trail.  I’m also
9 here to talk about the property on Dixon Road. 
10 The people that have applied for the rezoning are
11 doing so because I brought a buyer for their property
12 from the industry that’s next door, Anderson Industry,
13 which manufactures hose, garden hose and hose pipe for
14 us.  They would like to purchase this property right
15 next to them.  Their property is already zoned I-2 and
16 so they requested before they would buy this property
17 that it be zoned I-2 so they can take advantage of the
18 railroad track and expand their footprint in Anderson.  
19 So I request -- and we had a meeting and listened
20 to the community.  We had about thirty -- maybe twenty-
21 five to thirty-five people show up.  And we asked for
22 their input.  And everything that they asked us to do
23 we’ve tried to implement.  And we have gotten a parcel
24 along Dixon Road being surveyed off and leave that as a
25 residential buffer.  And then the I-2 would be behind
26 that.
27 So I passed out those sheets earlier.  I don’t know
28 if you got them or not, but anyway, that’s what we’re
29 requesting.  And if you guys would be amenable to that,
30 we would be very honored.  Thank you.
31 LEON HARMON:  Next speaker is Paul
32 Treffeisen.
33 PAUL TREFFEISEN:  Good evening.  My
34 name is Paul Treffeisen.  I’m a resident at 202 Harbor
35 Road in Stone Haven Subdivision.  Recorded as a mile
36 away from what -- agenda item 22-046.  It is a request
37 to rezone from R-20 to I-2.  I’ve been a resident there
38 for thirty-six years.  It’s an agrarian community that
39 was zoned in 1999 to R-20, one of the few zoned areas
40 in Anderson County.  
41 Having lived there enjoying the residential zoning
42 the way it is, and noticing the farm land as
43 generations have turned over, much of this property is
44 now being considered for sale.  What I’ve seen in
45 Anderson County is high density population residential
46 communities much like what’s coming up in the Hanna
47 School District where hundreds of homes are coming into
48 a relatively small areas, about five homes per acre.
49 My concern is that if this stays R-20 it will be
50 changed to a much higher density population multi-use



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
12

1 and it will greatly impact the quality of life for
2 those residents that egress and ingress out of this
3 subdivision now, the subdivision I live in and others,
4 Parkwood for example.
5 There’s additional homes that would be built up in
6 -- once the rezoning goes through off of Highway 187,
7 one of the quickest ways into Anderson city is down
8 Centerville Road to Old Pearman Dairy Road to Dixon
9 Road, which will greatly enhance traffic.  The county
10 has already done traffic counts, so I think those
11 numbers are available.  So I’m here to support the
12 rezoning to I-2.  I think it will have the lesser
13 impact on our community.  With the changes Mr. Settle
14 had shared with the community and seeking our
15 involvement shows that there will be a buffer.  Egress
16 and ingress into this business will be off the already
17 industrialized Old Pearman Dairy Road consistent with
18 the businesses that are in that area.  So there will be
19 no commercial traffic in and out of Dixon Road.  Again,
20 lessening the impact on the community.  Thank you.
21 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
22 else is signed up.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
24 Harmon.
25 Moving on to item number 5(a), 2022-037,
26 ordinance’s third reading.  An Ordinance authorizing
27 the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu of tax
28 agreement by and between Anderson County, South
29 Carolina, and a company or companies known to the
30 County at this time as Project Little Brother with
31 respect to certain economic development property in the
32 County, whereby such property will be subject to
33 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
34 provision of certain special source credits; and other
35 matters related thereto. 
36 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
37 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
39 Do we have a second.
40 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
42 Davis.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Mr. Nelson,
43 do you have anything?
44 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman, this
45 is third reading, public hearing, on a thirty million
46 dollar spec warehouse facility.  Four hundred and six
47 thousand square feet.  At exit 32.  This is another
48 case where others are spending their money to bring
49 development to Anderson County.  It’s a good
50 opportunity for Anderson County in growth.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
13

1 Last year that property paid a little over nine
2 hundred dollars in property tax.  Projected for 2024
3 will be eighty-nine thousand in property tax.  And over
4 thirty years more than ten million dollars in property
5 tax.  
6 This comes to council as a recommendation from
7 staff.  Thank you, sir.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone have any
9 questions or comments from Mr. Nelson.  Any other
10 comments or questions?  All in favor of the motion,
11 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
12 ---
13 BRETT SANDERS:   Do we have a public
14 hearing?
15 TOMMY DUNN:   What’s that?
16 BRETT SANDERS:   Do we have a public
17 hearing?
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Ain’t no public
19 hearing on this.
20 BRETT SANDERS:   I thought he said
21 public hearing.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   He did say it, but 
23 ---
24 JIMMY DAVIS:  We did that last
25 time.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re good.  Do that
27 again.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
28 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
29 unanimously. 
30 Moving on now to item number 6, ordinance second
31 reading, 6(a), 2022-036, an Ordinance to amend
32 Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
33 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
34 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .92
35 acres from C-1N (Neighborhood Commercial District) to
36 C-2 (Highway Commercial District) on a parcel of land,
37 identified as 5930 Highway 187 in the Mount Tabor
38 Precinct shown in Deed Book 13946 Page 196.  The parcel
39 is further identified as TMS #44-00-12-011.  It’s in
40 District 4.  This will be going to a public hearing. 
41 Anyone wishing to speak to this matter, please step
42 forward, state your name and district and address the
43 chair, please.  Anyone at all?
44 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir. 
46 RAY GRAHAM:  I just want to
47 correct, that TMS is 43; not 44. 
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Did I say 44?  43,
49 okay.  If I did say that, it’s 43.  Thank you.  Anyone
50 wishing to speak at this public hearing on this matter? 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
14

1 Hearing and seeing none, the public hearing will be
2 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this ---
3 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders. 
5 Do we have a second.
6 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
7 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
9 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
10 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
11 carries unanimously. 
12 Moving on to item number (b), 6(b), 2022-039, an
13 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
14 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park)
15 of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge
16 the park.  This is Project Care.  
17 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
18 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
20 Davis and second Ms. Cindy Wilson.  Open the floor up
21 for discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
22 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
23 Chairman.  This is another case where Greenville County
24 has a project that is now unannounced and they would
25 like to place in the park.  It allows that company to
26 have state benefits and incentives.  And just like when
27 we have projects, this is a reciprocal agreement.  We
28 can place our projects in the park and get the same
29 kind of benefits for our companies.  Greenville County
30 sends its thanks for your consideration.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
32 Nelson.  Any more discussion?  All in favor of the
33 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
34 the motion carries unanimously. 
35 Moving on to item number (c), 6(c), 2022-040, an
36 Ordinance to transfer certain parcels of real property
37 to the Town of Pelzer; and other matters related
38 thereto.
39 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
40 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
41 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
42 Do we have a second?  Second Mr. Brett Sanders.  Open
43 the floor up for discussion.
44 Mr. Burns, if you would, just for the folks that
45 don’t know, would you just explain this a little bit?
46 RUSTY BURNS:  These are stray
47 pieces of property that were left over when the mill
48 closed.  They are of no value to us.  And they will
49 provide value to the town.  Also will reduce our
50 liability.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
15

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anymore
2 discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
3 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
4 unanimously. 
5 We’re going to move on to item number 6(d),
6 2022-041, an Ordinance to transfer a right-of-way
7 interest in real property to Big Water Marina, LLC; and
8 other matters related thereto.
9 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
10 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
11 RAY GRAHAM:  Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson;
13 second Mr. Graham.  Open the floor up for discussion. 
14 Mr. Burns, again, would you just highlight this?
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, when
16 we were reconstructing that road, they gave us the
17 interest in this property.  It was not needed.  We’re
18 returning it back to them.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
20 else?  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
21 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
22 carries unanimously.
23 We’re going to move on to item number 6(e), 
24 2022-042, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
25 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
26 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
27 or companies known to the County at this time as
28 Project Hurricane with respect to certain economic
29 development property in the County, whereby such
30 property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of
31 taxes, including the provision of certain special
32 source credits; and other matters related thereto. 
33 This is Project Hurricane.  Do we have a motion to put
34 this on the floor?
35 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
36 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
38 Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
39 discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
40 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
41 Chairman.  This is an eighteen million dollar project
42 that’s locating up at exit 32 in Jimmy Wilson’s
43 industrial park.  This is also creating a total of
44 thirty-seven jobs with an average pay of twenty-five
45 dollars an hour.  Has an SSRC of eighty-five percent
46 for years one through five for infrastructure credit
47 offset -- for infrastructure development offset.  And
48 last year this property paid seventeen thousand dollars
49 in property tax.  Projected for 2023 is fifty-three
50 thousand.  And over thirty years 5.4 million in total



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
16

1 property tax.  New annual payroll is 1.8 million
2 dollars.  This comes to Council as a recommendation
3 from staff.  Thank you, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anymore
5 discussion?
6 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, if I may?
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir, Mr. Davis,
8 Jimmy Davis.
9 JIMMY DAVIS:  Is it exit 35?
10 BURRISS NELSON:  35.  I’m sorry. 
11 Yes, sir.  
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?  All in
13 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
14 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
15 We’re going to move on now to item number (f), 
16 2022-043, an Ordinance to amend an agreement for the
17 development of a joint county industrial and business
18 park (2010 Park) of Anderson and Greenville Counties so
19 as to enlarge the park to include certain property of
20 Project Hurricane; and other matters related thereto.
21 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
24 Davis.
25 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   And second Ms.
27 Wilson.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Mr. Nelson.
28 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
29 Chairman.  This allows Project Hurricane’s jobs and
30 capital investment to reap the same state benefits that
31 are offered or that we just discussed for Project Care
32 for Greenville.  This applies to our industrial
33 projects, the project in this case, Project Hurricane,
34 and gives them access to those state benefits.  This
35 comes to Council as a recommendation from staff.  Thank
36 you, sir.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we
38 have a motion to move this forward?
39 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   I’m sorry.  I’ve
41 already done that.  Anymore discussion?  Seeing and
42 hearing none, all in favor of the motion, show of
43 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
44 unanimously. 
45 Moving on now to item (g), 2022-044, an Ordinance
46 approving an amendment for the enlargement of the joint
47 county industrial and business park by and between
48 Anderson County, South Carolina and Greenville County,
49 South Carolina; and other matters related thereto. 
50 This is Project Lifeboat.  



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
17

1 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
2 JOHN WRIGHT:  So moved.
3 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. John
5 Wright; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
6 discussion.  We’ll start off with Mr. Nelson.  Mr.
7 Nelson.
8 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
9 Chairman.  This project is a project that we’ve already
10 done first and second reading on and placing it in the
11 park.  This is a project that’s creating approximately
12 sixty jobs with an average pay of fifty dollars an
13 hour.  With a capital investment of about fourteen
14 million.  This, of course, allows this project to
15 access all state benefits we’ve just discussed.
16 This comes to Council as a recommendation from
17 staff.  Thank you, sir.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anymore
19 discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of the motion,
20 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
21 carries unanimously. 
22 If there’s no objection, we’re going to take about
23 a ten, fifteen minute recess.  Any objections?  
24 RECESS
25 TOMMY DUNN:   ... back to order.
26 We’re going to move on to item number 7(a), 
27 2022-045, an Ordinance to approve a real estate lease
28 with Clemson University for space in the Anderson
29 County 1428 Pearman Dairy Road Facility, that’s the old
30 TTI building.  This is in title only.  
31 Mr. Rusty Burns or Mr. Harmon, do one of y’all want
32 to take this to fill us in just a little bit?
33 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman,
34 Clemson Extension Service is currently located on Tower
35 Street.  They’re going to be moving to 1428 Pearman
36 Dairy Road.  They’re going to be occupying seven
37 offices in there.  We think the synergy and the ability
38 to work closer with county staff will have benefits for
39 Clemson University and us.  As was the case previously,
40 Clemson pays no rent.  They will pay no rent in this
41 situation.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   No rent?
43 RUSTY BURNS:  Zip.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
45 to put this on the floor?
46 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Davis. 
48 Do we have a second?
49 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. John



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
18

1 Wright, Jr.  Any discussion?
2 CINDY WILSON:   May I real quick?
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
4 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you so very
5 much for attending to that.  Our Clemson Extension
6 Service is such a vital component to services in this
7 county.  It’s just incredible.  And the 4-H Clubs, it’s
8 about like the ROTC.  So thank you very much.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Burns, there’s
10 some discussion.  Can you elaborate what’s going to
11 happen to the building they’re in now, if anything?
12 RUSTY BURNS:  Currently there are
13 two people in there; Probation and Parole and Clemson
14 Extension Service.  Probation and Parole uses space in
15 that building.  They also bleed into the other building
16 on Tower Street.  This will allow Probation and Parole
17 to be self-contained in one building.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   And free up a
19 building; is that right?
20 RUSTY BURNS:  Well, we still have
21 Honey’s Cupboard in that building at this current time. 
22 Yes, sir.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   And there’s been a
24 little bit of trouble in that area.
25 RUSTY BURNS:  Well, we’ve
26 addressed that with the city.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Yep.  Thank y’all. 
28 Anyone got anymore discussion?  This is first reading. 
29 Everybody good?  All in favor of the motion, show of
30 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
31 unanimously. 
32 We’re going to move on to item number 7(b).  Before
33 we vote on this I’ll make a statement right quick.  If
34 this passes tonight, it’s got to have two more
35 readings.  Make sure on that.  There will be three
36 readings before it’s passed.  I’ve got to recuse
37 myself.  I’ve got a contract to build this gentleman a
38 house.  That happened way before this come about, or I
39 wouldn’t have signed a contract with them.  But I do
40 take my duties on Council seriously.  Don’t want no
41 part of any conflict.  And so that’s the reason I’ll
42 turn the meeting over to Vice Chairman Brett Sanders.
43 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, Mr.
44 Chairman.  
45 Ordinance 2022-046 is an Ordinance to amend
46 Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
47 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
48 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 97.48
49 acres from R-20 (Single Family Residential District) to
50 1-2 (Industrial Park District) on a parcel of land,



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
19

1 identified as 3508 in the Centerville Station A
2 Precinct shown in Deed Book 15537 page 311.  The parcel
3 further identified as TMS# 95-00-03-006.  This is
4 District 5.  Let the record show Mr. Dunn has recused
5 himself.
6 Do I have a motion to put this on the floor?
7 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
8 BRETT SANDERS:   I have a motion Ms.
9 Wilson; a second Councilman John Wright, Jr.  We’re
10 open for discussion?
11 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
12 BRETT SANDERS:   Go ahead, Ms.
13 Wilson.
14 CINDY WILSON:   I came in tonight
15 prepared to vote against this because I’m real familiar
16 with the area and it’s a beautiful residential area. 
17 And I was concerned with the application of industrial
18 juxtaposed against the residences.  But the fact that
19 there is now a section of land that’s reserved for
20 residential so that there won’t be big trucks coming
21 and going.  And even though I read in the packet that
22 they would not be having big trucks coming and going,
23 sometimes, once things are passed, we have no control
24 over whether they agreed to something or not.
25 So I’m very pleased to see this improvement.  And
26 I’m also expecting to see some buffers and so forth
27 factored in because there are nice residences and farms
28 close at hand.  And this is a big problem we have in
29 our county.  We want to be able to evolve and develop
30 in a nice way but not wreck the adjoining landowners’
31 values either.  So it’s a fine balance sometimes.  So I
32 was glad to see this.  Thank you.
33 BRETT SANDERS:   Anyone else?  Ms.
34 Hunter?  I’ve had several calls and I’ve talked with
35 you about this project.  You said they had another plan
36 submitted?
37 ALICIA HUNTER:  Yes, sir.  Mr.
38 Chairman, you should -- we received an updated plan
39 later this afternoon and it shows where the developer
40 has subdivided some additional acreage and left about
41 six acres in R-20 that will be reserved.  There will be
42 no access on to Dixon Road, as Ms. Wilson was concerned
43 about the large tractor trucks with traffic.  So that
44 plan has been amended since the Planning Commission
45 meeting.
46 BRETT SANDERS:   So we’ll have that
47 actual drawing?
48 ALICIA HUNTER:  Yes.
49 BRETT SANDERS:   Not this one that I
50 was handed today?  Is this it?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
20

1 ALICIA HUNTER:  That’s the updated.
2 BRETT SANDERS:   That’s the updated?
3 ALICIA HUNTER:  Yes, sir. 
4 BRETT SANDERS:   Anymore discussion?
5 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Sanders.
6 BRETT SANDERS:   Go ahead.
7 JOHN WRIGHT:  The previous drawing
8 was what was presented to the Planning Commission last
9 week; is that correct?
10 ALICIA HUNTER:  That’s correct.
11 JOHN WRIGHT:  And it was three to
12 three.
13 ALICIA HUNTER:  It was three to
14 three, as a tie, yes, sir.
15 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  And what was
16 staff recommendation?
17 ALICIA HUNTER:  At that time we
18 recommended denial, due to the fact that the plan
19 showed traffic would be accessing off of Dixon Road and
20 the fact that we did not have that buffer that Ms.
21 Wilson was referring to on the plan.  Citizens were
22 concerned about that.
23 JOHN WRIGHT:  Okay.  Thank you.
24 ALICIA HUNTER:  Yes, sir.
25 CINDY WILSON:   May I further add,
26 there was a commend made about the high density
27 development near Hanna.  That’s the City of Anderson. 
28 That is not Anderson County.  They annexed out and
29 busted our zoning.  And I also remember a certain
30 broken present who promised that the Dixon/Centerville
31 Road would be improved, but it never did, if a high
32 density development was voted and put in place, which
33 it has been, but the road remains unfixed.  Thank you.
34 BRETT SANDERS:   As Ms. Wilson said,
35 we’d like to see a little more buffers and things in
36 there, but right now we’ll go ahead and vote.  All in
37 favor.  All opposed.  The vote carries unanimously.  
38 And someone grab Mr. Dunn.  Or we’ll just leave him
39 back there.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate it, Mr.
41 Sanders.
42 Be moving on now to item number (c), 2022-047, an
43 Ordinance to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson
44 County Zoning Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by
45 amending the Anderson County Official Zoning Map to
46 rezone +/- 16.3 acres from R-20 (Single Family
47 Residential District) to C-3 (Commercial District) on a
48 parcel of land, identified as 54.22 acres on Beaverdam
49 Road in Williamston Mill Precinct shown in Deed Book
50 11140 page 228.  The parcel is further identified as



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
21

1 TMS# 220-00-08-007.  District 7. 
2 Do we have a motion?
3 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
5 Do we have a second?
6 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Sanders. 
8 Open the floor up for discussion?
9 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
11 CINDY WILSON:   This is another
12 situation where part of the area is residential, a
13 little bit of farming land, a church.  But it’s also
14 next door to a trailer park.  And it’s right off
15 Highway 29, a very busy corridor.  And across from 29
16 from a major industrial park.  And there’s also an
17 industrial park on the east side of 29. 
18 I’m certainly going to enlist our Planning
19 Department to make sure buffers and other measures are
20 put in place to soften the juxtaposition in that area. 
21 I don’t normally vote for rezoning, but in this case I
22 think it’s a very -- it would be appropriate with some
23 measures in place to keep it looking nice.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
25 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Hunter, you have
27 anything you want to add or want to say?  You good? 
28 Anybody else got anything?  All in favor of the motion,
29 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
30 carries unanimously. 
31 We’re going to move on to item number 8(a), 
32 2022-053, a Resolution expressing consent to the
33 installation of Speed Humps on Clarendon Drive; and
34 other matters related thereto.
35 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
36 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
37 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Jimmy
39 Davis; second Ms. Cindy Wilson.  Open the floor up for
40 discussion.  
41 Mr. Hogan, you got anything you’d like to say?
42 MATT HOGAN:  Yeah, Mr. Chairman,
43 this is just a request for approval.  You’ve already
44 approved four in this subdivision.  They’ve requested
45 another one.  I’m just coming for approval.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   And it meet
47 everything that you ---
48 MATT HOGAN:  They’ve done the
49 process and it was approved.
50 JIMMY DAVIS:  They paid for it.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
22

1 MATT HOGAN:  They’ve already paid
2 for the fifth one.  I just need to get approval.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Thank you,
4 Mr. Hogan.  Appreciate you.
5 Anymore discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
6 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
7 carries unanimously.
8 Moving on to item number 8(b), 2022-055, a
9 Resolution approving the joinder of Century Hills, Inc.
10 as a sponsor affiliate to the fee in lieu of tax and
11 special source credit agreement between Bluebird Solar,
12 LLC and Anderson County, South Carolina dated May 21,
13 2019; and other matters related thereto.
14 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
15 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
16 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
18 second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for discussion. 
19 We’ll start with Mr. Nelson.
20 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
21 Chairman.  This is a request to place a sponsor
22 affiliate in an ordinance that we passed 2019, the
23 council passed in 2019.  It’s Ordinance number 2019-
24 013.  And this was a solar farm.  And NARENCO, which is
25 the National Renewable Energy Corporation that had the
26 solar farm there, failed to put the property in the
27 agreement at the time.  They’re requesting that we
28 place the property in the fee agreement.  It can be
29 done, according to the ordinance, with Council’s
30 permission.  The two must agree, Council and NARENCO,
31 to place that property in the agreement and receive the
32 same benefits as the fee agreement as we passed in
33 2019.  This comes to Council as a recommendation from
34 staff.  And I appreciate your consideration.  Thank
35 you, sir.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore discussion? 
37 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the motion,
38 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
39 carries unanimously. 
40 At this time we have a ---
41 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
43 Nelson.  Appreciate you and your team.
44 Do we have a motion to go into executive session to
45 take legal advice on the subject of attorney/client
46 privilege regarding the Anderson County/Iva Memorandum
47 of Understanding?
48 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
50 Do we have a second?  Second Mr. Ray Graham.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
23

1 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
2 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
3 unanimously. 
4 We’ll meet back here.
5 EXECUTIVE SESSION
6 CINDY WILSON:   Mr. Chairman, may I
7 make a motion that we come out of executive session,
8 having received legal advice subject to attorney/client
9 privilege regarding Anderson County/Iva Memorandum of
10 Understanding, with no action taken during the session.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion Ms.
12 Wilson.  Do we have a second?
13 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
15 Davis.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All
16 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
17 unanimously. 
18 Do we have a motion?
19 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman?
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.
21 RAY GRAHAM:  I’d like to bring
22 this in the form of a motion.  This is in reference to
23 a MOU with the town of Iva concerning the sewer system
24 and pursuing funds through a partnership with Anderson
25 County to basically go through and fix the system and
26 fix the issue there.  We actually received that MOU
27 back from the town of Iva with some changes.  I hope
28 all Council has been able to review that and feel
29 comfortable with it.  
30 I bring in the form of a motion that we approve
31 this and move forward.
32 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
33 Graham.  Have a second?
34 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
35 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
37 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
38 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
39 carries unanimously. 
40 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
41 Chairman.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all.
43 Moving on now, change order bid approvals.
44 10(a), Architectural Design Services: New Anderson
45 County Detention Center.  
46 Mr. Burns, Mr. Sanders, who wants to handle this?  
47 RUSTY BURNS:  I can take it.  Mr.
48 Chairman, as you know we put out a request for
49 qualifications all across the country.  We received
50 three responses back.  After deliberation by county



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
24

1 staff and others, the Moseley Architectural Firm was
2 selected to be the firm to design the new Anderson
3 County Detention Center.  Approval with this would
4 allow us to begin contract negotiations.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Do we
6 have a motion to move this forward?
7 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
8 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Graham;
10 second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
11 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Burns, say that
12 name again.
13 RUSTY BURNS:  Moseley.
14 JIMMY DAVIS:  Moseley?
15 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir. 
16 TOMMY DUNN:   They’ve built some
17 around here; jails.  
18 BRETT SANDERS:   They’ve built
19 everywhere.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Yeah, they have
21 built some around here, close.  Anybody else?  All in
22 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
23 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
24 Moving on now to appointments, Anderson County
25 Museum Advisory Board.  Mr. John Wright, Jr.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
27 Chairman.  I would like to appoint to the District 1
28 seat for the Anderson County Museum Advisory Board Mr.
29 John Rainey.  I’ve had a vacancy on that seat for quite
30 sometime, and Mr. Rainey has been a volunteer of the
31 museum for a long while.  I look forward to appointing
32 him and seeing him serve over at the Anderson County
33 Museum.  And I put that in the form of a motion.
34 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Wright,
36 Councilman Wright; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
37 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
38 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
39 Do we have any other appointments I’m not aware of?
40 Moving on, requests by Council members.  Mr. Davis,
41 Jimmy Davis.
42 JIMMY DAVIS:  Mr. Chair, from
43 District 6 special rec account, I’d like to make these
44 two in the form of one motion.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir. 
46 JIMMY DAVIS:  Foothills Community
47 Health Care, two hundred and fifty dollars; Angel’s
48 Elite Model Troupe, five hundred dollars.  I make that
49 in the form of a motion.
50 CINDY WILSON:   Second.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
25

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson;
2 motion Mr. Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor
3 of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
4 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
5 Do you have anything else, Mr. Davis?
6 JIMMY DAVIS:  No, sir. 
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Brett Sanders,
8 Councilman Sanders.
9 BRENT SANDERS:   Thank you, Mr.
10 Chairman.  I’d like to put this in the form of a
11 motion.  I would like to do the amount of (inaudible).
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Wait a minute.  Say
13 that again.
14 BRETT SANDERS:   $8,266.67 to
15 Celebrate Anderson; I’d like to do fifteen hundred for
16 the Angel’s Elite Model Troupe.  Put that in the form
17 of a motion.
18 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
19 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr. Davis,
21 Jimmy Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the
22 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
23 the motion carries unanimously. 
24 Anything else, Mr. Sanders?
25 BRETT SANDERS:   That’s all.  Thank
26 you, sir.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
28 Glenn Davis.
29 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
30 Chairman.  I have three and I’d like to put them all
31 together from District 2's special rec account. 
32 Foothills Community Health Care, fifteen hundred
33 dollars; Homeland Park Community Watch, fifteen hundred
34 dollars; JBECO District 2, fifteen hundred dollars. 
35 I’d like to put that in the form of a motion, please.
36 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
37 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion by
38 Mr. Glenn Davis; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
39 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
40 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
41 Moving on Mr. Ray Graham, Councilman Graham.
42 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
43 Chairman.  I’d like to do two hundred fifty dollars to
44 Angel’s Elite Model Troupe from the rec account of
45 District 3.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion Mr.
47 Graham.  Do we have a second?
48 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Ms. Wilson. 
50 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
26

1 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
2 unanimously. 
3 Anything else, Mr. Graham?
4 RAY GRAHAM:  No, sir. 
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
6 Mr. Wright, Councilman Wright.
7 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
8 Chairman.  I’ve got two I’d like to put in the form of
9 one motion.  To the Foothills Community Health Care,
10 I’d like to appropriate five hundred dollars from
11 District 1 special rec account; and also for Celebrate
12 Anderson I would like to appropriate the eighty-two
13 sixty-six sixty-seven, as well, from District 1.  I put
14 that in the form of a motion.
15 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion by Mr.
17 Wright and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
18 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
19 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
20 Thank you, Mr. Wright.  Anything else?
21 JOHN WRIGHT:  No, sir. 
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to Ms.
23 Wilson.
24 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you.  Question
25 because I’m not familiar with Foothills Community
26 Health Care.  Is that connected to the Foothills
27 Alliance?
28 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s separate, I’m
29 pretty sure.  Ain’t it?  Yeah, it’s separate.  
30 GLENN DAVIS:  This is a ---
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Glenn Davis has got
32 the floor.
33 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
34 Chairman.  It’s located in the Westside Community
35 Center.
36 CINDY WILSON:   Oh, okay.
37 GLENN DAVIS:  They treat a lot of
38 ---
39 BRETT SANDERS:   I was thinking that
40 was the one ---
41 TOMMY DUNN:   I’ll come back to
42 you.  Okay?  Yes, sir, I’ll come back to you. 
43 Ms. Wilson.
44 CINDY WILSON:   Council District 7
45 would like to appropriate a thousand dollars for
46 Angel’s Elite Model Troupe; and two hundred and fifty
47 dollars for the Foothills Community Health Care.  And
48 that I put in the form of a motion.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Ms.
50 Wilson.  Have a second?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
27

1 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Sanders. 
3 Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of
4 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
5 unanimously. 
6 Now, go back to Councilman Sanders.
7 BRETT SANDERS:   I’m sorry for that. 
8 I’d also, from my special rec account, do five hundred
9 to Foothills Community Health Care.  Put that in the
10 form of a motion.
11 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
12 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
13 Sanders; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
14 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
15 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
16 Out of District 5's special appropriation account,
17 I would like to appropriate -- do all this at once --
18 I’d like to appropriate five hundred dollars for the
19 Foothills Community Health Care; I’d like to
20 appropriate fifteen hundred dollars for the Homeland
21 Park Community Watch District; I’d like to appropriate
22 one thousand dollars to the Angel’s Elite Model Troupe;
23 and I’d like to appropriate eight thousand two hundred
24 sixty-six dollars and sixty-eight cents.  And let it be
25 known I topped them.  Put that in the form of a motion.
26 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Ms.
28 Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
29 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
30 carries unanimously. 
31 Anything else?
32 Moving on to Administrator’s report.
33 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
34 time, Mr. Chairman.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
36 citizens comments.  When Mr. Harmon calls your name you
37 have three minutes on items.  Address the chair and
38 state your name and district for the record.  Mr.
39 Harmon?
40 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
41 is signed up to speak.
42 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
43 Harmon.
44 Remarks from Council members now.  Ms. Wilson.
45 CINDY WILSON:   Oh, thank you, Mr.
46 Chairman.  It’s another wonderful day in Anderson
47 County.  But I do want to share something with
48 everybody that I learned yesterday.  You know, you read
49 and hear all this home title theft stuff going on.  And
50 I called our Register of Deeds to find out if there had



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
28

1 been any instances that she was aware of in Anderson
2 County and she said no.  Where most of this is
3 occurring is where records are heavily digitized,
4 apparently with very little protection or security on
5 it.
6 But anyway, knock on wood, we’re safe so far.
7 Thank you.
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
9 Councilman Wright.
10 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
11 Chairman.  Just really quickly, I want to make mention. 
12 I was at the Civic Center last night.  My oldest son is
13 five and had his first soccer game out there.  And so
14 we went out there last night.  Couldn’t hardly find a
15 parking place.  The pickle ball courts were full, the
16 soccer fields, the playground.  And it was just really
17 good to see that big of a turnout at the Civic Center
18 on a Monday night.  So a lot of good things happening
19 here in Anderson County.  And it was exciting to see
20 the Civic Center at full capacity last night.  Thank
21 you.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
23 Councilman Graham.
24 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
25 Chairman.  Just a couple of things.  Just want to
26 commend the Detention Facility Committee as far as
27 their work on getting us moving forward with the
28 detention facility.  I think Moseley will do an
29 excellent job.  I’ve seen their work; and definitely
30 got experience.  I think they’ll bring a lot to
31 Anderson County.
32 As far as town of Iva, again, thank you so much for
33 Council’s support on this.  I think this is a huge win
34 for the citizens in that area due to the long
35 outstanding issues with the sewer problems.
36 Also, Mr. Burns, on Tower Street, I hope and pray
37 to God, we don’t move nobody else in those buildings. 
38 And we work toward getting those off of our records
39 toward some other benefit to the community.
40 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir. 
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Including Probation
42 and Parole.  And I know as things transpire, we’ve got
43 a lot of things in the works.  Hopefully they will have
44 an avenue of another location in the near future for us
45 to basically accommodate them elsewhere.  Because I
46 mean that -- I know you know that that’s been a long
47 outstanding thing on a lot of Council members’ minds. 
48 But I mean that would be great to truly move forward
49 and hopefully develop that in some other way in the
50 community.  Because it’s an eyesore at times.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
29

1 RUSTY BURNS:  Yes, sir. 
2 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you so much
3 for your work on that.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   And what Mr. Graham
5 means to say, let’s get that out because that’s prime
6 real estate and we need to get it on the market.  Prime
7 real estate.
8 RAY GRAHAM:  I know it costs us a
9 lot of money.  I don’t care if we give it away. 
10 Because I mean those roofs are expensive.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman Glenn
12 Davis.  Mr. Davis.
13 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
14 Chairman.  I’d just like to recognize Ms. Estella
15 Williams and her son and I guess her great grandson in
16 the audience tonight.  Ms. Estelle is ---
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Out of retirement.
18 GLENN DAVIS:  Yeah, she’s out of
19 retirement again.  I tell you, I want to be like her
20 when I grow up.  That’s all, Mr. Chairman.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
22 Mr. Sanders?
23 BRETT SANDERS:   Nothing at this
24 time, sir.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
26 Mr. Jimmy Davis, Councilman Davis.
27 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
28 Chair.  I want to welcome Fox 21 here tonight.  I
29 appreciate them coming out.  I promise you, we’re not
30 always this boring.  
31 But I do want to say a word, and he’s not here to 
32 -- for me to sing his praises.  I grew up watching Paul
33 Brown on the news.  And I grew up with his children,
34 Kelly Jo and Shawn at Wren High School.  What a
35 wonderful family and what a wonderful example of the
36 community that Paul Brown represents.  And he does one
37 thing better than anybody else -- well, Mr. Burns does
38 a great job with this, too -- but he makes us look
39 good.  And I appreciate his family and all that he’s
40 meant to Anderson County.  And I just wanted to go on
41 record with that.  He’s just an unbelievable asset for
42 Anderson County.  Thank you, Mr. Chair.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.
44 I just want to say, too, echo Councilman Graham’s
45 thoughts on the detention center.  Want to appreciate
46 all the hard work everybody has done so far on that. 
47 And there’s still a lot of hard work to do and get
48 done.  But at least we’ve got the ball rolling.  And
49 hopefully that’ll satisfy some people as far as knowing
50 we are serious about getting something another done, as



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - September 20, 2022
30

1 far as the government people and make it better for the
2 people that works out there; more safer facility. 
3 I want to thank Mr. Burns and his staff for the
4 great job they do and continue to do for the citizens
5 of Anderson County.  We do appreciate that.
6 And I want to thank Ms. Williams and her family for
7 all what she’s done for Anderson County.  I’ve had a
8 lot of comments, people talking about her coming back
9 out of retirement and being out there at work.  Been
10 through there myself.  We appreciate you.  You’re a
11 great, great role model for everyone.  You really are.
12 And we appreciate you and your family so much.  Y’all
13 are definitely part of what makes Anderson County
14 great.  I appreciate you.
15 I want to appreciate my Council members for all the
16 hard work they do.  Meeting be adjourned.
17
18 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:22 P.M.)



State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING

OCTOBER 4, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
JIMMY DAVIS
GLENN DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS
    



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 4, 2022
2

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the special presentation meeting of
3 Tuesday October the 4th of Anderson County Council,
4 2022, to order.  I’d like to welcome each and every one
5 of you here.  And thank y’all for coming out tonight. 
6 First order of business will be resolutions and
7 proclamations.  
8 It’ll be 2(a), 2022-056.  
9 THIS IS A RESOLUTION EXPRESSING APPRECIATION AND
10 GRATITUDE TO OCONEE COUNTY FOR THEIR ASSISTANCE WITH
11 THE ANDERSON COUNTY REGIONAL AIRPORT AND OTHER MATTERS
12 RELATED THERETO.
13 Whereas, the Anderson County Council wishes to
14 thank the Oconee County Council, Administrator, Airport
15 Manager, and Staff for their generous offer to assist
16 the Anderson County Regional Airport.
17 Whereas, the Oconee and Pickens airports are
18 temporarily operating at a much reduced level due to
19 the airport receiving large airport upgrade grants,
20 much of their air traffic is temporarily coming to the
21 Anderson County Airport.
22 Whereas, their influx of traffic is occurring
23 during one of the busiest times of the year.  Oconee
24 County has been vital in allowing air visitors to still
25 access tourism and football activities in our beautiful
26 tri-county area.
27 Whereas, Anderson and Oconee County share in many
28 joint ventures such as Tri-County Technical College and
29 many others.  This generosity exceeds those normal
30 bounds.
31 Now, therefore, be it resolved the Anderson County
32 Council sincerely appreciates the spirit and generosity
33 extended to our county by the Oconee County Council and
34 further illustrates our special and common interest in
35 our beautiful part of South Carolina.
36 Resolved in a meeting duly assembled this 4th day
37 of July (verbatim), 2022.
38 I put that in the form of a motion.
39 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr. Brett
41 Sanders.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Anyone
42 have anything?
43 BRETT SANDERS:   Mr. Chairman?
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders.
45 BRETT SANDERS:   I would just like to
46 thank them personally.  I was out there I think Friday
47 and Saturday.  The last home game, as well.  Those guys
48 have really worked hard.  I want to thank Mr. Garrison. 
49 And I would recommend that any council member up here
50 on the next home game ride out to the airport.  It’s



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 4, 2022
3

1 amazing.  And I appreciate all the hard work and
2 efforts.  Please let Mr. Jeff Garrison know, as well.
3 Thank you, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Appreciate it. 
5 Anyone else?  I’d just like to echo Councilman Sanders’
6 sentiments.  It’s a good day for everybody to be able
7 to work together and get this done.  It’s for the
8 betterment for our community and best for our citizens
9 of Anderson County and everybody around to show a good
10 light, good cooperation.  It’s my understanding
11 everything went smooth.  I know some people that’s out
12 there and like it.  And they really have commented and
13 bragged on the airport and how it was handled and how
14 it run.  I want to really thank Oconee County for
15 stepping up and allowing this to happen.  
16 So at this time if there’s nobody else, I’m going
17 to call for a vote.  All in favor of the motion, show
18 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
19 carries unanimously. 
20 Mr. Garrison, will you step up and get this and
21 make sure they get this?  Anybody from Oconee here?
22 JIMMY DAVIS:  Yes, sir. 
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Tell them to step on
24 up, too.
25 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
26 APPLAUSE
27 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to move
28 on now to item 2(b), 2022-058.  It’s a resolution by
29 the Honorable Councilman Ray Graham.  Councilman
30 Graham.
31 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
32 Chairman.  Mr. Chairman, I bring this in the form of a
33 motion for Resolution 2022-058.
34 THIS IS A RESOLUTION TO HONOR AND RECOGNIZE MARY B.
35 FORRESTER FOR HER EXTRAORDINARY SERVICE TO THE TOWN OF
36 IVA AND ANDERSON COUNTY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED
37 THERETO.
38 WHEREAS, a life-long resident of Iva, Mary
39 Forrester has served the citizens of the Town of Iva
40 and Anderson County for many years with exceptional
41 dedication and passion; and
42 WHEREAS, she has served as a poll manager for
43 Anderson County Elections for over twenty-five years,
44 where she has maintained a high level of integrity and
45 impartiality in carrying out her duties and
46 responsibilities; and
47 WHEREAS, Mary was elected to the Iva Town Council
48 in 2004, having served for eighteen consecutive years
49 as councilwoman and mayor pro-temp, where she has
50 brought respect, honor and integrity by leading by



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 4, 2022
4

1 example, exhibiting the highest level of ethics and
2 maintaining a superior moral character; and
3 WHEREAS, she is active in many church and civic
4 organizations, including the Sunrise Seniors, Circle of
5 Hope Widows, Iva Antique Body Shop, and many others
6 where she exhibits outstanding community spirit and
7 maintains a demeanor that has made participating with
8 her a pleasure for all; and
9 WHEREAS, by demonstrating unwavering commitment,
10 willingness, and the ability to understand and respond
11 to the concerns of the people she so lovingly serves,
12 she has a made a substantial contribution to the
13 betterment of the Town of Iva and Anderson County.
14 I bring this in the form of a motion.  Let it be
15 resolved in a meeting duly assembled this 4th day of
16 October, 2022.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
18 Graham; second Ms. Wilson.  Open the floor up for
19 discussion.  Mr. Graham.
20 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman.  Ms.
21 Forrester, just want to personally thank you for all
22 your contributions you have given the town, the support
23 you’ve given me since I’ve been on Council and also as
24 a business owner down in Iva.  People like you are
25 definitely what makes our small town community what it
26 is today.  
27 It’s truly a pleasure working with you.  Thank you
28 so much for everything that you do for the community.
29 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Anyone
30 else?  I’d like to echo Mr. Graham’s, Councilman
31 Graham’s, sentiments.  People like you are what makes
32 Anderson County.  Not just a small town, Anderson
33 County what it is.  And very, very thankful for your
34 service.  I think your family is very proud of you for
35 what you’ve done to serve the community.                
36           
37 Anyone else?  Call for the vote.  All in favor of
38 the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
39 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
40 Mr. Graham.
41 RAY GRAHAM:  Mr. Chairman, if we
42 could -- Ms. Forrester, if you and your family could
43 come up, we’d like to present this to you.  And Tim,
44 you, as well.
45 PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION
46 APPLAUSE
47 TOMMY DUNN:   That will conclude
48 this part of our Council meeting.  Meeting will be
49 adjourned.  We’ll meet back here at 6:30 to start our
50 regular Council meeting.



Anderson County Council - Special Presentation Meeting - October 4, 2022
5

1 (SPECIAL PRESENTATION MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:10 P.M.)



6

State of South Carolina   )

County  of     Anderson   )

ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL
 

COUNTY COUNCIL MEETING

OCTOBER 4, 2022

IN ATTENDANCE:
TOMMY DUNN, CHAIRMAN
RAY GRAHAM
BRETT SANDERS
JOHN WRIGHT
CINDY WILSON
GLENN DAVIS
JIMMY DAVIS

ALSO PRESENT:
RUSTY BURNS
LEON HARMON
JORDAN THAYER
RENEE WATTS



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
7

1 TOMMY DUNN:   At this time I’d
2 like to call the regular meeting of the Anderson County
3 Council to order on Tuesday, October the 4th.  I want
4 to welcome everyone here.  And thank y’all for coming
5 out tonight.  The first order is our invocation and
6 pledge of allegiance by Honorable Councilman Ray
7 Graham.  If we’d all rise, please.
8 RAY GRAHAM:  Let us pray.
9 INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE BY RAY GRAHAM
10 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to item
11 number 3 on the agenda is approval of the minutes of
12 September 20th.  We have not received them, so we’ll
13 not be doing that.  
14 Item number 4 is citizens comments.  As Mr. Harmon
15 calls your name, first go around is on agenda items
16 only.  You have three minutes.  Please address the
17 chair.  And when you get up, please state your name and
18 district for the record.  
19 Mr. Harmon.
20 LEON HARMON:  Mr. Chairman, no one
21 is signed up to speak.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
23 Harmon.  
24 Moving on to item number 5.  
25 PRESENTATION OF PROPOSED VETERANS MEMORIAL FOR THE
26 FREDDIE STOWERS VETERANS MEMORIAL PARK.
27 Mr. Burns, who is going to -- you’re going to
28 speak.  Come on up.  Get whatever you need to get. 
29 Podium or whatever, Mr. Burns, help him out what
30 whatever he needs to do.
31 RYAN HULON:  Good evening.  My
32 name is Ryan Hulon.  And I get the honor and pleasure
33 of being on this committee for the Veterans Memorial
34 Park.  First of all I’d like to thank y’all for taking
35 the time to speak with us today and let us show you
36 this presentation.  This is something that’s on the
37 minds of a lot of veterans in Anderson County.  We want
38 to make it where when people come to Anderson and they
39 see the Veterans Memorial, it sets a precedence of them
40 being able to go back and say, wow, look what this
41 generation has done.  
42 So without further ado, I’m going to introduce Rudy
43 and he’s going to go through the presentation.
44 RUDY RUETTIGER:  Thank you, Ryan. 
45 Thank you, Council.
46 So let me start with, as you can see on the slide
47 here, those pretty much speak for themselves with the
48 current memorial.  So what are we looking for with a
49 new memorial?
50 Well, pretty much this:  A Veterans Park for all



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
8

1 veterans.  But the biggest thing is who we name it
2 after.  There’s only one option we ever came up with
3 for this park, and that is name is after Freddie
4 Stowers.  He’s the only Metal of Honor recipient from
5 Anderson County.  It was basically a no-brainer for us
6 and it seems like that honor should be bestowed upon
7 him at this time.
8 Here’s the basic layout of this.  What we’re doing
9 is we have multiple walkways set in with ADA accessible
10 routes.  The southern end we have the flag in the
11 rotunda there.  That’ll be the state flag as you go
12 north.  Halfway there before the monument, you have
13 four benches of black granite.  And then when you get
14 to the monument itself, you have eight foot tall eighty
15 by eighty black granite slabs vertically.  In the
16 center is going to be the American Flag raised so
17 people can actually have an open forum there.  They can
18 address people inside the monument if they want to hold
19 events there.  Outside the monument you have the flag
20 for all five branches, to include space
21 (unintelligible) at this point, as well as having the
22 emblems on the outside of the wall next to those
23 monuments -- next to those flagpoles.  
24 On top of that, over by the South Carolina flag, we
25 also have donated picture benches, barbeques and other
26 things for recreational activities.  
27 The black granite benches I mentioned are these. 
28 They’re going to be covering Purple Hearts, Metal of
29 Honor, Prisoners of War and Missing in Action.  The
30 other important facet we wanted to add was the
31 Battlefield Cross in remembrance of those fallen in
32 combat.  It’s very near and dear to many of us who
33 actually fought in combat.  The concept for the flags
34 four mentioned branches, as well.  
35 Part of this was the idea of a paver to represent
36 the native Andersonians who served, as well.  The
37 original concept of the first monument, the existing
38 monument, is only Andersonians.  This is for people who
39 are veterans and are transplanted here, too.  In order
40 to be on the original monument, you had to be from
41 Anderson and all your information had to come from
42 Anderson.  This way, all the veterans who have moved
43 here can still have a marker here in Anderson.  
44 These monuments, icons and unit affiliations are
45 all acceptable.  As far as religious emblems, we’re
46 only using the VA’s approved religious icons.  That way
47 there is no muss or fuss with it.  It has to be
48 approved from that list.
49 I’m going to pass it off now to Norm Garrett who is
50 going to brief you on the committee.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
9

1 NORM GARRETT:  I want to thank you
2 for this opportunity to speak with you tonight on the
3 Veterans Memorial.  I want to do a real quick recap.  
4 The purpose of our Veterans Memorial with the
5 Freddie Stowers Memorial Veteran Park is to honor all
6 Anderson County veterans who served on active duty in
7 the military.  On the wall, the names of all the
8 veterans that are currently on the wall will be placed. 
9 We’ll not be adding any new names to the wall due to
10 how hard it is to verify all of them at this point. 
11 Additional veterans will be honored by pavers. 
12 Black pavers will be for Anderson County veterans.  All
13 of the veterans will be allowed to buy a gray granite
14 paver to put their information on.  We also want to
15 provide a family environment where residents can learn
16 about the six branches of military service.  Each
17 branch will have a wall.  We also -- the purpose of
18 this monument is to teach the sacrifices of our
19 veterans.  The wall will be used to document America’s
20 conflicts.  It also is there to provide a park-like
21 environment to encourage family activities.  And we
22 also want to develop, as Brian has already said, we
23 want to develop a monument and a park that other cities
24 will come to and like to emulate when they leave.
25 And I’d like to introduce the members of the
26 committee.  I’ve got about a thirty-minute presentation
27 just on the members.  So I’m paring it way down.  So
28 just the very basics of who’s on this committee.  
29 Jeremiah Palmer.  Jeremiah is from Belton, South
30 Carolina.  Served in the United States Marine Corp from
31 1968 to 1969.  Served in Vietnam, was wounded and was
32 awarded the Purple Heart.  One fact I’ll throw out
33 about Jeremiah Palmer is he is and has been the pastor
34 of New Broadmoor Baptist Church in Honea Path for the
35 past thirty-six years.  Very involved in our community.
36 Jimmy Burdette, Sr.  Jimmy was a native of Iva.  He
37 enlisted in the United States Army in 1966 and served
38 till 1969.  He served in both Germany and Vietnam. 
39 When he got out of the Army, he went to work for the
40 Anderson Police Force where he served for twenty-six
41 years.  When he retired from there he served with the
42 Federal Marshals in Anderson County for the remainder
43 of his career.
44 John Nixon served in the United States Army from
45 1966 to 1968.  He, too, went -- made trips to Vietnam
46 in 1968.  He returned and was a small business owner in
47 the area for twenty-seven years.
48 Ron Hulon, U.S. Army retired.  Ron joined the
49 United States Army in 1997, medically discharged in
50 2007 due to injuries.  He was medically retired in



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
10

1 2010.  He made multiple combat deployments to Kosovo,
2 Egypt, Afghanistan and Iraq.  Following service, as I
3 think most of you will know, he’s been very involved in
4 the community here.  He works for non-profits and he’s
5 now currently employed as Outreach and Veterans Support
6 Director for the Cancer Association of Anderson.
7 The remaining veterans are non-Anderson veterans. 
8 We tried to get as many Anderson veterans as we could,
9 but we ended up picking some that weren’t. 
10 Matt Muth (phonics).  There’s Matt over there. 
11 Matt is a native of Huntington, West Virginia.  Matt
12 served in the United States Marine Corp from 1983 to
13 1996.  Spent a short time in the U.S. Navy Reserve.  He
14 finished his career with the U.S. Army National Guard
15 from 2007 to 2015.  Matt has been deployed in the
16 Marine Corp to the Phillippines and again Operation
17 Deny Flight and in the National Guard he was deployed
18 to Iraq and Afghanistan.  Matt is currently the Veteran
19 Service Officer for Anderson County.
20 Dr. Howard Murphy, the United States Army Retired. 
21 I don’t have enough time to talk about him.  I really
22 don’t.  He enlisted in the South Carolina National
23 Guard in 1985, commissioned in 1989 through ROTC. 
24 Served in the U.S. Army and Army Reserve.  He retired
25 in 2019 with thirty-four years’ service.  He has
26 multiple command tours.  He’s currently Program
27 Coordinator and Associate Professor for Anderson
28 University’s Emergency Services Management and Homeland
29 Security degree programs within the School of Public
30 Administration -- Public Service and Administration. 
31 And he also serves as part-time emergency management
32 coordinator for Anderson County Sheriff’s Office
33 Emergency Management Division.  
34 Rudy Ruettiger (phonics) is a native of
35 (unintelligible).  He’s also U.S. Army retired.  He
36 enlisted in the United States Army in 2003.  Was
37 medically retired in 2010.  He was also awarded the
38 Purple Heart.  He had one deployment to Afghanistan and
39 two to Iraq.  Rudy, once he retired from the Army, he
40 attended Clemson and has a bachelor of arts degree in
41 history from Clemson.  And he’s working on his
42 certificate for secondary education.
43 My name is Norm Garrett.  I’m a native of Mount
44 Pleasant, South Carolina.  I’m a Major in the United
45 States Army retired.  I enlisted in the United State’s
46 Navy in 1976 and served till 1984.  Spent one year in
47 the South Carolina National Guard while I was a Clemson
48 student.  Was given a direct commission as an
49 engineering duty officer in the United States Naval
50 Reserve once I graduated from Clemson.  I served seven



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
11

1 years as an engineering duty officer.  As a result of
2 the peace dividend I transferred to the United States
3 Army Reserve where I completed my time in the Army Corp
4 of Engineers and I retired with twenty-two years
5 service in uniform.
6 We also have two members of our committee who are
7 non-veterans.  And that is -- and I don’t think you
8 need much introduction on either one of these ladies. 
9 It’s Pam Christopher, President and CEO of the Anderson
10 County Chamber of Commerce.  I’m sure she’s well known. 
11 And Angie Stringer, the Executive Director of the
12 Cancer Association of Anderson.  And Angie is also
13 currently in the South Carolina State Guard.  
14 So that’s a quick run-down of our committee.  
15 Do you have any questions?
16 TOMMY DUNN:   Does anyone have any
17 questions?  I might have mentioned it.  What are y’all
18 -- what’s y’all’s goal to raise?
19 RYAN HULON:  Right now with
20 inflation the way it is, we’re looking at 3.5 million
21 for the whole park.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Anyone have
23 any questions or comments?  Ms. Wilson.
24 CINDY WILSON:   It’s such an honor
25 to have all these incredible people to come and talk
26 with us tonight.  We have been so well-served by you
27 and we hope we’re serving you well, to boot.
28 I was sharing with two of my colleagues earlier,
29 about twenty years ago this situation came up.  The
30 current monument had just gone in place apparently at a
31 cost of about a quarter of a million dollars.  But
32 people were already complaining about the placement and
33 the quality, very difficult for people to get to.  We
34 had a group that was interested in getting a committee
35 together, and it was recommended that maybe the garden
36 clubs get involved with our various veterans groups. 
37 But we got shot down.  So I’m so glad to see this going
38 forward now.  Because it really is not, as it stands
39 now, a worthy recommendation for what you wonderful
40 people have been through.  Your expense for our safety
41 and well-being.  So we’ll do whatever we can to help. 
42 Thank you.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
44 JOHN WRIGHT:  Mr. Chairman.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman Wright. 
46 Then we’ll get Mr. Davis.
47 JOHN WRIGHT:  Ryan, I’m just
48 curious.  I know this has been kind of in the works
49 maybe for a while or y’all have been talking about it. 
50 Are y’all having like an official kickoff or have you



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
12

1 already done that?  How far along are you to that goal
2 or is this ---
3 RYAN HULON:  This is our official
4 kickoff right here.  We wanted to speak to y’all first.
5 JOHN WRIGHT:  That’s good.  So
6 y’all are on the front-end of this thing.
7 RYAN HULON:  Yes.
8 JOHN WRIGHT:  Cool.  Good.  Thank
9 y’all for being here and obviously for all your
10 service.  It means a lot.  And I think this is a
11 wonderful endeavor.  And I’d love nothing more than to
12 see this come to fruition.  So thank you.
13 TOMMY DUNN:   Councilman Glenn
14 Davis.
15 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
16 Chairman.  Being a veteran myself, I really am looking
17 forward to this.  I think it’s long overdue.  We need
18 to recognize those who have served and have given their
19 time to service.  Anything I can do, I’m willing to go
20 out -- like I say, as being a veteran.  I appreciate
21 you guys for coming tonight.  
22 And Ryan, we’ve worked together on some things. 
23 Whatever I can do to help expedite this to help you
24 guys get it start, I’m willing.  I feel like I’m a part
25 of it, too, as being a veteran that served in the
26 military.  And again, thank you guys.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Sanders. 
28 Councilman Sanders.
29 BRETT SANDERS:   I was wondering if
30 you -- if we have your information or a page set up or
31 ways to get people involved so they can donate and make
32 sure to (inaudible).
33 RYAN HULON:  Yes, I will.  I’m
34 actually working on a website right now that people
35 will be able to go directly to and donate.
36 BRETT SANDERS:   Make sure that you
37 let her know.  And I appreciate each and every one of
38 you guys for what you’ve done and continue to do. 
39 Thank you very much.
40 CINDY WILSON:   Do y’all have an
41 account set up yet?
42 RYAN HULON:   We’re working with
43 Foothills Foundation for our -- they’ll be holding all
44 the account stuff for us.
45 CINDY WILSON:   You can come back to
46 us when y’all get set up.  Thank you.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?  I just
48 want to say any way County Council can help, let us
49 know.  We’ll do all we can do.  We’ve got a budget
50 coming up, you know, in July.  We’ll see what we can



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
13

1 do.  I think it’s a -- appreciate what all y’all have
2 done, all our veterans have done.  Appreciate y’all. 
3 We’ve talked about it for sometime.  I know Mr. Burns
4 is a big supporter of this.  Let me know what Council
5 can do.  I know we can do the grading work out there. 
6 Y’all have got a good spot.  I’ve seen the spot.  It’s
7 a great spot.  And Mr. Burns can help y’all get a
8 kickoff.  We need a better kickoff than what we’ve got
9 here tonight.  Appreciate y’all letting us be the first
10 ones.  And also, want to make sure to keep this on our
11 TV station running and everything going around what
12 y’all have done.  Y’all have served this country.  We
13 appreciate it.  Shouldn’t have to be going out here
14 toting this load by yourself.  We want to help y’all. 
15 This is very much deserving and needs to be in a place
16 of prominence.  And I’ve seen some of this stuff before
17 when we was out there.  Y’all have got a good idea and
18 a good thing.  I think y’all have got an outstanding
19 committee of folks.  And anyway we can help, like I
20 said, let Mr. Burns know or call us and we’ll be glad
21 to.  Thank y’all very much.
22 RYAN HULON:  Thank you.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Ryan, one last thing
24 for y’all.  I know y’all have got your committee.  I
25 don’t know if y’all have reached out to him or not, but
26 y’all need to reach out to Tom Allen, too, past
27 councilman.  Tom is loafing.  All he’s doing is
28 sleeping.  He’s looking for stuff to do. 
29 RYAN HULON:  Give me a number;
30 I’ll get a hold of him.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all.
32 JIMMY DAVIS:  It would be a good
33 idea if we could get Paul Brown to do an interview and
34 put it on social media.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   I’m sure Mr. Burns
36 is working on it.  Yes, sir.  Thank y’all.
37 We’re going to move on now to item number 6(a),
38 ordinance third reading, 6(a), 2022-036, an Ordinance
39 to amend Ordinance #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning
40 Ordinance, as adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the
41 Anderson County Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- .92
42 acres from C-1N (Neighborhood Commercial District) to
43 C-2 (Highway Commercial District) on a parcel of land,
44 identified as 5930 Highway 187 in the Mount Tabor
45 Precinct shown in Deed Book 13946 Page 196.  The parcel
46 is further identified as TMS #43-00-12-011.  This is in
47 Councilman Sanders’ district.  This District 4.  
48 Do we have a motion to move this forward?
49 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a second?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
14

1 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
2 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Councilman
4 Jimmy Davis.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Ms.
5 Hunter, do you have anything?  
6 Moving on, all in favor of the motion, show of
7 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
8 unanimously. 
9 Moving on to item number 6(b), 2022-039, an
10 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
11 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park)
12 of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge
13 the park.  This is Project Care.  
14 Mr. Nelson, you got anything you want to say on
15 this before we go into public hearing?
16 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman, this
17 comes to us from Greenville County for an unannounced
18 project.  It allows them to access state benefits for
19 their project and we have the same reciprocal agreement
20 for our projects.  This comes to Council as a
21 recommendation from staff.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   We’ll go into public
23 hearing on this.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
24 matter, step forward, state your name and district and
25 address the chair.  Anyone at all?  Anyone?  
26 Seeing and hearing none, the public hearing will be
27 closed.  Do we have a motion to move this on?
28 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
29 JIMMY DAVIS:  So moved.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Councilman
31 Jimmy Davis; second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All
32 in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
33 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
34 We’ll be moving on to item number 6(c), 2022-040,
35 an Ordinance to transfer certain parcels of real
36 property to the Town of Pelzer; and other matters
37 related thereto.
38 Mr. Burns, do you just want to highlight this in
39 case people don’t know?
40 RUSTY BURNS:  Mr. Chairman, these
41 are in essence leftover mill parcels, property of no
42 real value to us.  We have liability by holding them. 
43 The town of Pelzer has requested we transfer ownership
44 to them.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   This will be a
46 public hearing.  Anyone wishing to speak to this
47 matter, please step forward, state your name and
48 district and address the chair, please.  Anyone at all?
49 Seeing none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do
50 we have a motion to move this forward?



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
15

1 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
3 Do we have a second?
4 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
5 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
6 Davis.  Any discussion?
7 CINDY WILSON:   May I quickly point
8 out ---
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, Ms. Wilson.
10 CINDY WILSON:   --- that this is a
11 really cool project and company.  We’ve done some help
12 for them in the past and it’s just amazing what they --
13 what goes through their company over there.  And it
14 doesn’t hurt that they’re paying benefits packages of a
15 hundred thousand dollars average annual salary.  That’s
16 pretty cool.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.  I’m
18 sorry.  I think you’re on the wrong -- we’re on (c).
19 CINDY WILSON:   Okay.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re on the town of
21 Pelzer, giving them their thing.
22 CINDY WILSON:   Okay.  I’ve got it.
23 TOMMY DUNN:   Anyone else?
24 CINDY WILSON:   I flipped to the
25 wrong tab.
26 TOMMY DUNN:   You’re fine.  You
27 make -- most of the time it’s me messing up, so don’t
28 worry about it.  You’re making me look good.  I need
29 all the help I can get.  
30 We’ve got a motion.  Is there anymore discussion? 
31 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
32 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
33 Moving on to item number 6(d), 2022-041, an
34 Ordinance to transfer a right-of-way interest in real
35 property to Big Water Marina, LLC; and other matters
36 related thereto. 
37 Before we go into a public hearing, this is
38 property that we acquired and needed to do some road
39 work down there.  This is property we didn’t actually
40 use or need, so we’re giving it back to the people that
41 gave it to us to start with because they need it. 
42 That’s it in a nutshell.  
43 This will be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
44 speak to this matter, please step forward and state
45 your name and district and address the chair, please. 
46 Anyone at all?  Anyone?  Seeing and hearing none, the
47 public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a motion to
48 move this forward?
49 RAY GRAHAM:  Motion.
50 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Ray



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
16

1 Graham.  Do we have a second?
2 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
4 Davis.  Any discussion?  Hearing none, all in favor of
5 the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
6 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
7 We’re going to move on to item number (e),
8 2022-037.  This is a reconsideration of an Ordinance
9 authorizing the execution and delivery of a fee in lieu
10 of tax agreement by and between Anderson County, South
11 Carolina, and Gray Industrial Realty 7, LLC (formerly
12 known to the County as "Project Little Brother") with
13 respect to certain economic development property in the
14 County, whereby such property will be subject to
15 certain payments in lieu of taxes, including the
16 provision of certain special source credits; and other
17 matters related thereto. 
18 This comes back to us because it slipped through
19 the cracks about a public hearing and notice in the
20 paper.  So we’re going to have a motion to hear ---
21 BRETT SANDERS:   Mr. Chairman.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Wait just a minute,
23 Mr. Sanders.  We’re going to have a motion to
24 reconsider this.  We vote on that.  And to give us our
25 third reading, come back in our proper days.  So it’ll
26 also be a motion to table this.  Neither one of these
27 motions are debatable.  They’re for consideration.  The
28 public hearing is what we have on third reading, in a
29 nutshell, so we want to reconsider this and get it
30 straightened out and make it -- dot all i’s and cross
31 all t’s and legal things.
32 Mr. Sanders.
33 BRETT SANDERS:   Yes, sir.  I want to
34 make a motion (inaudible).
35 CINDY WILSON:   And I’ll second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion by
37 Mr. Sanders to open up for reconsideration; second Ms.
38 Wilson.  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
39 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
40 unanimously. 
41 Mr. Sanders.
42 BRETT SANDERS:   Yes, sir. 
43 (Inaudible).
44 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
46 second Ms. Wilson.  Tabling is not a debatable motion. 
47 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
48 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
49 Thank y’all.
50 Moving on to item number 7, Ordinance second



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
17

1 reading, 7(a), 2022-045, an Ordinance to approve a real
2 estate lease with Clemson University for space in the
3 Anderson County 1428 Pearman Dairy Road Facility; and
4 other matters related thereto.
5 This is the old Ryobi plant, Singer plant, TTI
6 plant on Pearman Dairy Road.  Do we have a motion to
7 put this on the floor?
8 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion by Ms.
10 Wilson; second by Mr. Jimmy Davis.  Open the floor up
11 for discussion.  Seeing and hearing none, all in favor
12 of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign. 
13 Show the motion carries unanimously. 
14 Moving on to item number 7(b), 2022-046.  This will
15 be a public hearing tonight.  Again, I’ll recuse
16 myself.  As I said earlier, I’ve got a business
17 arrangement -- nothing to do with this, but I’m
18 building this fellow a house that owns this property,
19 Mr. Craig Shiflet (phonics).  I recuse myself and turn
20 the meeting over to Vice Chairman Brett Sanders. 
21 Councilman Sanders -- Chairman Sanders.
22 BRETT SANDERS:   Ordinance second
23 reading, 2022-046, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance
24 #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as
25 adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County
26 Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 91.78 acres from R-20
27 (Single-Family Residential District) to 1-2 (Industrial
28 Park District) on a parcel of land, identified as 3508
29 in the Centerville Station A Precinct shown in Deed
30 Book 15537 page 311.  The parcel further identified as
31 TMS# 95-00-03-006. 
32 This will be -- do I have a motion to put this on
33 the floor?
34 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
35 BRETT SANDERS:   Second?
36 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
37 BRETT SANDERS:   All right.  This is
38 going to be a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
39 address this matter, please state your name, district
40 and address the temporary chair.  Seeing none.  Any
41 discussion?  Any discussion on this?  Ms. Hunter, do
42 you have anything you want to put on here?  Did they --
43 I know we had notes from last time to make sure no
44 commercial traffic onto Dixon Road.  Is that still ---
45 ALICIA HUNTER:  Yes, sir, Mr.
46 Chairman.  That still is on the table.
47 BRETT SANDERS:   All right.  That’s
48 all I had on my notes.  All in ---
49 CINDY WILSON:   May I?
50 BRETT SANDERS:   I’m sorry, Ms.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
18

1 Wilson.  
2 CINDY WILSON:   I had a question. 
3 At the last meeting we were given a new site plan and
4 it reserved all of the frontage on Dixon Road for R-20
5 development.  And there was a nice buffer around the
6 perimeter of the property, but not adjoining the R-20. 
7 So do we have a requirement that they put the buffer
8 behind ---
9 ALICIA HUNTER:  Yes, ma’am.  In the
10 regular zoning ordinance when we start doing the site
11 plan review with staff, there’s a section in the
12 ordinance that does require an additional buffer.
13 CINDY WILSON:   Okay.  Thank you.
14 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, Ms.
15 Wilson.  Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion. 
16 It’s unanimous.  The motion carries.
17 Will someone get Mr. Dunn, please?  Tell him he’s
18 the chairman again.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
20 Sanders.
21 BRETT SANDERS:   Thank you, sir.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to item
23 number 7(c), 2022-047, an Ordinance to amend Ordinance
24 #99-004, the Anderson County Zoning Ordinance, as
25 adopted July 20, 1999, by amending the Anderson County
26 Official Zoning Map to rezone +/- 16.3 acres from R-20
27 (Single-Family Residential District) to C-3 (Commercial
28 District) on a parcel of land, identified as 54.22
29 acres on Beaverdam Road in Williamston Mill Precinct
30 shown in Deed Book 11140 page 228.  The parcel further
31 identified as TMS# 220-00-08-007.  
32 This is in District 7's district.  At this time
33 we’ll go into a public hearing.  Anyone wishing to
34 speak to this matter, please step forward and state
35 your name and district and address the chair, please. 
36 Anyone at all?  Public hearing.  Seeing and hearing
37 none, the public hearing will be closed.  Do we have a
38 motion to move this forward?
39 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
40 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
41 Do we have a second?
42 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Second by Mr. Glenn
44 Davis.  Any discussion?  Seeing and hearing none, all
45 in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
46 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
47 Moving on to item number 8(a), Ordinance first
48 reading, 2022-048, an Ordinance authorizing an
49 infrastructure financing agreement on behalf of
50 Tetramer Technologies LLC and Hoobastank Industries



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
19

1 LLC, for a new project (Tetramet 2) to be located in an
2 already existing jointly owned and operated industrial
3 park in conjunction with Greenville County (Tetramet
4 MCIP), and other matters related thereto.  This is in
5 title only.  Mr. Burriss Nelson.
6 BURRISS NELSON:  Mr. Chairman,
7 members of Council, thank you.  This came to us in 2014
8 as Project Choco.  It was a -- Tetramet was a fledgling
9 research and development company that was just trying
10 to get on its feet and operational.  And Council
11 offered a generous incentive agreement that allowed
12 them to become operational.  They have since created a
13 total of twenty-eight jobs with an average payroll of
14 over a hundred thousand -- thank you, Ms. Wilson -- a
15 year.  And their capital investment, a little over a
16 million dollars.  And they, over that period of time,
17 created a product that is a substitute additive to
18 chocolate that reduces the fat content by at least
19 fifty percent.  It does not change the taste.  Does not
20 change the color.  You couldn’t tell that it’s much
21 better for you to eat it with that additive.
22 But they have reached their -- are sustainable and
23 we’re changing the fee agreement as we agreed upon six
24 and a half years ago to a more reasonable fee agreement
25 with a seventy-five percent SSRC for the next three
26 years, and a fifty percent SSRC for the next eleven
27 years.  And that will take them out to the total of
28 their twenty years in their agreement.  
29 This comes to Council as a recommendation from
30 staff for an excellent project.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you, Mr.
32 Nelson.
33 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
35 to move this forward?
36 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
37 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
38 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Brett
39 Sanders and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
40 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
41 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
42 Moving on to item number 8(b), first reading,
43 2022-049, an Ordinance authorizing the execution and
44 delivery of a fee in lieu of tax agreement by and
45 between Anderson County, South Carolina and a company
46 or companies known to the County at this time as
47 Project Cove with respect to certain economic
48 development property in the county, whereby such
49 property will be subject to certain payments in lieu of
50 taxes, including the provision of certain special



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
20

1 source credits; and other matters related thereto. 
2 Mr. Nelson.
3 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
4 Chairman.  This comes to Council as a private entity
5 investing in a defunct campground near Green Pond
6 Landing.  It will take that project and develop a
7 hundred and thirty-five campsites for motor homes, full
8 hook-up, with all the amenities that go along with
9 that, including ten mini cabins at that facility.  They
10 have agreed to partner with Anderson County in
11 developing sewer, a lift station and force main to --
12 that will additionally supply sewer service to Green
13 Pond.  This is a 6.8 million dollar capital investment.
14 Currently creating three jobs with an average pay of
15 twenty-two dollars an hour.  The property tax that was
16 paid on that property last year was five thousand two
17 hundred sixty-two dollars.  Projected first year,
18 seventeen thousand three hundred and fifty.  And over
19 thirty years, 2.7 million dollars.  Communuity impact
20 first year, ninety-two thousand.  And over twenty
21 years, 2.8 million.  
22 This comes to Council as a recommendation from
23 staff.
24 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
25 to move this forward?
26 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
27 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
28 Do we have a second?
29 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
30 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
31 Davis.  Now open the floor up for discussion?  Have any
32 questions or comments or anything?
33 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the
34 motion, show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show
35 the motion carries unanimously. 
36 Moving on to item number 8(c), 2022-050, an
37 Ordinance to amend an agreement for the development of
38 a joint county industrial and business park (2010 Park)
39 of Anderson and Greenville Counties so as to enlarge
40 the park to include certain property of Project Cove;
41 and other matters related thereto.
42 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
43 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
45 Have a second?
46 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
48 Davis.  Open the floor up for discussion.  This is just
49 to put in the park -- this is the first one we just
50 talked about and voted on.  This is just to put it in



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
21

1 the joint park of Greenville.  We do this to make it
2 give them a fee in lieu of thing.  Mr. Nelson, you got
3 anything you want to add to that?
4 BURRISS NELSON:  That’s perfect. 
5 That’s exactly right, sir.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore discussion? 
7 Seeing and hearing none, all in favor of the motion,
8 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
9 carries unanimously. 
10 We’re going to move on to item number 9(a), 
11 Resolution 2022-057, a Resolution authorizing the
12 execution and delivery of an inducement agreement by
13 and between Anderson County, South Carolina and Project
14 Cove, whereby, under certain conditions, Anderson
15 County will execute a fee in lieu of tax and special
16 source credit agreement with respect to a project in
17 the county whereby the project would be subject to
18 payment of certain fees in lieu of taxes, and whereby
19 project/company will be provided certain credits
20 against fee payments in reimbursement of investment in
21 related qualified infrastructure; and other matters
22 related thereto.
23 Do we have a motion to put this on the floor?
24 CINDY WILSON:   So moved.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Ms. Wilson. 
26 We have a second by -- who seconded that?  Brett
27 Sanders.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Mr.
28 Nelson, do you have anything?
29 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes.  Thank you, Mr.
30 Chairman.  This just puts the contractual agreement
31 between the county and the company in an outline form. 
32 And it’s the inducement resolution for that project. 
33 Thank you, sir.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore discussion? 
35 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
36 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
37 Yes, sir.
38 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
39 TOMMY DUNN:   You know, this is
40 scary because I was just fixing -- have a point of
41 privilege to let him talk about that a few minutes. 
42 I’m rubbing off on you and this is getting scary.
43 Mr. Nelson, if you would just talk about it.  I was
44 out there today.  This was going on at the Civic Center
45 for our young people coming up.  Was it five thousand
46 or eight thousand students?
47 BURRISS NELSON:  Five thousand,
48 that’s correct.
49 TOMMY DUNN:   Five thousand
50 students in two days.  That’s remarkable.  And the



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
22

1 companies out there.  Mr. Nelson.
2 BURRISS NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
3 Chairman and Mr. Burns.  We have this every year.  It’s
4 called the AOP Showcase.  It stands for Anderson,
5 Oconee and Pickens.  The three counties bring all
6 eighth graders because that’s the year that they make
7 some decisions about their education future and
8 actually put it in writing and kind of solidify that.  
9 But we try to expose them to the manufacturers in
10 all three counties.  Arthrex will be there with a
11 display.  Borg Warner from Oconee will be there. 
12 Multiple companies will be there displaying what they
13 do and helping young people understand that
14 manufacturing is not like it was forty or fifty years
15 ago.  It’s totally changed.  It’s high tech, high
16 skill, and provides opportunities for them to make a
17 substantial income without having to spend four years
18 in college.  If they want to go to college, they’ll
19 also open the doors for them to be able to get the
20 company to pay for their education and they don’t have
21 to wind up with any student debt at all.  So it is a
22 good exposure for five thousand eighth graders.  It’s
23 like herding cats.  But it’s pretty well an oiled
24 machine.  They’ve got buses coming in and out. 
25 Teachers give the students document surveys so that
26 they have to go through and pick out three or four of
27 the industries and write down all -- basically do a 
28 little interview with those people at each one of the
29 booths that they choose.  It’s a good experience, a
30 good opportunity.  And Anderson County gets a lot of
31 good play out of it.  It brings all the other school
32 districts to Anderson County.  Thank you, sir.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir.  Thank you
34 and your staff.  There’s a lot of good companies out
35 there participating in this, too.
36 BURRISS NELSON:  Yes, sir.  Well,
37 it’s really good companies, Michelin and others. 
38 However, the governor of South Carolina will be there
39 tomorrow.  I think he arrives about twelve or twelve
40 thirty and speaks ---
41 TOMMY DUNN:   You wouldn’t want to
42 take a bet on that, would you?  
43 BURRISS NELSON:  He got a new watch. 
44 But he’ll be speaking tomorrow right after lunch. 
45 Thank you.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank y’all.  Anyone
47 have anything else?  
48 At this time if there’s no objection, we’re going
49 to take about a five minute break.
50 BREAK



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
23

1 TOMMY DUNN:   Call the meeting
2 back in order.  We’re going to move on to item number
3 10, change orders and bid approvals.  
4 The first one will be 10(a), Bid #23-008, Waste
5 Tire Recycling.  Who wants to handle this?  Mr. Burns,
6 I nominate you.
7 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
8 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
9 to move this forward?
10 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
11 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Brett
12 Sanders and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?  All in
13 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
14 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
15 Moving on to bid number 10(b), Bid #23-009,
16 Articulating Hauler.  
17 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
18 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
19 to move this forward?  Do we have a second?
20 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
21 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Sanders. 
22 Open the floor up for discussion.
23 CINDY WILSON:   Very quick, this was
24 in our budget; correct?
25 TOMMY DUNN:   That’s what I was
26 just fixing to say, it’s in our budget and it comes out
27 of their enterprise funds, which is an enterprise fund
28 they self support.
29 BRETT SANDERS:   And the company is
30 from Piedmont, so it’s a local company.  That’s good.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   That is good.
32 Anymore discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
33 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
34 carries unanimously. 
35 We’re going to move on to item number (c), 10(c), 
36 Bid #23-010, Asbestos Abatement/Jail Site Buildings. 
37 Mr. Burns.
38 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible.)
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Do we have a motion
40 to move this forward?
41 BRETT SANDERS:   So moved.
42 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
43 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Sanders;
44 second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion?
45 BRETT SANDERS:   This is also a local
46 Piedmont company.
47 TOMMY DUNN:   Good to know. 
48 Anyone else?  All in favor of the motion, show of
49 hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
50 unanimously. 



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
24

1 We’re going to move on to item number 10, Change
2 Order for Fleet Building and release of retainage.
3 I’ll ask somebody to make a motion that we move
4 this on with the stipulation that they meet certain
5 requirements and get approval from our administrator
6 and our shop foreman and David Hendrix has seen over
7 that.  Those three check it off and say yes.  We’re
8 needing, my understanding, blue prints as the building
9 was built, all close-out documents including operating
10 manuals for mechanical, electrical, plumbing and life
11 saving equipment.  Warranties for each mechanical
12 equipment.  Owner’s satisfaction and completion of all
13 punch list items and walk-through training for the
14 county staff on all mechanical, electrical, plumbing
15 and life savings.  It’s gone long enough and they want
16 their money.  It’s not unreasonable to ask for. 
17 Somebody want to make a motion on that?
18 RAY GRAHAM:  So moved.
19 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Ray
20 Graham.  Do we have a second?  
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  Second.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Jimmy
23 Davis.  Councilman Davis.  Any discussion?  All in
24 favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed like
25 sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
26 We’re going to move on now to approval of the MOU
27 between Anderson County, Starr-Iva Water & Sewer
28 District and Lollis Metals, Incorporated.  Do we have a
29 motion to move this forward?  
30 RAY GRAHAM:  Motion.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Motion Mr. Ray
32 Graham.  Do we have a second?
33 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
34 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Brett
36 Sanders.  Open the floor up for discussion.  Mr. Burns,
37 you got anything you want to say?  Is this good?
38 RUSTY BURNS:  (Inaudible) many
39 expansions.  We’re doing this in partnership with
40 Starr-Iva Water Company and Anderson County and Lollis
41 Metals.  All will be participating.  Our portion will
42 increase from the previous thing that was approved by
43 council.  That’s why we brought it back.
44 TOMMY DUNN:   Anymore discussion? 
45 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
46 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
47 We’re going to move on to item number 12, requests
48 by Council members.  Ms. Wilson.
49 CINDY WILSON:   Thank you, Mr.
50 Chairman.  Tonight from District 7's recreation



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
25

1 account, may we appropriate to each of the four
2 municipalities in District 7, that would be Pelzer,
3 West Pelzer, Williamston and Honea Path, five thousand
4 dollars a piece for their projects and programs.  And I
5 put that in the form of a motion.
6 We have a motion by Ms. Wilson.  Do we have a
7 second?
8 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
9 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Brett
10 Sanders, Councilman Sanders.  Any discussion?  All in
11 favor of Ms. Wilson’s motion, show of hands.  All
12 opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
13 unanimously.
14 Moving on -- anything else, Ms. Wilson?
15 CINDY WILSON:   That’s all for right
16 now.  Thank you.
17 TOMMY DUNN:   Moving on to
18 Councilman John Wright, Councilman Wright.
19 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
20 Chairman.  From District 1's special rec account, I’d
21 like to appropriate the ---
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Hold on a minute. 
23 If y’all don’t mind I’m going to let Mr. Wright to go
24 last and Mr. Sanders, because they wanted to catch up 
25 -- I think they asked to catch up with some stuff that
26 didn’t make it.
27 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Mr. Graham.  That
29 will be less confusion.
30 RAY GRAHAM:  Thank you, Mr.
31 Chairman.  I’ve got two.  I’d like to do both of them
32 together if that’s okay.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.
34 RAY GRAHAM:  I’d like to do six
35 thousand dollars to the town of Starr.  This is to
36 assist with some maintenance of the park and upkeep. 
37 And also do thirteen thousand dollars to the city of
38 Belton.  That’s basically to assist them in recovering
39 some funds where they put on the World Series.  And
40 basically this is payroll and a bunch of other expenses
41 that they had as a town to put that on over at the
42 Civic Center.  Basically they did not have that
43 budgeted, so trying to offset some of that cost on
44 that.  I bring both of those in the form of a motion.
45 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion by Mr.
46 Graham.  Have a second?
47 GLENN DAVIS:  Second.
48 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
49 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
50 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
26

1 carries unanimously.
2 Anything else, Mr. Graham?
3 RAY GRAHAM:  No, sir.
4 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  Moving on
5 now, Mr. Glenn Davis.
6 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
7 Chairman.  Out of District 2's rec account, I’d like to
8 appropriate -- you want me to do them all at one time,
9 sir?
10 TOMMY DUNN:   You can if you would
11 like to.  Yes, sir. 
12 GLENN DAVIS:  Thank you very much. 
13 Anderson Free Clinic, fifteen hundred dollars; Hope
14 Missions, a thousand dollars; Anderson Arts Center,
15 five hundred; United Way of Anderson for the
16 operations, a thousand; United Way of Anderson Camp
17 iRock, five hundred.  Put that in the form of a motion,
18 sir.
19 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
20 TOMMY DUNN:   We have a motion by
21 Mr. Glenn Davis; and second by Ms. Wilson.  Any further
22 discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show of hands. 
23 All opposed like sign.  Show the motion carries
24 unanimously. 
25 Mr. Jimmy Davis.
26 JIMMY DAVIS:  Thank you, Mr.
27 Chair.  I’ll make these three in the form of one
28 motion.  From the District 6 appropriations account, to
29 the Anderson Arts Center, three hundred dollars; United
30 Way of Anderson Camp iRock, seven hundred dollars; and
31 Piedmont Public Service Commission, fifteen hundred
32 dollars.  Make that in the form of a motion.
33 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
34 BRETT SANDERS:   Second.
35 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion by Mr.
36 Jimmy Davis and second Ms. Wilson.  Any discussion? 
37 All in favor of the motion, show of hands.  All opposed
38 like sign.  Show the motion carries unanimously. 
39 Moving on to District 5's special appropriations
40 account.  I appropriate to Anderson Free Clinic, a
41 thousand dollars; the Hope Missions, a thousand
42 dollars; the Arts Center, four hundred dollars.  Does
43 that cover it?  I guess five hundred dollars I guess is
44 where it needs to be.  What did you do, Mr. Davis? 
45 I’ll do four and that should -- Jimmy, did you do
46 anything?  Five and three is eight.  Nine, ten, eleven
47 hundred dollars.  Yeah, I do four hundred dollars.  Put
48 that in the -- four hundred dollars from the Arts
49 Center -- they need eight hundred.  
50 BRETT SANDERS:   Okay.  So that would



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
27

1 do it.
2 TOMMY DUNN:   Okay.  And United
3 Way, the Camp iRock, I’ll do a thousand dollars; and
4 United Way, the 211 number, I’ll do five hundred
5 dollars.  Put that in the form of a motion. 
6 JOHN WRIGHT:  Second.
7 TOMMY DUNN:   Second John Wright,
8 Jr.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion, show
9 of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
10 carries unanimously. 
11 Now moving on to Mr. Wright, Councilman Wright.
12 JOHN WRIGHT:  Thank you, Mr.
13 Chairman.  I assume I’ve got these amounts right.  I’d
14 like to appropriate fifteen hundred dollars to Anderson
15 Free Clinic; a thousand dollars to Hope Missions; four
16 hundred to Anderson Arts Center; two thousand dollars
17 to United Way of Anderson for operations; and nineteen
18 hundred dollars to United Way of Anderson for Camp
19 iRock.  Is that right?
20 BRETT SANDERS:   No, no.  Should be 
21 ---
22 JOHN WRIGHT:  Didn’t we have
23 thirty-eight hundred left on iRock?
24 BRETT SANDERS:   Glenn gave five.  It
25 looks like fourteen hundred left.
26 JOHN WRIGHT:  And a thousand;
27 right?  We had twenty-two hundred off the five; right? 
28 Fourteen hundred a piece; right?  Fourteen hundred,
29 there we go.  I’m sorry.  Fourteen hundred dollars for
30 Camp iRock.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   Anything else?
32 JOHN WRIGHT:  That’s it.  Put that
33 in the form of a motion.
34 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a second?
35 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
36 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
37 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
38 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
39 carries unanimously. 
40 Look here, she tried to make this as easy as
41 possible for y’all and y’all still -- Mr. Sanders.
42 BRETT SANDERS:   Yeah, but I do like
43 these sheets.  Normally they work great.  Thank you. 
44 Mr. Chairman, I’d like to put these in the form of
45 one motion.
46 TOMMY DUNN:   Yes, sir. 
47 BRETT SANDERS:   Anderson Free
48 Clinic, one thousand dollars; Hope Missions, five
49 hundred; Anderson Arts Center, four hundred.  That
50 clears that out.  United Way operations, one thousand;



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
28

1 and United Way Camp iRock, fourteen hundred.  And put
2 that in the form of a motion, sir.
3 TOMMY DUNN:   Have a motion Mr.
4 Sanders.  Have a second?
5 CINDY WILSON:   Second.
6 TOMMY DUNN:   Second Mr. Glenn
7 Davis.  Any discussion?  All in favor of the motion,
8 show of hands.  All opposed like sign.  Show the motion
9 carries unanimously. 
10 We’re going to move on now to Administrator’s
11 report.
12 RUSTY BURNS:  Nothing at this
13 time, Mr. Chairman.
14 TOMMY DUNN:   We’re going to move
15 on now to citizens comments.  Mr. Harmon.
16 LEON HARMON:  No one is signed up,
17 Mr. Chairman.
18 TOMMY DUNN:   No one is signed up. 
19 We’re going to move on to remarks from Council
20 members.  Mr. Jimmy Davis, Councilman Davis.
21 JIMMY DAVIS:  Nothing, sir.
22 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
23 Brett Sanders.
24 BRETT SANDERS:   Nothing, sir.
25 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr.
26 Glenn Davis.
27 GLENN DAVIS:  Nothing, sir.
28 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  Mr. Ray
29 Graham.
30 RAY GRAHAM:  Nothing.
31 TOMMY DUNN:   John Wright.
32 JOHN WRIGHT:  Nothing, sir.
33 TOMMY DUNN:   Ms. Wilson.
34 CINDY WILSON:   Just a quick
35 observation of how blessed we are in this county from
36 our elderly lady from the Starr and Iva area to the
37 veterans to all the great opportunities for young
38 people in this county.  Thank you.
39 TOMMY DUNN:   Thank you.  
40 Two quick things right quick.  I just want to thank
41 the good Lord we was blessed to not have no bad
42 destruction like other parts of the state and parts of
43 the country hit by the hurricane.  But I do want to
44 appreciate us being well prepared.
45 I also want to appreciate the Administrator and his
46 staff for opening arms to Duke Energy, letting them
47 come in and station their thing.  They’re really
48 appreciative of that time to come in and use the Civic
49 Center for not only a staging area but logistics.  We
50 appreciate that.



Anderson County Council - County Council Meeting - October 4, 2022
29

1 And I want y’all to also, in the coming weeks, I
2 hope to have a couple of ordinances coming up.  I’m
3 going to run them through Ms. Wilson’s committee.  But
4 also I want them to be -- I say ordinances.  But I want
5 some discussion before we go -- don’t look at me like
6 that, Leon.  My other lawyer wrote these up.  No, this
7 is a tree ordinance.  It’s going to take a little bit
8 of public -- I think people getting in and having some
9 input.  We just come up and start voting on stuff.  And
10 the other one, this was asked of me, and I’ve talked to
11 several council members about this.  The appeals board. 
12 They had this come up and they want some help trying to
13 settle some stuff on the short term rental.  And hope
14 to have some language and stuff to go in Ms. Wilson’s
15 Planning and Public Works Committee for them to go out
16 and have some meetings with the public and let them
17 have some input on it.
18 Appreciate everybody.  Thank y’all.
19 CINDY WILSON:   I was going to say,
20 do y’all want to look at some potential dates?
21 TOMMY DUNN:   I’m not quite ready
22 yet to give it to you.  I’ll let y’all know in just a
23 few days and y’all can get everybody together.  Okay?
24 CINDY WILSON:   Okay.  Thank you.
25
26 (MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:28 P.M.)



HSB 7355874 v.4  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-042 
 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND AMONG ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA, THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US-PIEDMONT I, LLC AND 
LATITUDE APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC WITH RESPECT TO CERTAIN 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE COUNTY, WHEREBY 
SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF 
TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN SPECIAL SOURCE 
CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated September 6, 2022 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with Third Stage Capital US-Piedmont, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company and 
Latitude Applied Technologies, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company (collectively, the 
“Company”) (which was known to the County at the time as “Project Hurricane”), with respect to the 
acquisition, construction, and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, 
furnishings and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute a new facility in the County for the 
purpose of an industrial warehouse and distribution building (collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $16,000,000 in the County within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the 
hereinafter defined Fee Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by 
the Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by 



2 
HSB 7355874 v.4  

the Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-
1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company was also assigned that certain Fee in Lieu of Tax Agreement dated as of 
March 1, 2018, (the “2018 Fee Agreement”) entered into by the County and Wilson, Inc. of Piedmont, a/k/a 
Wilson Inc. of Piedmont SC, a/k/a Wilson, Inc. (collectively, “Assignor”) (the transaction being the 
“Assignment”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended, and the County now wishes to ratify the Assignment. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and 
all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The County, pursuant to Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, hereby expressly 
ratifies, consents and agrees to the transfer and assignment to, and assumption by the Company of, 
Assignor’s rights, obligations, title, and interest in, to and under the 2018 Fee Agreement as provided in that 



3 
HSB 7355874 v.4  

certain Assignment and Assumption Agreement by and between the Company and Assignor and further 
ratifies and consents to the terms of the Assignment.   

Section 4. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 5. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 

Section 6. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

 
 ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st day of November, 2022.  
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
        
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

 
Attest: 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
By:____________________________________ 
            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By:       
 Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
 Anderson County, South Carolina 

 
 



4 
HSB 7355874 v.4  

 
 
First Reading: September 6, 2022  
Second Reading: September 20, 2022  
Third Reading: November 1, 2022  
Public Hearing: November 1, 2022  
 
 
 



HSB 7355874 v.4  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of September 6, 2022, September 20, 
2022, and November 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
 
 ___________________________________________ 
      Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
   Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
Dated: November 1, 2022 
 
 



 

HSB 7355381 v.13  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

Among 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, 
 
 

and 
 
 

THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US-PIEDMONT I, LLC, 
 
 

and 
 
 

LATITUDE APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC 
 
 

 
 

Dated as of November 1, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 8 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 8 
 
 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ......................................................................................................................................... 10 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ......................................................................................................................... 10 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ........................................................................................................................... 10 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 12 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS ..................................................................................................... 13 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENTS............................................................. 14 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 15 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 15 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 15 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 17 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 18 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 18 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 19 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 20 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 20 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 20 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 20 



 

ii 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 22 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 22 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 23 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 23 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 24 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 25 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 25 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 25 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 25 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 25 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 25 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 26 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 26 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 26 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 26 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 26 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 



 

HSB 7355381 v.13  

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“Code”), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement.  This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code.  
 
 

Company Name: Third Stage Capital US-Piedmont I, 
LLC;  
Latitude Applied Technologies, 
LLC 

Project Name: Project Hurricane 

Projected Investment: $18,000,000.00 Projected Jobs: 37 
Location (street): • 1360 Shiloh Church Road 

Piedmont, SC 29673 
• 1370 Shiloh Church Road 

Piedmont, SC 29673 
• 1400 Shiloh Church Road 

Piedmont, SC 29673 
• Hollow Drive 

               Piedmont, SC 29673 

Tax Map No.: • 2160011016  
• 2160011017  
• 2160011004  
• 2160011019 

    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: FILOT Act Minimum Investment 

Requirement 
  

 Investment Period: 5 years Ordinance No./Date:  
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years  
 Fixed Millage: .33207 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

N/A 
 

 Clawback information: See Section 4.03 
2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 

Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 by and between Anderson County and Greenville 
County  

  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount: See Section 4.02 
 No. of Years 30 years 
    Yearly Increments: 85% for years 1-5; 

35% for years 6-30 
 Clawback information: See Section 4.02 
4. Other information  

 



 

HSB 7355381 v.13  

 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of November 1, 2022, by and among ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the “County 
Council”) as the governing body of the County, THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US-PIEDMONT I, LLC, a 
limited liability company organized and existing under the laws of the State of Delaware (the “Landlord”), 
and LATITUDE APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC, a limited liability company organized and existing 
under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the “Operating Company”), together the “Company.” 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a collection of buildings in 
the County for industrial, manufacturing, distribution, or warehouse space.  

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 



 

2 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on November 1, 2022, the County Council has authorized 
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 
provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 



 

3 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean Landlord, Operating Company, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee 
entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed 
to the rights and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, 
investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least the FILOT Act Minimum Investment 
Requirement in Economic Development Property subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the 
absence of this Fee Agreement). 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 



 

4 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
payments which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300T or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

 “Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Extended Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning January 1 of the sixth (6th) year  
after the first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in service, and ending on December 
31 of the tenth (10th) year after such first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in service. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 



 

5 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Initial Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period. 

“Investment Period” shall mean the Initial Investment Period plus, if applicable pursuant to 
Section 3.01(a) hereof, the Extended Investment Period. 

“Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) hereof. 

“Landlord” shall mean Third Stage Capital US-Piedmont I, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of 
assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Landlord. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010,1 as amended, between the County and 
Greenville County, South Carolina, as the same may be further amended or supplemented from time to 
time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with respect to the Project to offer the benefits of 
the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company hereunder. 

“Operating Company” shall mean Latitude Applied Technologies, LLC, a South Carolina 
limited liability company, and any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, 
or transfer of assets; or any other person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the 
Operating Company. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

 
1 County to confirm. 



 

6 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 
property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits. 

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.   

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement 
Date.   

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 



 

7 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 



 

8 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and 
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within 
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is .33207 mills which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a 
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Landlord is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, 
and the Operating Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina, and both are duly authorized to transact business in the State, have power to enter into this Fee 
Agreement, and have duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the 
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of 
industrial, manufacturing, distribution, or warehouse space, and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act 
permits as the Company may deem appropriate. 

(c) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(d) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 



 

9 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

[End of Article II] 



 

10 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE III 
 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
Section 3.01  The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project, (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Initial 
Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 2022. The County agrees that if the Company meets the 
Contract Minimum Investment Requirement during the Initial Investment Period, the Company shall be 
entitled hereunder to the Extended Investment Period with respect to the Project. Failure by the Company 
to achieve the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement shall not result in an Event of Default under 
this Agreement. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300T 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all 
parties hereto. 



 

11 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 
by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 



 

12 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE IV 
 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of .33207 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value 
to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

13 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates.  Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Credits 
 

(a) For that portion of the Fee Payment due for each such tax year with respect to the 
building, that has previously been subject to ad valorem taxes, for a period of twenty (20) consecutive 
years, a Special Source Credit shall be applied in a an amount sufficient to reduce the amount of each 
such Fee Payment so that the resulting net Fee Payment due and payable by the Company equals what the 
Company would have paid under a Fee in Lieu of Tax agreement, pursuant to the FILOT Act, which is 
equivalent to the fair market value of the building multiplied by an assessment ratio of (6%) and 
multiplied by a fixed millage of .33207 mills, which is the millage rate in effect with respect to the 
location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021; and 

(b) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Standard Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to 
receive, and the County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company’s FILOT 
Payments for a period of thirty (30) consecutive years in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) for 
years one through five (1-5) and thirty-five percent (35%) for years six through thirty (6-30) of that 
portion of FILOT Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to 
investment made by the Company in the Project during the Standard Investment Period), calculated and 
applied after payment of the amount due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement. For the 
avoidance of doubt, the Special Source Credits described in this subsection shall be applicable to the property 
described in subsection 4.02(a) after and in addition to the application of the Special Source Credit described 
in subsection 4.02(a).  

(c) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(d) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C.  



 

14 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

(e) Should the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement not be met by the end of the 
Standard Investment Period, any Special Source Credits otherwise payable under this Fee Agreement 
shall no longer be payable by the County, and the Company shall be retroactively liable to the County for 
the amount of the Special Source Credits previously received by the Company, plus interest at the rate 
payable for late payment of taxes. Any amounts determined to be owing pursuant to the foregoing 
sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth (120th) day following the 
last day of the Investment Period. 

(f) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 
at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), 
the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property 
was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(g) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(h) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation, are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, 
and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the 
County. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, the County may terminate this 
Fee Agreement and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is 
equal to the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on 
the Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other 
political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not 
Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and 
abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through 
and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT payments the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property 
(after taking into account any Special Source Credits received) (such excess, a “Deficiency Amount”) for 
the period through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined to be owing 
pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth 
(120th) day following the last day of the Investment Period.   

 (b)  As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 



 

15 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 
Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year.  More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property.  To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the Payment in 

Lieu of Taxes with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion 
as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic 
Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, 
that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining 
in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is 
less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment 
thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled 
to the incentive provided in Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore 
commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   



 

16 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

[End of Article IV] 



 

17 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE V 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided 
for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in 
this Section 5.01.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the facility or the 
cessation of production and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of twelve (12) 
months.  The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, 
if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Investment 
Period.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated 
pursuant to this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any 
monies to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 



 

18 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

a debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received 
from or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the 
Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into 
and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach 
or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or 
lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental 
violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save 
the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such 
claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon 
notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with 
legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings 
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of 
this Fee Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
County or any of the other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such 
event the Company shall indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of 
any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 



 

19 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall 
not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee 
Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 
transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 
obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 



 

20 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County’s or Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 



 

21 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V] 



 

22 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT 
 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the 
“Defaulting Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 



 

23 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 



 

24 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

ARTICLE VII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

 
If to the Landlord: 
 
Third Stage Capital US-Piedmont I, LLC 
Attn:  Timothy Hockey 
1400 Shiloh Church Road 
Piedmont, SC 29673  
    
With a copy to: 
 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
Attn: J. Philip Land, Jr. (pland@hsblawfirm.com) 
One North Main Street 
2nd Floor 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601   
 
If to the Operating Company: 
 
Latitude Applied Technologies, LLC 
Attn:  Larry Webb     
1400 Shiloh Church Road 
Piedmont, SC 29673  
         
With a copy to: 
 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
Attn: J. Philip Land, Jr. (pland@hsblawfirm.com) 
One North Main Street 
2nd Floor 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601   
 



 

25 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 

 101 S. Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 
101 S. Main Street  
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 
entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County has been transferred. 

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 



 

26 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates do not 
realize the economic benefit they are intended to receive from the County under this Fee Agreement, the 
County shall provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates additional Special Source Revenue Credits 
to the maximum extent permitted by law, in an amount sufficient to ensure the same net financial benefit 
is afforded to the Project as is to be provided hereunder. Further, the remaining provisions hereof shall be 
unimpaired, and such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most 
closely the legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates with the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the 
FILOT Act, to locate the Project in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina 
laws eliminates or reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates and the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full 
consideration to reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South 
Carolina laws. 

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 
hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT 
Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination 
pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 



 

27 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 
 



 

28 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 

this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Chairman and to be attested by 
the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
 
 
   ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 
   By:      

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
 

Attest: 
 
 

By:_   
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 
 
 
 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 
 



 

29 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

 THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US-PIEDMONT  
 I, LLC, 

a Delaware Limited Liability Company 
 
By:       

       Name:       
       Its:        

 

 
 

 

 

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 

 



 

30 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

LATITUDE APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC, 
a South Carolina Limited Liability Company 
 
By:       

       Name:       
       Its:        

 

 
 
 
 

[Signature Page 3 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 

 
 
 
 



 

A-1 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

EXHIBIT A 
 

DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
 

Anderson County TMS Numbers: 
Parcel 1:  2160011016 

Parcel 2:  2160011017 

Parcel 3:  2160011004 

Parcel 4: 2160011019 

 
Parcel 1:  
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as 5.773 acres, more or less, of UpState Industrial Park on a plat of 
survey entitled “ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT 
I, LLC”, prepared by James R. Freeland, PLS, RLS #4781, with Freeland & Associates, Inc., bearing 
Drawing No. 75459, dated August 12, 2021, last revised October 21, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said county in Plat Book S2850, at Page 6; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
 
Parcel 2:  
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as 4.194 acres, more or less, of UpState Industrial Park on a plat of 
survey entitled “ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT 
I, LLC”, prepared by James R. Freeland, PLS, RLS #4781, with Freeland & Associates, Inc., bearing 
Drawing No. 75459, dated August 12, 2021, last revised October 21, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said county in Plat Book S2850, at Page 6; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
 
Parcel 3: 
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as 12.33 acres, more or less, of UpState Industrial Park on a plat of 
survey entitled “ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT 
I, LLC”, prepared by James R. Freeland, PLS, RLS #4781, with Freeland & Associates, Inc., bearing 
Drawing No. 75459, dated August 12, 2021, last revised October 21, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said county in Plat Book S2850, at Page 6; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
 
 
Parcel 4: 
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as Parcel 4, containing 19.865 acres, more or less, on that certain 
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY prepared for THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT I, LLC, 
by Site Design, LLC dated April 20, 2022, last revised July 20, 2022, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said County in Plat Book s2946, at Page 2; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  



 

A-1 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

Also, a perpetual non-exclusive easement on, over and across the Cross Access Easement, as shown on the 
aforesaid plat, and as shown on that certain Recombination Plat for Upstate Industrial Park prepared by Site 
Design, Inc. dated April 13, 2018 and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for said County in Plat 
Book 2454, at Page 3, for the purpose of pedestrian and vehicular access, ingress, egress, and regress to and 
from Parcel 4 and the public right of way of Hollow Drive. 
 
Derivation: This being a portion of the property conveyed to Grantor by deeds from G & W Builders, Inc. 
dated August 31, 1982 and recorded May 12, 1983 in Deed Book 19-Z at Page 682 and Deed Book 19-Z at 
Page 680, and by deed from William Brewster Reid dated August 1, 1984 and recorded August 10, 1984 in 
Deed Book 20-H at Page 707.  
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 

B-1 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 
 
 (2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the 
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
 
  
             
      Name:       
      Its:       
 



 

C-1 
HSB 7355381 v.13  

EXHIBIT C 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 
 

 I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 2022 between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 
 
 (1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously 
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 
 
 (2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure 
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 
 
 All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 
   
 
             
      Name:       
      Its:       
        
       



HSB 7361013 v.3  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-043 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK 
TO INCLUDE CERTAIN PROPERTY OF THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US-
PIEDMONT I, LLC AND LATITUDE APPLIED TECHNOLOGIES, LLC; AND 
OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted by Anderson County Council 
on November 16, 2010 and Ordinance No. 4391 enacted November 2, 2010 by Greenville County 
Council, Anderson and Greenville Counties entered into an Agreement for the Development of a 
Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park 
created therein (the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of 
Anderson County and Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Anderson County to 
Project Hurricane, it is now desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain 
parcels in Anderson County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that: 
 
 1. Exhibit A to the Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include 
the property located in Anderson County described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, 
pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon adoption by Greenville County Council of a 
corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to so include such property and 
Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 

 
2. The remaining terms and provisions of the Anderson County Code of Ordinances 

not revised or affected hereby remain in full force and effect. 
 

 3. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 
 
 4. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 

 
 



HSB 7361013 v.3  

 
 
 
 
ATTEST:          FOR ANDERSON COUNTY: 
 
________________________________ _______________________________ 
Rusty Burns     Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator 
 
_____________________________ 
Renee Watts 
Clerk to Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
__________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
County Attorney 

 

1st Reading: September 6, 2022 

2nd Reading: September 20, 2022 

3rd Reading: November 1, 2022 

Public Hearing: November 1, 2022 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 



 A-1 
HSB 7361013 v.3  

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

Parcel 1:  2160011016 

Parcel 2:  2160011017 

Parcel 3:  2160011004 

Parcel 4: 2160011019 

 
Parcel 1:  
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as 5.773 acres, more or less, of UpState Industrial Park on a plat of 
survey entitled “ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT 
I, LLC”, prepared by James R. Freeland, PLS, RLS #4781, with Freeland & Associates, Inc., bearing 
Drawing No. 75459, dated August 12, 2021, last revised October 21, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said county in Plat Book S2850, at Page 6; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
 
Parcel 2:  
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as 4.194 acres, more or less, of UpState Industrial Park on a plat of 
survey entitled “ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT 
I, LLC”, prepared by James R. Freeland, PLS, RLS #4781, with Freeland & Associates, Inc., bearing 
Drawing No. 75459, dated August 12, 2021, last revised October 21, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said county in Plat Book S2850, at Page 6; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
 
Parcel 3: 
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as 12.33 acres, more or less, of UpState Industrial Park on a plat of 
survey entitled “ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY FOR THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT 
I, LLC”, prepared by James R. Freeland, PLS, RLS #4781, with Freeland & Associates, Inc., bearing 
Drawing No. 75459, dated August 12, 2021, last revised October 21, 2021, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said county in Plat Book S2850, at Page 6; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
 
 
Parcel 4: 
 
All that certain piece, parcel, or lot of land situate, lying and being in the state of South Carolina, County of 
Anderson, being shown and designated as Parcel 4, containing 19.865 acres, more or less, on that certain 
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY prepared for THIRD STAGE CAPITAL US- PIEDMONT I, LLC, 



 A-2 
HSB 7361013 v.3  

by Site Design, LLC dated April 20, 2022, last revised July 20, 2022, and recorded in the Office of the 
Register of Deeds for said County in Plat Book s2946, at Page 2; reference to said plat being hereby made 
for a more complete metes and bounds description thereof.  
Also, a perpetual non-exclusive easement on, over and across the Cross Access Easement, as shown on the 
aforesaid plat, and as shown on that certain Recombination Plat for Upstate Industrial Park prepared by Site 
Design, Inc. dated April 13, 2018 and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for said County in Plat 
Book 2454, at Page 3, for the purpose of pedestrian and vehicular access, ingress, egress, and regress to and 
from Parcel 4 and the public right of way of Hollow Drive. 
 
Derivation: This being a portion of the property conveyed to Grantor by deeds from G & W Builders, Inc. 
dated August 31, 1982 and recorded May 12, 1983 in Deed Book 19-Z at Page 682 and Deed Book 19-Z at 
Page 680, and by deed from William Brewster Reid dated August 1, 1984 and recorded August 10, 1984 in 
Deed Book 20-H at Page 707.  
 
 



HSB 7361013 v.3  

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of September 6, 2022, September 20, 2022 
and November 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: November 1, 2022 
 



HSB 7365639 v.6  

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-049 
 

 AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA AND HARTWELL RESORT, LLC WITH 
RESPECT TO CERTAIN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROPERTY IN THE 
COUNTY, WHEREBY SUCH PROPERTY WILL BE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN 
PAYMENTS IN LIEU OF TAXES, INCLUDING THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDITS; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
WHEREAS, ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), acting by and 

through its County Council (the “County Council”), is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to 
the provisions of Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Title 4, Chapter 1 (the “Multi-County Park 
Act”), and Title 4, Chapter 29, of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, to enter into 
agreements with industry whereby the industry would pay fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to qualified 
projects; to provide infrastructure credits against payment in lieu of taxes for reimbursement in respect of 
investment in certain infrastructure enhancing the economic development of the County; through all such 
powers the industrial development of the State of South Carolina (the “State”) will be promoted and trade 
developed by inducing manufacturing and commercial enterprises to locate or remain in the State and thus 
utilize and employ the manpower, products and resources of the State and benefit the general public welfare 
of the County by providing services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the FILOT Act, and in order to induce investment in the County, the 
County did previously enter into an Inducement Agreement dated October 4, 2022 (the “Inducement 
Agreement”) with Hartwell Resort, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company (the “Company”) 
(which was known to the County at the time as “Project Cove”), with respect to the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of land, buildings, improvements, fixtures, machinery, equipment, furnishings 
and other real and/or tangible personal property to constitute a new facility in the County for lodging and 
recreation (collectively, the “Project”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Company has represented that the Project will involve an investment of 
approximately $5,000,000 in the County within the Investment Period (as such term is defined in the 
hereinafter defined Fee Agreement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined on the basis of the information supplied to it by the 
Company that the Project would be a “project” and “economic development property” as such terms are 
defined in the FILOT Act, and that the Project would serve the purposes of the FILOT Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the authority of Section 4-1-170 of the Multi-County Park Act and Article 
VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution, the County intends to cause the Project, to the extent 
not already therein located, to be placed in a joint county industrial and business park such that the Project 
will receive the benefits of the Multi-County Park Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the County has agreed to, among other 
things, (a) enter into a Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement with the Company (the 
“Fee Agreement”), whereby the County would provide therein for a payment of a fee-in-lieu-of taxes by 
the Company with respect to the Project, and (b) provide for certain special source credits to be claimed by 
the Company against its payments of fees-in-lieu-of taxes with respect to the Project pursuant to Section 4-
1-175 of the Multi-County Park Act; and  
 



2 
HSB 7365639 v.6  

 WHEREAS, the County Council has caused to be prepared and presented to this meeting the form 
of the Fee Agreement which the County proposes to execute and deliver; and 
 
 WHEREAS, it appears that the documents above referred to, which are now before this meeting, 
are in appropriate form and are an appropriate instrument to be executed and delivered or approved by the 
County for the purposes intended;   
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the County Council as follows: 
 

Section 1. Based on information supplied by the Company, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared by the County Council, as follows: 

(a) The Project will constitute a “project” and “economic development property” as said terms 
are referred to and defined in the FILOT Act, and the County’s actions herein will subserve the purposes 
and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements of the FILOT Act; 

(b) The Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation or other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; 

(c) The Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of either; 

(d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, creation of 
jobs and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental and public purposes; and 

(e) The benefits of the Project are anticipated to be greater than the costs. 

Section 2. The form, terms and provisions of the Fee Agreement presented to this meeting are 
hereby approved and all of the terms and provisions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by reference as if 
the Fee Agreement was set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. The Chairman of County Council and/or the 
County Administrator are hereby authorized, empowered and directed to execute, acknowledge and deliver 
the Fee Agreement in the name of and on behalf of the County, and the Clerk to County Council is hereby 
authorized and directed to attest the same, and thereupon to cause the Fee Agreement to be delivered to the 
Company and cause a copy of the same to be delivered to the Anderson County Auditor, Assessor and 
Treasurer. The Fee Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and hereby 
approved, or with such minor changes therein as shall be approved by the Chairman of County Council, 
upon advice of counsel, his execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of his approval of any and 
all changes or revisions therein from the form of Fee Agreement now before this meeting. 

Section 3. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator and the Clerk to 
County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby authorized and directed to do any and all things 
necessary to effect the execution and delivery of the Fee Agreement and the performance of all obligations 
of the County thereunder. 

Section 4. The provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if any 
section, phrase or provisions shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent jurisdiction to be 
invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, 
phrases and provisions hereunder. 



3 
HSB 7365639 v.6

Section 5. All ordinances, resolutions, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to the extent 
of such conflict, hereby repealed. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its 
passage by the County Council. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st day of November, 2022. 

ENACTED in meeting duly assembled this 1st day of November, 2022. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Attest: 

By:____________________________________ 
            Rusty Burns, County Administrator 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

By:____________________________________ 
            Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 

Anderson County, South Carolina 

Approved as to form: 

By: 
Leon C. Harmon, County Attorney 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

First Reading: October 4, 2022 
Second Reading: October 18, 2022  
Third Reading: November 1, 2022 
Public Hearing: November 1, 2022 



HSB 7365639 v.6

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF ANDERSON 

I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received unanimous approval, by the County Council at its meetings of October 4, 2022, October 18, 2022, 
and November 1, 2022, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and 
voted, and an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 

___________________________________________ 
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

Dated: November 1, 2022 



 

HSB 7364706 v.6  

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND 
SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT 

 
 

Between 
 
 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
 
 
 

and 
 
 

HARTWELL RESORT, LLC 
 
 
 

 
Dated as of November 1, 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

i 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS 

SECTION 1.01 DEFINITIONS ............................................................................................................................................ 3 
SECTION 1.02 PROJECT-RELATED INVESTMENTS ........................................................................................................... 6 

ARTICLE II 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 2.01 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COUNTY.................................................. 7 
SECTION 2.02 REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS OF THE COMPANY ............................................... 7 

ARTICLE III 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 

SECTION 3.01 THE PROJECT ........................................................................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 3.02 DILIGENT COMPLETION ........................................................................................................................... 9 
SECTION 3.03 FILINGS AND REPORTS ............................................................................................................................. 9 

ARTICLE IV 

FILOT PAYMENTS 

SECTION 4.01 FILOT PAYMENTS ................................................................................................................................. 11 
SECTION 4.02 SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE CREDITS ..................................................................................................... 12 
SECTION 4.03 FAILURE TO ACHIEVE MINIMUM INVESTMENT REQUIREMENTS............................................................. 13 
SECTION 4.04 REMOVAL OF EQUIPMENT ...................................................................................................................... 14 
SECTION 4.05 FILOT PAYMENTS ON REPLACEMENT PROPERTY .................................................................................. 14 
SECTION 4.06 REDUCTIONS IN PAYMENT OF TAXES UPON DIMINUTION IN VALUE; INVESTMENT MAINTENANCE 

REQUIREMENT ...................................................................................................................................... 14 

ARTICLE V 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

SECTION 5.01 CESSATION OF OPERATIONS ................................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.02 RIGHTS TO INSPECT ................................................................................................................................ 16 
SECTION 5.03 CONFIDENTIALITY ................................................................................................................................. 16 
SECTION 5.04 LIMITATION OF COUNTY’S LIABILITY .................................................................................................... 16 
SECTION 5.05 MERGERS, REORGANIZATIONS AND EQUITY TRANSFERS....................................................................... 17 
SECTION 5.06 INDEMNIFICATION COVENANTS ............................................................................................................. 17 
SECTION 5.07 QUALIFICATION IN STATE ...................................................................................................................... 18 
SECTION 5.08 NO LIABILITY OF COUNTY’S PERSONNEL .............................................................................................. 18 
SECTION 5.09 ASSIGNMENT, LEASES OR TRANSFERS ................................................................................................... 18 
SECTION 5.10 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES ................................................................................................................. 19 
SECTION 5.11 PRIORITY LIEN STATUS .......................................................................................................................... 19 
SECTION 5.12 INTEREST; PENALTIES ............................................................................................................................ 19 
SECTION 5.13 SPONSOR AFFILIATES ............................................................................................................................. 19 



 

ii 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE VI 

DEFAULT 

SECTION 6.01 EVENTS OF DEFAULT ............................................................................................................................. 21 
SECTION 6.02 REMEDIES UPON DEFAULT .................................................................................................................... 21 
SECTION 6.03 REIMBURSEMENT OF LEGAL FEES AND EXPENSES AND OTHER EXPENSES ............................................ 22 
SECTION 6.04 NO WAIVER ........................................................................................................................................... 22 

ARTICLE VII 

MISCELLANEOUS 

SECTION 7.01 NOTICES ................................................................................................................................................. 23 
SECTION 7.02 BINDING EFFECT .................................................................................................................................... 23 
SECTION 7.03 COUNTERPARTS ..................................................................................................................................... 24 
SECTION 7.04 GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................................... 24 
SECTION 7.05 HEADINGS .............................................................................................................................................. 24 
SECTION 7.06 AMENDMENTS ........................................................................................................................................ 24 
SECTION 7.07 FURTHER ASSURANCE ........................................................................................................................... 24 
SECTION 7.08 INVALIDITY; CHANGE IN LAWS .............................................................................................................. 24 
SECTION 7.09 TERMINATION BY COMPANY .................................................................................................................. 25 
SECTION 7.10 ENTIRE UNDERSTANDING ...................................................................................................................... 25 
SECTION 7.11 WAIVER ................................................................................................................................................. 25 
SECTION 7.12 BUSINESS DAY ....................................................................................................................................... 25 
 
EXHIBIT A – DESCRIPTION OF LAND 
EXHIBIT B – INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
EXHIBIT C – INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 
 



 

iii 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

SUMMARY OF CONTENTS OF 
FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 

 
 

As permitted under Section 12-44-55(B), Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the 
“Code”), the parties have agreed to waive the requirements of Section 12-44-55 of the Code.  The 
following is a summary of the key provisions of this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit 
Agreement.  This summary is inserted for convenience only and does not constitute a part of this Fee in 
Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement or a summary compliant with Section 12-44-55 of the 
Code.  
 
 

Company Name: Hartwell Resort, LLC Project Name: Project Cove 
Projected Investment: $5,926,570 Projected Jobs: N/A 
Location (street): • 324 Deep Creek Church 

Rd., Anderson, SC 29626 
• 4023 Whitehall Road, 

Anderson, SC 29626 
• 4006 Whitehall Road, 

Anderson, SC 29626 
• No address for TMS 047-

03-01-007 

Tax Map No.: • 047-03-01-004 
• 047-03-01-005 
• 047-03-01-006 
• 047-03-01-007 

    
1. FILOT    
 Required Investment: $5,000,000   
 Investment Period: 5 years Ordinance No./Date: 2022-049, November 1, 

2022 
 Assessment Ratio: 6% Term (years): 30 years 
 Fixed Millage: .32527 

 
Net Present Value (if 
yes, discount rate): 

N/A 
 

 Clawback information: See Section 4.03 
2. MCIP  
 Included in an MCIP: Yes 
 If yes, Name & Date: Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and Business Park (2010 

Park) dated as of December 1, 2010 by and between Anderson County and Greenville 
County  

  
3. SSRC  
 Total Amount: See Section 4.02 
 No. of Years 10 years 
    Yearly Increments: 85% for years 1-5; 35% for years 6-10 
 Clawback information: See Section 4.02 
4. Other information  

 
 

 
 



 

 

FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS FEE IN LIEU OF TAX AND SPECIAL SOURCE CREDIT AGREEMENT (the “Fee 
Agreement”) is made and entered into as of November 1, 2022 by and between ANDERSON COUNTY, 
SOUTH CAROLINA (the “County”), a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina (the “State”), acting by and through the Anderson County Council (the “County 
Council”) as the governing body of the County, and HARTWELL RESORT, LLC, a limited liability 
company organized and existing under the laws of the State of South Carolina (the “Company”). 
 

RECITALS 
 

1. Title 12, Chapter 44 (the “FILOT Act”), Code of Laws of South Carolina, 1976, as 
amended (the “Code”), authorizes the County to (a) induce industries to locate in the State; (b) encourage 
industries now located in the State to expand their investments and thus make use of and employ manpower, 
products, and other resources of the State; and (c) enter into a fee agreement with entities meeting the 
requirements of the FILOT Act, which identifies certain property of such entities as economic development 
property and provides for the payment of a fee in lieu of tax with respect to such property. 

2. Sections 4-1-170 and 12-44-70 of the Code authorize the County to provide special source 
revenue credit (“Special Source Revenue Credit”) financing secured by and payable solely from revenues 
of the County derived from payments in lieu of taxes for the purposes set forth in Section 4-29-68 of the 
Code, namely:  the defraying of the cost of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the 
infrastructure serving the County and for improved and unimproved real estate, and personal property, 
including but not limited to machinery and equipment, used in the operation of a manufacturing facility or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County (collectively, 
“Infrastructure”). 

3. The Company (as a Sponsor, within the meaning of the FILOT Act) desires to provide for 
the acquisition and construction of the Project (as defined herein) to constitute a facility in the County for 
lodging and recreation.  

4. Based on information supplied by the Company, the County Council has evaluated the 
Project based on relevant criteria that include, but are not limited to, the purposes the Project is to 
accomplish, the anticipated dollar amount and nature of the investment, employment to be created or 
maintained, and the anticipated costs and benefits to the County. Pursuant to Section 12-44-40(H)(1) of the 
FILOT Act, the County finds that: (a) the Project is anticipated to benefit the general public welfare of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, or other public benefits not otherwise adequately 
provided locally; (b) the Project will give rise to no pecuniary liability of the County or any incorporated 
municipality therein and to no charge against their general credit or taxing powers; (c) the purposes to be 
accomplished by the Project are proper governmental and public purposes; and (d) the benefits of the 
Project are greater than the costs. 

5. The Project is located, or if not so located as of the date of this Fee Agreement the County 
intends to use its best efforts to so locate the Project, in a joint county industrial or business park created 
with an adjoining county in the State pursuant to agreement entered into pursuant to Section 4-1-170 of the 
Code and Article VIII, Section 13(D) of the South Carolina Constitution. 

6. By enactment of an Ordinance on November 1, 2022, the County Council has authorized 
the County to enter into this Fee Agreement with the Company which classifies the Project as Economic 
Development Property under the FILOT Act and provides for the payment of fees in lieu of taxes and the 



 

2 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

provision of Special Source Revenue Credits to reimburse the Company for payment of the cost of certain 
Infrastructure in connection with the Project, all as further described herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the respective representations and 
agreements hereinafter contained, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 



 

3 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 
Section 1.01  Definitions 
 

The terms that this Article defines shall for all purposes of this Fee Agreement have the meanings 
herein specified, unless the context clearly requires otherwise: 
 
 “Administration Expenses” shall mean the reasonable and necessary expenses incurred by the 
County with respect to this Fee Agreement, including without limitation reasonable attorney fees; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered an Administration Expense until the County 
has furnished to the Company a statement in writing indicating the amount of such expense and the 
reason it has been or will be incurred. 
 
 “Affiliate” shall mean any corporation, limited liability company, partnership or other entity 
which owns all or part of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate) or 
which is owned in whole or in part by the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor 
Affiliate) or by any partner, shareholder or owner of the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, 
such Sponsor Affiliate), as well as any subsidiary, affiliate, individual or entity who bears a relationship 
to the Company (or with respect to a Sponsor Affiliate, such Sponsor Affiliate), as described in Section 
267(b) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.   
 

“Commencement Date” shall mean the last day of the property tax year during which the Project 
or the first Phase thereof is placed in service, which date shall not be later than the last day of the property 
tax year which is three (3) years from the year in which the County and the Company enter into this Fee 
Agreement. 

“Company” shall mean Hartwell Resort, LLC, a South Carolina limited liability company, and 
any surviving, resulting, or transferee entity in any merger, consolidation, or transfer of assets; or any 
other person or entity which may succeed to the rights and duties of the Company. 

 “Condemnation Event” shall mean any act of taking by a public or quasi-public authority 
through condemnation, reverse condemnation or eminent domain. 
 

“Contract Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, 
investment by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates of at least $5,000,000 in Economic Development 
Property subject (non-exempt) to ad valorem taxation (in the absence of this Fee Agreement). 

“County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a 
political subdivision of the State, its successors and assigns, acting by and through the County Council as 
the governing body of the County. 

“County Administrator” shall mean the Anderson County Administrator, or the person holding 
any successor office of the County. 

“County Assessor” shall mean the Anderson County Assessor, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 



 

4 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

“County Auditor” shall mean the Anderson County Auditor, or the person holding any successor 
office of the County. 

“County Council” shall mean Anderson County Council, the governing body of the County. 

“County Treasurer” shall mean the Anderson County Treasurer, or the person holding any 
successor office of the County. 

“Defaulting Entity” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 6.02(a) hereof. 

“Deficiency Amount” shall have the meaning set forth for such term in Section 4.03(a) hereof. 

“Department” shall mean the South Carolina Department of Revenue. 

“Diminution in Value” in respect of the Project shall mean any reduction in the value, using the 
original fair market value (without regard to depreciation) as determined in Step 1 of Section 4.01 of this 
Fee Agreement, of the items which constitute a part of the Project and which are subject to FILOT 
payments which may be caused by the Company’s or any Sponsor Affiliate’s removal and/or disposal of 
equipment pursuant to Section 4.04 hereof, or by its election to remove components of the Project as a 
result of any damage or destruction or any Condemnation Event with respect thereto. 

“Economic Development Property” shall mean those items of real and tangible personal property 
of the Project which are eligible for inclusion as economic development property under the FILOT Act 
and this Fee Agreement, and selected and identified by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its 
annual filing of a SCDOR PT-300T or comparable form with the Department (as such filing may be 
amended from time to time) for each year within the Investment Period. 

 “Equipment” shall mean machinery, equipment, furniture, office equipment, and other tangible 
personal property, together with any and all additions, accessions, replacements, and substitutions thereto 
or therefor. 

“Event of Default” shall mean any event of default specified in Section 6.01 hereof. 

“Exemption Period” shall mean the period beginning on the first day of the property tax year 
after the property tax year in which an applicable portion of Economic Development Property is placed in 
service and ending on the Termination Date.  In case there are Phases of the Project, the Exemption 
Period applies to each year’s investment made during the Investment Period. 

“Extended Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning January 1 of the sixth (6th) year  
after the first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in service, and ending on December 
31 of the tenth (10th) year after such first year in which any portion of the Project is first placed in service. 

“Fee Agreement” shall mean this Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement. 

“FILOT” or “FILOT Payments” shall mean the amount paid or to be paid in lieu of ad valorem 
property taxes as provided herein. 

“FILOT Act” shall mean Title 12, Chapter 44, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 



 

5 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

“FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement” shall mean, with respect to the Project, an 
investment of at least $2,500,000 by the Company, or of at least $5,000,000 by the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates in the aggregate, in Economic Development Property. 

“Improvements” shall mean improvements to the Land, including buildings, building additions, 
roads, sewer lines, and infrastructure, together with any and all additions, fixtures, accessions, 
replacements, and substitutions thereto or therefor. 

“Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved real 
estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the Project, 
within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 

“Initial Investment Period” shall mean, and shall be equal to, the Standard Investment Period. 

“Investment Period” shall mean the Initial Investment Period plus, if applicable pursuant to 
Section 3.01(a) hereof, the Extended Investment Period. 

 “Land” means the land upon which the Project will be located, as described in Exhibit A 
attached hereto, as Exhibit A may be supplemented from time to time in accordance with Section 3.01(c) 
hereof. 

“MCIP” shall mean (i) the joint county industrial park established pursuant to the terms of the 
MCIP Agreement and (ii) any joint county industrial park created pursuant to a successor park agreement 
delivered by the County and a partner county in accordance with Section 4-1-170 of the MCIP Act, or any 
successor provision, with respect to the Project. 

“MCIP Act” shall mean Title 4, Chapter 1, of the Code, and all future acts successor or 
supplemental thereto or amendatory thereof. 

“MCIP Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial 
and Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010,1 as the same may be further amended or 
supplemented from time to time, or such other agreement as the County may enter with respect to the 
Project to offer the benefits of the Special Source Revenue Credits to the Company hereunder. 

 “Phase” or “Phases” in respect of the Project shall mean that the components of the Project are 
placed in service during more than one year during the Investment Period, and the word “Phase” shall 
therefore refer to the applicable portion of the Project placed in service in a given year during the 
Investment Period. 

“Project” shall mean the Land and all the Equipment and Improvements that the Company 
determines to be necessary, suitable or useful for the purposes described in Section 2.02(b) hereof, to the 
extent determined by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate to be a part of the Project and placed in 
service during the Investment Period, and any Replacement Property.  Notwithstanding anything in this 
Fee Agreement to the contrary, the Project shall not include property which will not qualify for the 
FILOT pursuant to Section 12-44-110 of the FILOT Act, including without limitation property which has 
been subject to ad valorem taxation in the State prior to commencement of the Investment Period; 
provided, however, the Project may include (a) modifications which constitute an expansion of the real 
property portion of the Project and (b) the property allowed pursuant to Section 12-44-110(2) of the 
FILOT Act. 

 
1 County to confirm. 



 

6 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

“Removed Components” shall mean components of the Project or portions thereof which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in its sole discretion, elects to remove from the Project pursuant to 
Section 4.04 hereof or as a result of any Condemnation Event. 

“Replacement Property” shall mean any property which is placed in service as a replacement for 
any item of Equipment or any Improvement previously subject to this Fee Agreement regardless of 
whether such property serves the same functions as the property it is replacing and regardless of whether 
more than one piece of property replaces any item of Equipment or any Improvement to the fullest extent 
that the FILOT Act permits. 

“Special Source Credits” shall mean the annual special source credits provided to the Company 
pursuant to Section 4.02 hereof.   

“Sponsor Affiliate” shall mean an entity that joins with the Company and that participates in the 
investment in, or financing of, the Project and which meets the requirements under the FILOT Act to be 
entitled to the benefits of this Fee Agreement with respect to its participation in the Project, all as set forth 
in Section 5.13 hereof. 

“Standard Investment Period” shall mean the period beginning with the first day of any purchase 
or acquisition of Economic Development Property and ending five (5) years after the Commencement 
Date.   

“State” shall mean the State of South Carolina. 

“Termination Date” shall mean, with respect to each Phase of the Project, the end of the last day 
of the property tax year which is the 29th year following the first property tax year in which such Phase of 
the Project is placed in service; provided, that the intention of the parties is that the Company will make at 
least 30 annual FILOT payments under Article IV hereof with respect to each Phase of the Project; and 
provided further, that if this Fee Agreement is terminated earlier in accordance with the terms hereof, the 
Termination Date shall mean the date of such termination. 

“Transfer Provisions” shall mean the provisions of Section 12-44-120 of the FILOT Act, as 
amended or supplemented from time to time, concerning, among other things, the necessity of obtaining 
County consent to certain transfers. 

Any reference to any agreement or document in this Article I or otherwise in this Fee Agreement 
shall include any and all amendments, supplements, addenda, and modifications to such agreement or 
document. 

Section 1.02  Project-Related Investments 
 
 The term “investment” or “invest” as used herein shall include not only investments made by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, but also to the fullest extent permitted by law, those investments 
made by or for the benefit of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate with respect to the Project through 
federal, state, or local grants, to the extent such investments are subject to ad valorem taxes or FILOT 
payments by the Company. 

 
[End of Article I] 



 

7 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES, AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 2.01  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the County 
 
 The County hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State and 
acts through the County Council as its governing body. The County has duly authorized the execution and 
delivery of this Fee Agreement and any and all other agreements described herein or therein and has 
obtained all consents from third parties and taken all actions necessary or that the law requires to fulfill its 
obligations hereunder. 

(b) Based upon representations by the Company, the Project constitutes a “project” within 
the meaning of the FILOT Act. 

(c) The County has agreed that each item of real and tangible personal property comprising 
the Project which is eligible to be economic development property under the FILOT Act and that the 
Company selects shall be considered Economic Development Property and is thereby exempt from ad 
valorem taxation in the State. 

(d) The millage rate set forth in Step 3 of Section 4.01(a) hereof is .32527 mills, which is the 
millage rate in effect with respect to the location of the proposed Project as of June 30, 2021, as permitted 
under Section 12-44-50(A)(1)(d) of the FILOT Act. 

(e) The County will use its reasonable best efforts to cause the Project to be located in a 
MCIP for a term extending at least until the end of the period of FILOT Payments against which a Special 
Source Credit is to be provided under this Fee Agreement. 

Section 2.02  Representations, Warranties, and Agreements of the Company 
 

The Company hereby represents, warrants, and agrees as follows: 

(a) The Company is organized and in good standing under the laws of the State of South 
Carolina, is duly authorized to transact business in the State, has power to enter into this Fee Agreement, 
and has duly authorized the execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement. 

(b) The Company intends to operate the Project as a “project” within the meaning of the 
FILOT Act as in effect on the date hereof. The Company intends to operate the Project for the purpose of 
a lodging and recreation facility 

(c) , and for such other purposes that the FILOT Act permits as the Company may deem 
appropriate. 

(d) The execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Company to locate the Project in the County. 

(e) The Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, will use commercially reasonable 
efforts to meet, or cause to be met the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Investment 
Period. 



 

8 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

[End of Article II] 



 

9 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE III 
 

COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF THE PROJECT 
 
Section 3.01  The Project 
 

(a) The Company intends and expects, together with any Sponsor Affiliate, to (i) construct 
and acquire the Project and (ii) meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement within the Initial 
Investment Period. The Company anticipates that the first Phase of the Project will be placed in service 
during the calendar year ending December 31, 2022. The County agrees that if the Company meets the 
Contract Minimum Investment Requirement during the Initial Investment Period, the Company shall be 
entitled hereunder to the Extended Investment Period with respect to the Project. Failure by the Company 
to achieve the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement shall not result in an Event of Default under 
this Agreement. 

(b) Pursuant to the FILOT Act and subject to Section 4.03 hereof, the Company and the 
County hereby agree that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall identify annually those assets 
which are eligible for FILOT payments under the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement, and which the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate selects for such treatment by listing such assets in its annual PT-300T 
form (or comparable form) to be filed with the Department (as such may be amended from time to time) 
and that by listing such assets, such assets shall automatically become Economic Development Property 
and therefore be exempt from all ad valorem taxation during the Exemption Period. Anything contained 
in this Fee Agreement to the contrary notwithstanding, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall not 
be obligated to complete the acquisition of the Project. However, if the Company, together with any 
Sponsor Affiliates, does not meet the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement within the 
Investment Period, the provisions of Section 4.03 hereof shall control. 

(c) The Company may add to the Land such real property, located in the same taxing District 
in the County as the original Land, as the Company, in its discretion, deems useful or desirable. In such 
event, the Company, at its expense, shall deliver an appropriately revised Exhibit A to this Fee 
Agreement, in form reasonably acceptable to the County. 

Section 3.02  Diligent Completion 
 

The Company agrees to use its reasonable efforts to cause the completion of the Project as soon 
as practicable, but in any event on or prior to the end of the Investment Period. 

Section 3.03  Filings and Reports 
 

(a) Each year during the term of the Fee Agreement, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates shall deliver to the County, the County Auditor, the County Assessor and the County Treasurer 
a copy of their most recent annual filings with the Department with respect to the Project, not later than 
thirty (30) days following delivery thereof to the Department. 

(b) The Company shall cause a copy of this Fee Agreement, as well as a copy of the 
completed Form PT-443 of the Department, to be filed with the County Auditor and the County Assessor, 
and to their counterparts in the partner county to the MCIP Agreement, the County Administrator and the 
Department within thirty (30) days after the date of execution and delivery of this Fee Agreement by all 
parties hereto. 



 

10 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

(c) Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree to maintain complete books and 
records accounting for the acquisition, financing, construction, and operation of the Project.  Such books 
and records shall (i) permit ready identification of the various Phases and components thereof; (ii) 
confirm the dates on which each Phase was placed in service; and (iii) include copies of all filings made 
by the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates in accordance with Section 3.03(a) or (b) above with 
respect to property placed in service as part of the Project. 

[End of Article III] 



 

11 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE IV 
 

FILOT PAYMENTS 
 
Section 4.01  FILOT Payments 
 

(a) Pursuant to Section 12-44-50 of the FILOT Act, the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates, as applicable, are required to make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes to the County with 
respect to the Economic Development Property. Inasmuch as the Company anticipates an initial 
investment of sums sufficient for the Project to qualify for a fee in lieu of tax arrangement under Section 
12-44-50(A)(1) of the FILOT Act, the County and the Company have negotiated the amount of the 
FILOT Payments in accordance therewith. The Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes on all Economic Development Property which comprises the 
Project and is placed in service, as follows: the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall 
make payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes during the Exemption Period with respect to the Economic 
Development Property or, if there are Phases of the Economic Development Property, with respect to 
each Phase of the Economic Development Property, said payments to be made annually and to be due and 
payable and subject to penalty assessments on the same dates and in the same manner as prescribed by the 
County for ad valorem taxes. The determination of the amount of such annual FILOT Payments shall be 
in accordance with the following procedure (subject, in any event, to the procedures required by the 
FILOT Act): 

Step 1: Determine the fair market value of the Economic Development Property (or Phase of the 
Economic Development Property) placed in service during the Exemption Period using original income 
tax basis for State income tax purposes for any real property and Improvements without regard to 
depreciation (provided, the fair market value of real property, as the FILOT Act defines such term, that 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates obtains by construction or purchase in an arms-length 
transaction is equal to the original income tax basis, and otherwise, the determination of the fair market 
value is by appraisal) and original income tax basis for State income tax purposes for any personal 
property less depreciation for each year allowable for property tax purposes, except that no extraordinary 
obsolescence shall be allowable.  The fair market value of the real property for the first year of the 
Exemption Period remains the fair market value of the real property and Improvements for the life of the 
Exemption Period.  The determination of these values shall take into account all applicable property tax 
exemptions that State law would allow to the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates if the property were 
taxable, except those exemptions that Section 12-44-50(A)(2) of the FILOT Act specifically disallows. 

Step 2: Apply an assessment ratio of six percent (6%) to the fair market value in Step 1 to 
establish the taxable value of the Economic Development Property (or each Phase of the Economic 
Development Property) in the year it is placed in service and in each of the 29 years thereafter or such 
longer period of years in which the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement permit the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates to make annual FILOT payments. 

Step 3: Use a millage rate of .32527 mills during the Exemption Period against the taxable value 
to determine the amount of the FILOT Payments due during the Exemption Period on the applicable 
payment dates. 



 

12 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

(b) In the event that a final order of a court of competent jurisdiction from which no further 
appeal is allowable declares the FILOT Act and/or the herein-described FILOT Payments invalid or 
unenforceable, in whole or in part, for any reason, the parties express their intentions to reform such 
payments so as to effectuate most closely the intent thereof (without increasing the amount of incentives 
being afforded herein) and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits to be 
derived herefrom, the intention of the County being to offer the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates a 
strong inducement to locate the Project in the County.  If the Economic Development Property is deemed 
to be subject to ad valorem taxation, this Fee Agreement shall terminate, and the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County regular ad valorem taxes from the date of termination, but with 
appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions which are afforded to the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates.  Any amount determined to be due and owing to the County from the Company and 
such Sponsor Affiliates, with respect to a year or years for which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates 
previously remitted FILOT Payments to the County hereunder, shall (i) take into account all applicable 
tax exemptions to which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled if the Economic 
Development Property was not and had not been Economic Development Property under the Act; and 
(ii) be reduced by the total amount of FILOT Payments the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates had 
made with respect to the Project pursuant to the terms hereof.  

Section 4.02  Special Source Credits 
 

(a) In accordance with and pursuant to Section 12-44-70 of the FILOT Act and Section 4-1-
175 of the MCIP Act, in order to reimburse the Company for qualifying capital expenditures incurred for 
costs of the Infrastructure during the Standard Investment Period, the Company shall be entitled to 
receive, and the County agrees to provide, annual Special Source Credits against the Company’s FILOT 
Payments for a period of ten (10) consecutive years in an amount equal to eighty-five percent (85%) for 
years one through five (1-5) and thirty-five percent (35%) for years six through ten (6-10) of that portion 
of FILOT Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment 
made by the Company in the Project during the Standard Investment Period), calculated and applied after 
payment of the amount due the non-host county under the MCIP Agreement. 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, under no circumstances shall the Company 
be entitled to claim or receive any abatement of ad valorem taxes for any portion of the investment in the 
Project for which a Special Source Credit is taken. 

(c) In no event shall the aggregate amount of all Special Source Credits claimed by the 
Company exceed the amount expended with respect to the Infrastructure at any point in time. The Company 
shall be responsible for making written annual certification as to compliance with the provisions of the 
preceding sentence through the delivery of a certification in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit 
C.  

(d) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fail to meet the  Contract 
Minimum Investment Requirement by the fourth (4th) year following the project being placed in service, 
any subsequent Special Source Credits shall be reduced to thirty-five percent (35%) of that portion of 
FILOT Payments payable by the Company with respect to the Project (that is, with respect to investment 
made by the Company in the Project during the Investment Period).  Any portion of Special Source Credits 
lost because of a failure to meet the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the the 
fourth (4th) year following the project being placed in service shall not be recoverable by the Company or 
its Sponsor Affiliates. 

(e) As provided in Section 4-29-68 of the Code, to the extent any Special Source Credit is taken 
against fee in lieu of tax payment on personal property, and the personal property is removed from the Project 



 

13 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

at any time during the term of this Fee Agreement (and not replaced with qualifying replacement property), 
the amount of the fee in lieu of taxes due on the personal property for the year in which the personal property 
was removed from the Project shall be due for the two (2) years immediately following such removal. 

(f) Each annual Special Source Credit shall be reflected by the County Auditor or other 
authorized County official or representative on each bill for FILOT Payments sent to the Company by the 
County for each applicable property tax year, by reducing such FILOT Payments otherwise due by the 
amount of the Special Source Credit to be provided to the Company for such property tax year. 

(g) The Special Source Credits are payable solely from the FILOT Payments, are not secured 
by, or in any way entitled to, a pledge of the full faith, credit or taxing power of the County, are not an 
indebtedness of the County within the meaning of any State constitutional provision or statutory 
limitation, are payable solely from a special source that does not include revenues from any tax or license, 
and are not a pecuniary liability of the County or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of the 
County. 

Section 4.03  Failure to Achieve Minimum Investment Requirement 
 

(a) In the event the Company, together with any Sponsor Affiliates, fails to meet the FILOT 
Act Minimum Investment Requirement by the end of the Investment Period, this Fee Agreement shall 
terminate and the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates shall pay the County an amount which is equal to 
the excess, if any, of (i) the total amount of ad valorem taxes as would result from taxes levied on the 
Project by the County, municipality or municipalities, school district or school districts, and other 
political units as if the items of property comprising the Economic Development Property were not 
Economic Development Property, but with appropriate reductions equivalent to all tax exemptions and 
abatements to which the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates would be entitled in such a case, through 
and including the end of the Investment Period, over (ii) the total amount of FILOT Payments the 
Company and such Sponsor Affiliates have made with respect to the Economic Development Property 
(after taking into account any Special Source Credits received) (such excess, a “Deficiency Amount”) for 
the period through and including the end of the Investment Period. Any amounts determined to be owing 
pursuant to the foregoing sentence shall be payable to the County on or before the one hundred twentieth 
(120th) day following the last day of the Investment Period. 

 (b)  As a condition to the FILOT benefit provided herein, the Company agrees to provide the 
County Administrator, the County Assessor, the County Auditor and the County Treasurer with an annual 
certification as to investment in the Project. Such certification shall be in substantially the form attached 
hereto as Exhibit B, and shall be due no later than the May 1 following the immediately preceding 
December 31 of each year during the Investment Period. 



 

14 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

Section 4.04  Removal of Equipment 
 

Subject, always, to the other terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement, the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to remove and dispose of components of the Project from the Project 
in its sole discretion with the result that said components shall no longer be considered a part of the 
Project and, to the extent such constitute Economic Development Property, shall no longer be subject to 
the terms of this Fee Agreement.  Economic Development Property is disposed of only when it is 
scrapped or sold or removed from the Project. If it is removed from the Project, it is subject to ad valorem 
property taxes to the extent the Property remains in the State and is otherwise subject to ad valorem 
property taxes. 

Section 4.05  FILOT Payments on Replacement Property 
 

If the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate elects to replace any Removed Components and to 
substitute such Removed Components with Replacement Property as a part of the Economic 
Development Property, or the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate otherwise utilizes Replacement 
Property, then, pursuant and subject to the provisions of Section 12-44-60 of the FILOT Act, the 
Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall make statutory payments in lieu of ad valorem taxes with regard 
to such Replacement Property in accordance with the following: 

(i) Replacement Property does not have to serve the same function as the 
Economic Development Property it is replacing.  Replacement Property is deemed to replace the 
oldest Economic Development Property subject to the Fee, whether real or personal, which is 
disposed of in the same property tax year in which the Replacement Property is placed in service.  
Replacement Property qualifies as Economic Development Property only to the extent of the 
original income tax basis of Economic Development Property which is being disposed of in the 
same property tax year.  More than one piece of property can replace a single piece of Economic 
Development Property.  To the extent that the income tax basis of the Replacement Property 
exceeds the original income tax basis of the Economic Development Property which it is 
replacing, the excess amount is subject to annual payments calculated as if the exemption for 
Economic Development Property were not allowable.  Replacement Property is entitled to 
treatment under the Fee Agreement for the period of time remaining during the Exemption Period 
for the Economic Development Property which it is replacing; and 

(ii) The new Replacement Property which qualifies for the FILOT shall be 
recorded using its income tax basis, and the calculation of the FILOT shall utilize the millage rate 
and assessment ratio in effect with regard to the original property subject to the FILOT. 

Section 4.06  Reductions in Payment of Taxes Upon Diminution in Value; Investment Maintenance 
Requirement 

 
In the event of a Diminution in Value of the Economic Development Property, the Payment in 

Lieu of Taxes with regard to the Economic Development Property shall be reduced in the same proportion 
as the amount of such Diminution in Value bears to the original fair market value of the Economic 
Development Property as determined pursuant to Step 1 of Section 4.01(a) hereof; provided, however, 
that if at any time subsequent to the end of the Investment Period, the total value of the Project remaining 
in the County based on the original income tax basis thereof (that is, without regard to depreciation), is 
less than the FILOT Act Minimum Investment Requirement, then beginning with the first payment 
thereafter due hereunder and continuing until the Termination Date, the Project shall no longer be entitled 
to the incentive provided in Section 4.01, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate shall therefore 
commence to pay regular ad valorem taxes thereon, calculated as set forth in Section 4.01(b) hereof.   



 

15 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

[End of Article IV] 



 

16 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE V 
 

PARTICULAR COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 
 
Section 5.01  Cessation of Operations 
 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Fee Agreement, each of the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges and agrees that County’s obligation to provide the FILOT incentive may 
end, and this Fee Agreement may be terminated by the County, at the County’s sole discretion, if the 
Company ceases operations at the Project; provided, however, that the Special Source Credits provided 
for in this Fee Agreement shall automatically terminate if the Company ceases operations as set forth in 
this Section 5.01.  For purposes of this Section, “ceases operations” means closure of the facility or the 
cessation of production and shipment of products to customers for a continuous period of twelve (12) 
months.  The provisions of Section 4.03 hereof relating to retroactive payments shall apply, if applicable, 
if this Fee Agreement is terminated in accordance with this Section prior to the end of the Investment 
Period.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agrees that if this Fee Agreement is terminated 
pursuant to this subsection, that under no circumstance shall the County be required to refund or pay any 
monies to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates. 

Section 5.02  Rights to Inspect 
 

The Company agrees that the County and its authorized agents shall have the right at all 
reasonable times and upon prior reasonable notice to enter upon and examine and inspect the Project. The 
County and its authorized agents shall also be permitted, at all reasonable times and upon prior reasonable 
notice, to have access to examine and inspect the Company’s South Carolina property tax returns, as filed. 
The aforesaid rights of examination and inspection shall be exercised only upon such reasonable and 
necessary terms and conditions as the Company shall prescribe, and shall be subject to the provisions of 
Section 5.03 hereof. 

Section 5.03  Confidentiality 
 

The County acknowledges and understands that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may 
utilize confidential and proprietary processes and materials, services, equipment, trade secrets, and 
techniques (herein “Confidential Information”). In this regard, the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates 
may clearly label any Confidential Information delivered to the County “Confidential Information.”  The 
County agrees that, except as required by law, neither the County nor any employee, agent, or contractor 
of the County shall disclose or otherwise divulge any such clearly labeled Confidential Information to any 
other person, firm, governmental body or agency, or any other entity unless specifically required to do so 
by law.  Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledge that the County is subject to the 
South Carolina Freedom of Information Act, and, as a result, must disclose certain documents and 
information on request, absent an exemption. In the event that the County is required to disclose any 
Confidential Information obtained from the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates to any third party, the 
County agrees to provide the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates with as much advance notice as is 
reasonably possible of such requirement before making such disclosure, and to cooperate reasonably with 
any attempts by the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates to obtain judicial or other relief from such 
disclosure requirement. 

Section 5.04  Limitation of County’s Liability 
 

Anything herein to the contrary notwithstanding, any financial obligation the County may incur 
hereunder, including for the payment of money, shall not be deemed to constitute a pecuniary liability or 



 

17 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

a debt or general obligation of the County (it being intended herein that any obligations of the County 
with respect to the Special Source Revenue Credits shall be payable only from FILOT payments received 
from or payable by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates); provided, however, that nothing herein shall 
prevent the Company from enforcing its rights hereunder by suit for mandamus or specific performance. 

Section 5.05  Mergers, Reorganizations and Equity Transfers 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that any mergers, reorganizations 
or consolidations of the Company and such Sponsor Affiliates may cause the Project to become ineligible 
for negotiated fees in lieu of taxes under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the Company and such 
Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions; provided that, to the extent provided by Section 12-44-
120 of the FILOT Act or any successor provision, any financing arrangements entered into by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates with respect to the Project and any security interests granted by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliates in connection therewith shall not be construed as a transfer for 
purposes of the Transfer Provisions.  Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, it 
is not intended in this Fee Agreement that the County shall impose transfer restrictions with respect to the 
Company, any Sponsor Affiliates or the Project as are any more restrictive than the Transfer Provisions. 

Section 5.06  Indemnification Covenants 
 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Fee Agreement or in any other agreements 
with the County, the Company agrees to indemnify, defend and save the County, its County Council 
members, elected officials, officers, employees, servants and agents (collectively, the “Indemnified 
Parties”) harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation arising 
from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project or the Land by the 
Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, their members, officers, shareholders, employees, servants, 
contractors, and agents during the Term, and, the Company further, shall indemnify, defend and save the 
Indemnified Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the Term from (i) entering into 
and performing its obligations under this Fee Agreement, (ii) any condition of the Project, (iii) any breach 
or default on the part of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate in the performance of any of its 
obligations under this Fee Agreement, (iv) any act of negligence of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate 
or its agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, (v) any act of negligence of any assignee or 
lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees of any assignee or lessee of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, or (vi) any environmental 
violation, condition, or effect with respect to the Project.  The Company shall indemnify, defend and save 
the County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such 
claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon 
notice from the County, the Company shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding with 
legal counsel acceptable to the County (the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld). 

(b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Fee Agreement, or the undertakings 
required of the County hereunder, by reason of the granting of the FILOT, by reason of the execution of 
this Fee Agreement, by the reason of the performance of any act requested of it by the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate, or by reason of the County’s relationship to the Project or by the operation of the 
Project by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the 
County or any of the other Indemnified Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such 
event the Company shall indemnify, defend and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of 
any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection 
with any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the 



 

18 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

Company shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal counsel acceptable to the County 
(the approval of which shall not be unreasonably withheld); provided, however, that such indemnity shall 
not apply to the extent that any such claim is attributable to (i) the grossly negligent acts or omissions or 
willful misconduct of the County, its agents, officers or employees, or (ii) any breach of this Fee 
Agreement by the County. 

(c) Notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the above-referenced 
covenants insofar as they pertain to costs, damages, liabilities or claims by any Indemnified Party 
resulting from any of the above-described acts of or failure to act by the Company or any Sponsor 
Affiliate, shall survive any termination of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 5.07  Qualification in State 
 

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates warrant that it is duly qualified to do business in 
the State, and covenants that it will continue to be so qualified so long as it operates any portion of the 
Project. 

Section 5.08  No Liability of County’s Personnel 
 

All covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County contained herein 
shall be deemed to be covenants, stipulations, promises, agreements and obligations of the County and 
shall be binding upon any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, servant or 
employee of the County only in his or her official capacity and not in his or her individual capacity, and 
no recourse shall be had for the payment of any moneys hereunder against any member of the governing 
body of the County or any elected official, officer, agent, servants or employee of the County and no 
recourse shall be had against any member of the County Council or any elected official, officer, agent, 
servant or employee of the County for the performance of any of the covenants and agreements of the 
County herein contained or for any claims based thereon except solely in their official capacity. 

Section 5.09  Assignment, Leases or Transfers 
 

The County agrees that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates may at any time (a) transfer all 
or any of their rights and interests under this Fee Agreement or with respect to all or any part of the 
Project, or (b) enter into any lending, financing, leasing, security, or similar arrangement or succession of 
such arrangements with any financing or other entity with respect to this Fee Agreement or all or any part 
of the Project, including without limitation any sale-leaseback, equipment lease, build-to-suit lease, 
synthetic lease, nordic lease, defeased tax benefit or transfer lease, assignment, sublease or similar 
arrangement or succession of such arrangements, regardless of the identity of the income tax owner of 
such portion of the Project, whereby the transferee in any such arrangement leases the portion of the 
Project in question to the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate or operates such assets for the Company or 
any Sponsor Affiliate or is leasing the portion of the Project in question from the Company or any 
Sponsor Affiliate.  In order to preserve the FILOT benefit afforded hereunder with respect to any portion 
of the Project so transferred, leased, financed, or otherwise affected: (i) except in connection with any 
transfer to an Affiliate of the Company or of any Sponsor Affiliate, or transfers, leases, or financing 
arrangements pursuant to clause (b) above (as to which such transfers the County hereby consents), the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, as applicable, shall obtain the prior consent or subsequent 
ratification of the County which consent or subsequent ratification may be granted by the County in its 
sole discretion; (ii) except when a financing entity which is the income tax owner of all or part of the 
Project is the transferee pursuant to clause (b) above and such financing entity assumes in writing the 
obligations of the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, hereunder, or when the County 
consents in writing, no such transfer shall affect or reduce any of the obligations of the Company and any 



 

19 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

Sponsor Affiliates hereunder; (iii) to the extent the transferee or financing entity shall become obligated 
to make FILOT Payments hereunder, the transferee shall assume the then current basis of, as the case may 
be, the Company or any Sponsor Affiliates (or prior transferee) in the portion of the Project transferred; 
(iv) the Company or applicable Sponsor Affiliate, transferee or financing entity shall, within sixty (60) 
days thereof, furnish or cause to be furnished to the County and the Department a true and complete copy 
of any such transfer agreement; and (v) the Company, the Sponsor Affiliates and the transferee shall 
comply with all other requirements of the Transfer Provisions. 

Subject to County consent when required under this Section, and at the expense of the Company 
or any Sponsor Affiliate, as the case may be, the County agrees to take such further action or execute such 
further agreements, documents, and instruments as may be reasonably required to effectuate the 
assumption by any such transferee of all or part of the rights of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
under this Fee Agreement and/or any release of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate pursuant to this 
Section.   

Each of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates acknowledges that such a transfer of an interest 
under this Fee Agreement or in the Project may cause all or part of the Project to become ineligible for the 
FILOT benefit afforded hereunder or result in penalties under the FILOT Act absent compliance by the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the Transfer Provisions.   

Section 5.10  Administration Expenses 
 

The Company agrees to pay any Administration Expenses to the County when and as they shall 
become due, but in no event later than the date which is the earlier of any payment date expressly 
provided for in this Fee Agreement or the date which is forty-five (45) days after receiving written notice 
from the County, accompanied by such supporting documentation as may be necessary to evidence the 
County’s or Indemnified Party’s right to receive such payment, specifying the nature of such expense and 
requesting payment of same. 

Section 5.11  Priority Lien Status 
 

The County’s right to receive FILOT payments hereunder shall have a first priority lien status 
pursuant to Sections 12-44-90(E) and (F) of the FILOT Act and Chapters 4, 49, 51, 53, and 54 of Title 12 
of the Code. 

Section 5.12  Interest; Penalties 
 

In the event the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate should fail to make any of the payments to the 
County required under this Fee Agreement, then the item or installment so in default shall continue as an 
obligation of the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate until the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate shall 
have fully paid the amount, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates agree, as applicable, to pay the 
same with interest thereon at a rate, unless expressly provided otherwise herein and in the case of FILOT 
payments, of 5% per annum, compounded monthly, to accrue from the date on which the payment was 
due and, in the case of FILOT payments, at the rate for non-payment of ad valorem taxes under State law 
and subject to the penalties the law provides until payment. 
 
Section 5.13  Sponsor Affiliates 
 

The Company may designate from time to time any Sponsor Affiliates pursuant to the provisions 
of Sections 12-44-30(20) and 12-44-130 of the FILOT Act, which Sponsor Affiliates shall join with the 
Company and make investments with respect to the Project, or participate in the financing of such 



 

20 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

investments, and shall agree to be bound by the terms and provisions of this Fee Agreement pursuant to 
the terms of a written joinder agreement with the County and the Company, in form reasonably 
acceptable to the County.  The Company shall provide the County and the Department with written notice 
of any Sponsor Affiliate designated pursuant to this Section within ninety (90) days after the end of the 
calendar year during which any such Sponsor Affiliate has placed in service any portion of the Project, in 
accordance with Section 12-44-130(B) of the FILOT Act. 
 

[End of Article V] 



 

21 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE VI 
 

DEFAULT 
 
Section 6.01  Events of Default 
 

The following shall be “Events of Default” under this Fee Agreement, and the term “Event of 
Default” shall mean, whenever used with reference to this Fee Agreement, any one or more of the 
following occurrences: 

(a) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to make the FILOT Payments described 
in Section 4.01 hereof, or any other amounts payable to the County under this Fee Agreement when due, 
which failure shall not have been cured within thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice thereof 
from the County; provided, however, that the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates shall be entitled to all 
redemption rights granted by applicable statutes; or 

(b) A representation or warranty made by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate hereunder 
which is deemed materially incorrect when deemed made; or  

(c) Failure by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate to perform any of the terms, conditions, 
obligations, or covenants hereunder (other than those under (a) above), which failure shall continue for a 
period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the County to the Company and such Sponsor Affiliate 
specifying such failure and requesting that it be remedied, unless the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate 
shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is diligently pursuing such action until 
the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be extended to cover such additional period 
during which the Company or such Sponsor Affiliate is diligently pursuing corrective action; or 

(d) Failure by the County to perform any of the terms, conditions, obligations, or covenants 
hereunder, which failure shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from the 
Company to the County and any Sponsor Affiliates specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied, unless the County shall have instituted corrective action within such time period and is 
diligently pursuing such action until the default is corrected, in which case the 30-day period shall be 
extended to cover such additional period during which the County is diligently pursuing corrective action. 
 
Section 6.02  Remedies Upon Default 
 

(a) Whenever any Event of Default by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate (the 
“Defaulting Entity”) shall have occurred and shall be continuing, the County may take any one or more of 
the following remedial actions as to the Defaulting Entity, only: 

(i) terminate this Fee Agreement; or 
 

(ii) take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable to 
collect the amounts due hereunder.   

In no event shall the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate be liable to the County or otherwise for 
monetary damages resulting from the Company’s (together with any Sponsor Affiliates) failure to meet 
the Contract Minimum Investment Requirement other than as expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement. 

 In addition to all other remedies provided herein, the failure to make FILOT payments shall give 
rise to a lien for tax purposes as provided in Section 12-44-90 of the FILOT Act.  In this regard, and 



 

22 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

notwithstanding anything in this Fee Agreement to the contrary, the County may exercise the remedies 
that general law (including Title 12, Chapter 49 of the Code) provides with regard to the enforced 
collection of ad valorem taxes to collect any FILOT payments due hereunder. 

(b) Whenever any Event of Default by the County shall have occurred or shall be continuing, 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliate may take one or more of the following actions: 

(i) bring an action for specific enforcement; 
 

(ii) terminate this Fee Agreement as to the acting party; or 
 

(iii) in case of a materially incorrect representation or warranty, take such action as is 
appropriate, including legal action, to recover its damages, to the extent allowed by law. 

Section 6.03  Reimbursement of Legal Fees and Expenses and Other Expenses 
 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default hereunder by the Company or any Sponsor Affiliate, 
should the County be required to employ attorneys or incur other reasonable expenses for the collection of 
payments due hereunder or for the enforcement of performance or observance of any obligation or 
agreement, the County shall be entitled, within thirty (30) days of demand therefor, to reimbursement of 
the reasonable fees of such attorneys and such other reasonable expenses so incurred.   

Section 6.04  No Waiver 
 

No failure or delay on the part of any party hereto in exercising any right, power, or remedy 
hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor shall any single or partial exercise of any such right, 
power, or remedy preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power, 
or remedy hereunder. No waiver of any provision hereof shall be effective unless the same shall be in 
writing and signed by the waiving party hereto. 
 

[End of Article VI] 



 

23 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

ARTICLE VII 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 
Section 7.01  Notices 
 

Any notice, election, demand, request, or other communication to be provided under this Fee 
Agreement shall be effective when delivered to the party named below or when deposited with the United 
States Postal Service, certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows (or 
addressed to such other address as any party shall have previously furnished in writing to the other party), 
except where the terms hereof require receipt rather than sending of any notice, in which case such 
provision shall control: 

 
If to the Company: 
 
Hartwell Resort, LLC 
Attn:  Jim Davis 
4023 Whitehall Road,  
Anderson, SC 29626 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Haynsworth Sinkler Boyd, P.A. 
Attn: J. Philip Land, Jr. (pland@hsblawfirm.com) 
One North Main Street 
2nd Floor 
Greenville, South Carolina 29601   
 
If to the County: 
 

 Anderson County 
Attn:  County Administrator 

 101 S. Main Street 
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 
 
With a copy to: 
 
Anderson County Attorney 
101 S. Main Street  
Anderson, South Carolina 29624 

 
Section 7.02  Binding Effect 
 

This Fee Agreement and each document contemplated hereby or related hereto shall be binding 
upon and inure to the benefit of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County, and their respective 
successors and assigns.  In the event of the dissolution of the County or the consolidation of any part of 
the County with any other political subdivision or the transfer of any rights of the County to any other 
such political subdivision, all of the covenants, stipulations, promises, and agreements of this Fee 
Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of the County from time to time and any 
entity, officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom or to which any power or duty of 
the County has been transferred. 



 

24 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

Section 7.03  Counterparts 
 

This Fee Agreement may be executed in any number of counterparts, and all of the counterparts 
taken together shall be deemed to constitute one and the same instrument. 

Section 7.04  Governing Law 
 

This Fee Agreement and all documents executed in connection herewith shall be construed in 
accordance with and governed by the laws of the State. 

Section 7.05  Headings 
 

The headings of the articles and sections of this Fee Agreement are inserted for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to constitute a part of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.06  Amendments 
 

The provisions of this Fee Agreement may only be modified or amended in writing by any 
agreement or agreements entered into between the parties. 

Section 7.07  Further Assurance 
 

From time to time, and at the expense of the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates, the County 
agrees to execute and deliver to the Company and any such Sponsor Affiliates such additional instruments 
as the Company or such Sponsor Affiliates may reasonably request and as are authorized by law and 
reasonably within the purposes and scope of the FILOT Act and this Fee Agreement to effectuate the 
purposes of this Fee Agreement. 

Section 7.08  Invalidity; Change in Laws 
 

In the event that the inclusion of property as Economic Development Property or any other issue 
is unclear under this Fee Agreement, the County hereby expresses its intention that the interpretation of 
this Fee Agreement shall be in a manner that provides for the broadest inclusion of property under the 
terms of this Fee Agreement and the maximum incentive permissible under the FILOT Act, to the extent 
not inconsistent with any of the explicit terms hereof.  If any provision of this Fee Agreement is declared 
illegal, invalid, or unenforceable for any reason, and the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates do not 
realize the economic benefit they are intended to receive from the County under this Fee Agreement, the 
County shall provide the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates additional Special Source Revenue Credits 
to the maximum extent permitted by law, in an amount sufficient to ensure the same net financial benefit 
is afforded to the Project as is to be provided hereunder. Further, the remaining provisions hereof shall be 
unimpaired, and such illegal, invalid, or unenforceable provision shall be reformed to effectuate most 
closely the legal, valid, and enforceable intent thereof and so as to afford the Company and any Sponsor 
Affiliates with the maximum benefits to be derived herefrom, it being the intention of the County to offer 
the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates the strongest inducement possible, within the provisions of the 
FILOT Act, to locate the Project in the County.  In case a change in the FILOT Act or South Carolina 
laws eliminates or reduces any of the restrictions or limitations applicable to the Company and any 
Sponsor Affiliates and the FILOT incentive, the parties agree that the County will give expedient and full 
consideration to reformation of this Fee Agreement, and, if the County Council so decides, to provide the 
Company and any Sponsor Affiliates with the benefits of such change in the FILOT Act or South 
Carolina laws. 



 

25 
HSB 7364706 v.6  

Section 7.09  Termination by Company 
 

The Company is authorized to terminate this Fee Agreement at any time with respect to all or part 
of the Project upon providing the County with thirty (30) days’ written notice; provided, however, that (i) 
any monetary obligations existing hereunder and due and owing at the time of termination to a party 
hereto (including without limitation any amounts owed with respect to Section 4.03 hereof); and (ii) any 
provisions which are intended to survive termination shall survive such termination. In the year following 
such termination, all property shall be subject to ad valorem taxation or such other taxation or fee in lieu 
of taxation that would apply absent this Fee Agreement. The Company’s obligation to make FILOT 
Payments under this Fee Agreement shall terminate in the year following the year of such termination 
pursuant to this section. 

Section 7.10  Entire Understanding 
 

This Fee Agreement expresses the entire understanding and all agreements of the parties hereto 
with each other, and neither party hereto has made or shall be bound by any agreement or any 
representation to the other party which is not expressly set forth in this Fee Agreement or in certificates 
delivered in connection with the execution and delivery hereof. 

Section 7.11  Waiver 
 

Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any term or condition of this Fee 
Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 

Section 7.12  Business Day 
 

In the event that any action, payment, or notice is, by the terms of this Fee Agreement, required to 
be taken, made, or given on any day which is a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the jurisdiction in 
which the person obligated to act is domiciled, such action, payment, or notice may be taken, made, or 
given on the following business day with the same effect as if given as required hereby, and no interest 
shall accrue in the interim. 

[End of Article VII] 
 



26 
HSB 7364706 v.6 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the County, acting by and through the County Council, has caused 
this Fee Agreement to be executed in its name and behalf by the County Chairman and to be attested by 
the Clerk of the County Council; and the Company has caused this Fee Agreement to be executed by its 
duly authorized officer, all as of the day and year first above written. 

ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

By:  
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 

Attest: 

By:_ 
Renee Watts, Clerk to Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

[Signature Page 1 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 



27 
HSB 7364706 v.6 

HARTWELL RESORT, LLC 

By:  
Its:  

[Signature Page 2 to Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement] 



A-1
HSB 7364706 v.6 

EXHIBIT A 

DESCRIPTION OF LAND 

Anderson County TMS Numbers: 

047-03-01-004 

047-03-01-005 

047-03-01-006 

047-03-01-007 

ALL those certain pieces, parcels or lots of land, with any improvements thereon, situate, lying and being on 
Whitehall Road in Anderson County, South Carolina being shown and designated as Parcel A containing 
0.76 acre, more or less, Parcel B containing 8.92 acres, more or less, Parcel C containing 0.13 acre, more or 
less, and Parcel D containing 1.62 acres, more or less, as shown on a plat prepared for Real Estate 
Investments by 3D Land Surveying dated March 30, 2022 and recorded August 18, 2022 in Book S2953, 
Page 00008, records of Anderson County South Carolina. Reference is made to said plat for a more accurate 
and complete description of the metes and bounds of the subject property. 

BEING the same property conveyed to Lash Enterprises, Inc. by deed of Big Bass Valley, Inc. dated 
November 16, 2005 and recorded November 23, 2005 in Book 7077, Page 197, records of Anderson 
County, South Carolina. 



B-1
HSB 7364706 v.6 

EXHIBIT B 

INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.03 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 20__ between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 

(1) The total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the Project
during the calendar year ending December 31, 20__ was $___________. 

(2) The cumulative total investment made by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates in the
Project from the period beginning __________, 20__ (that is, the beginning date of the Investment 
Period) and ending December 31, 20__, is $__________. 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 

Name: 
Its: 



C-1
HSB 7364706 v.6 

EXHIBIT C 

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT CERTIFICATION 

I __________, the __________ of __________ (the “Company”), do hereby certify in connection 
with Section 4.02 of the Fee in Lieu of Tax and Special Source Credit Agreement dated as of 
__________, 20__ between Anderson County, South Carolina and the Company (the “Agreement”), as 
follows: 

(1) As of the date hereof, the aggregate amount of Special Source Revenue Credits previously
received by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates is $_________. 

(2) As of December 31, 20__, the aggregate amount of investment in costs of Infrastructure
incurred by the Company and any Sponsor Affiliates during the Investment Period is not less than 
$_________. 

All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand this _____ day of __________, 20__. 

Name: 
Its: 











45273909 v3 1 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-048 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING AGREEMENT 
ON BEHALF OF TETRAMER TECHNOLOGIES LLC AND HOOBASTANK 

INDUSTRIES LLC, FOR A NEW PROJECT (TETRAMER 2) TO BE LOCATED IN AN 
ALREADY EXISTING  JOINTLY OWNED AND OPERATED INDUSTRIAL/BUSINESS 
PARK IN CONJUNCTION WITH GREENVILLE COUNTY (TETRAMER MCIP),  AND 

OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council (the “County Council”) is authorized and empowered under and pursuant to the 
provisions of the Code of Laws of the State of South Carolina, 1976, as amended (the “Code”), 
including, without limitation, Titles 4 and 12, including, particularly, Chapter 44 of Title 12 of the 
Code (collectively, the “Act”), to offer and provide certain privileges, benefits, and incentives to 
prospective developers as inducements for economic development within the County; to acquire, or 
cause to be acquired, properties (which such properties constitute “projects” as defined in the Act) 
and to enter into agreements with any business to construct, operate, maintain and improve such 
projects; to enter into or allow financing agreements with respect to such projects; and, to accept 
any grants for such projects through which powers the industrial and business development of the 
State of South Carolina will be promoted and trade developed by inducing manufacturing and 
commercial enterprises to locate and remain in the State of South Carolina and thus utilize and 
employ the manpower, agricultural products and natural resources of the State and benefit the 
general public welfare of the County by providing services, employment, recreation, tourism or 
other public benefits not otherwise provided locally; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County is authorized by Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina 
Constitution and Section 4-1-170 of the Code (the “Joint-County Industrial and Business Park 
Act”), to enter into agreements (“Park Agreements”) with one or more contiguous counties for the 
creation and operation of one or more joint-county industrial and business parks; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tetramer Technologies LLC (“Tetramer”) and Hoobastank Industries LLC 
(“Hoobastank”) (together, the Companies, or Project “Tetramer 2”), limited liability companies, 
duly authorized to do business in South Carolina, and, in fact, already doing business in the State, 
are considering acquiring by construction or purchase or lease/purchase certain land and buildings, 
and by construction or purchase certain  furnishings, fixtures, machinery, apparati, and equipment, 
for the development and expansion of a manufacturing facility in the County (the “Project”), which 
will result in an expected total investment of over One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) in the County, 
which would be subject to this Agreement, all within the meaning of the Act, and the maintenance 
of the twenty-one (21) jobs currently in existence at the Companies in connection with the Project, 
during the period beginning with the first day that real or personal property comprising the Project is 
purchased or acquired (1/1/22) and ending five (5) years after the last day of the Companies’ 
property tax year (which at this time is calendar year) during which the Project is first placed in 
service (at this time expected to be 2022) (which ending date at this time, is estimated to be the end 
of 2027 (the “Initial Investment Period”)); and 



45273909 v3 2 

 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined that the Project, and recruitment of the Companies 
to Anderson County, would be aided by the availability of the assistance which the County might 
render through (1) the inclusion and retention of the Project and the other real and personal property 
of the Companies located at the Project site(s) in the County, in a joint-county industrial and 
business park which is either already in existence (a Park, as defined herein, was created at the 
Project site for the first Tetramer Technologies LLC project, and that Park is currently scheduled to 
remain in place through the end of 2034, which will cover the timing of all of the Infrastructure 
Credits authorized herein), or to be created by the County (the “Park” or the “Joint-County Park”); 
(2) the granting by the County to the Companies of certain infrastructure credits, pursuant to Section 
4-1-175 of the Code and other applicable provisions of the Act (the “Infrastructure Credits”), to 
partially reimburse the Companies for economic development infrastructure serving the County; 
and, that the inducement will, to a great degree of certainty, result in the acquisition and 
construction of the Project in the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has given due consideration to the economic development impact 
of the Project, has found that the Project and the Park payments-in-lieu-of-taxes from the Project in 
the Park would be directly and substantially beneficial to the County, the taxing entities of the 
County, and the citizens and residents of the County, and that the Project would directly and 
indirectly benefit the general public welfare and serve a public purpose of the County by providing 
services, employment, recreation, promotion of tourism, or other public benefits not otherwise 
provided locally; and, that the Project gives rise to no pecuniary liability of the County, or a charge 
or pledge against the full faith, general credit or taxing power of the County; and, that the purposes 
to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development and welfare, creation of jobs, 
promotion of tourism, and addition to the manufacturing footprint and tax base of the County, are 
proper governmental and public purposes and that the inducement of the location or expansion of 
the Project within the County and State is of paramount importance and that the benefits of the 
Project will be greater than the cost; and, has agreed to effect the issuance, execution and delivery of 
an Infrastructure Financing Agreement, pursuant to this Ordinance of the County Council, and on 
the terms and conditions set forth therein: 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by Anderson County, South Carolina, as 
follows: 
 
 Section 1.  As contemplated by the Act and based on the representations of the 
Companies as recited herein, it is hereby found, determined and declared by the County Council, as 
follows: 
 
 (a) The Project will constitute a “project” as said term is referred to and defined in the 
Act, and will subserve the purposes and in all respects conform to the provisions and requirements 
of the Act; 



45273909 v3 3 

 
 (b) It is anticipated that the Project will benefit the general public welfare of the County 
by providing employment, services, recreation and other public benefits not otherwise provided 
locally; 
 
 (c) Neither the Project, nor any documents or agreements entered into by the County in 
connection therewith will constitute or give rise to any pecuniary liability of the County or a charge 
against its general credit or taxing power; 
 
 (d) The purposes to be accomplished by the Project, i.e., economic development, 
creation or retention of jobs, and addition to the tax base of the County, are proper governmental 
and public purposes; 
 
 (e) The benefits of the Project to the public are greater than the costs to the public; 
 
 (f) The Park Agreement requires the Companies to make fee-in-lieu of tax payments in 
the Park in accordance with the provisions of the Act, which payments may be used to provide 
Infrastructure Credits through the Infrastructure Financing Agreement; and 

 
 Section 2. The form, terms, and provisions of the Infrastructure Financing Agreement 
presented to this meeting and filed with the Clerk to the County Council be and they are hereby 
approved, and all of the terms, provisions, and conditions thereof are hereby incorporated herein by 
reference as if the Infrastructure Financing Agreement were set out in this Ordinance in its entirety. 
The Chairman of County Council, the Administrator of the County and the Clerk to the County 
Council be and they are hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, acknowledge, and 
deliver the Infrastructure Financing Agreement in the name and on behalf of the County, and 
thereupon to cause the Infrastructure Financing Agreement to be delivered to the Companies.  The 
Infrastructure Financing Agreement is to be in substantially the form now before this meeting and 
hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall not materially adversely affect the rights of 
the County thereunder and as shall be approved by the officials of the County executing the same 
upon the advice of the County Attorney, their execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of 
their approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from the form of the Infrastructure 
Financing Agreement now before this meeting. 
 
 Section 3. The County,  at the Companies’ sole expense, and with the consent of the 
Town of Pendleton entered into a Park Agreement with Greenville County to create or expand a 
Park, pursuant to Section 13 of Article VIII of the South Carolina Constitution and Section 4-1-170 
of the Code, to include the Project site and the other property of the Companies located at the 
Project site(s) within the County, and to undertake and execute those procedures and documents 
necessary for the creation or expansion of such Park, and to keep the Project site(s) in such Park or 
any other Park of the County during the term of the incentives provided in the infrastructure 
financing agreement for the prior Tetramer project.  The project site for the prior project is the same 
site as for the current Project, and will meet the County’s obligation to place this Project into a Park 
for the term of the incentives provided herein.  Further, the County shall, at the Companies’ sole 
expense, use its best efforts and endeavor to work with one or more contiguous counties (and, to the 
extent the Project site(s) is located within the corporate limits of a municipality, will work with such 



45273909 v3 4 

municipality) to establish such Park in accordance with the terms of this Ordinance and, in any 
event, to keep the Project site(s) as part of such Park or any other Park of the County throughout the 
term of the incentives provided in this Ordinance. 
  
 Section 4. (a) The Companies shall and, in the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, 
agree to indemnify and save the County harmless against and from all claims by or on behalf of any 
person, firm or corporation arising from the conduct or management of, or from any work or thing 
done on the Project during the term of the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, except that 
proximately caused by the intentional or grossly negligent conduct of the County or its employees 
and authorized agents, and the Companies further shall indemnify and save the County harmless 
against and from all claims arising during the term of the Infrastructure Financing  Agreement from 
(i) any condition of the Project, (ii) any breach or default on the part of the Companies in the 
performance of any of their obligations under the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, (iii) any act 
of negligence of the Company or any of their agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees 
related to the Project, (iv) any act of negligence of any assignee or sublessee of the Companies, or of 
any agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees of any assignee or sublessee of the 
Companies related to the Project,  or (v) any environmental violation, condition or effect, related to 
the Project, except that proximately caused by the intentional or grossly negligent conduct of the 
County or its employees and authorized agents.  The Companies shall indemnify and save the 
County harmless from and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such 
claim arising as aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon 
notice from the County, the Companies shall defend it in any such action, prosecution or proceeding 
with counsel reasonably acceptable to the County.  All such indemnification and save harmless 
provisions shall be, and are, set forth in the Infrastructure Financing Agreement. 
 
 (b) Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the County, its 
agents, officers, or employees, shall not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this 
Agreement, or the undertakings required of the County hereunder by reason of the performance of 
any act requests of it by the Companies, or by reason of the County’s approval of the Project or the 
operation of the Project by the Companies, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in 
connection with the violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, 
if the County, its agents, officers or employees should incur any such pecuniary liability, except that 
proximately caused by the intentional or grossly negligent conduct of the County or its employees 
and authorized agents, then in such event the Companies shall indemnify and hold them harmless 
against all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or corporation, arising out of the same, and all 
costs and expenses incurred in connection with any such claim or in connection with any action or 
proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, the Companies shall defend them in any such action 
or proceeding, with counsel reasonably acceptable to the County. 
 
 (c) These indemnification covenants, at a minimum, shall be considered included in and 
incorporated by reference in subsequent documents after the closing which the County is requested 
to sign, and any other indemnification covenants in any subsequent documents shall not be 
construed to reduce or limit the above indemnification covenants, but may expand them or expound 
upon them, as may be shown in greater detail in such subsequent documents.  In the event of any 
conflict or inconsistency, the indemnification and save harmless provisions of the Infrastructure 
Financing Agreement shall always govern. 



45273909 v3 5 

 
 Section 5. Whenever the County shall be required by any governmental or financial 
entity to file or produce any reports, notices, returns or other documents while the Infrastructure 
Financing Agreement is in effect, the Companies or owner of the Project at the time shall promptly 
furnish to the County through the County Attorney the completed form of such required documents 
together with a certification by the Company or owner that such documents are accurate and not in 
violation of any provisions of law or of the other documents of this transaction, and that the 
documents meet the legal requirements of such filing or delivery.  In the event of the failure or 
refusal of the Companies or owner to comply with this provision, the Companies or owners agree to 
pay the statement for attorneys fees and administrative time presented by the County for producing 
and filing such documents, such statement to be paid within 30 days after presentation by the 
County, and to promptly pay any fees, penalties, assessments or damages imposed upon the County 
by reason of its failure to duly file or produce such documents. 

 
Section 6. Notwithstanding any other provisions, the County is executing the 

Infrastructure Financing Agreement as statutory accommodation to assist the Companies in 
achieving the intended benefits and purposes of the Act.  The County has made no independent 
legal or factual investigation regarding the particulars of this transaction and it executes in reliance 
upon representations by the Companies that the documents comply with all laws and regulations, 
particularly those pertinent to industrial development projects in South Carolina. 

 
Section 7. Anderson County is hereby authorized to continue in effect and existence the 

Park (the “Anderson-Greenville Park”) as previously entered into with Greenville County, with the 
consent of the Town of Pendleton.   
 

Section 8. Any business or industrial enterprise locating in the Anderson-Greenville 
Park shall pay a fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes as provided for in the Agreement, Article VIII 
Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution and the Act.  The user fee paid in lieu of ad valorem 
taxes shall be paid to the Anderson County Treasurer.  That portion of the fees from the Anderson-
Greenville Park premises located in Anderson County and allocated pursuant to the Anderson-
Greenville Park Agreement to Greenville County and the Town of Pendleton, respectively, shall be 
paid by the Anderson County Treasurer and the Town of Pendleton, respectively,  to the Greenville 
County Treasurer within five business days following the end of the calendar quarter of receipt for 
distribution, in accordance with the Park Agreement.  Payments of user fees shall be made by a 
business or industrial enterprise on or before the due date for taxes for a particular year.  Penalties 
for late payment will be at the same rate and at the same times as for late tax payment.  Any late 
payment beyond said date will accrue interest at the rate of statutory judgment interest.  The 
Counties, acting by and through the county tax collector for Anderson County, shall maintain all 
liens and rights to foreclose upon liens provided for counties in the collection of ad valorem taxes. 
 

Section 9.  The administration, development, promotion, and operation of the Park shall 
be the responsibility of Anderson County.  Provided, that to the extent any Anderson-Greenville 
Park premises is owned by a private developer, the developer shall be responsible for development 
expenses as contained in the Park Agreement. 



45273909 v3 6 

 
Section 10. In order to avoid any conflict of laws or ordinances between the Counties, 

Anderson County and Town of Pendleton ordinances will be the reference for such regulations or 
laws in connection with the Anderson-Greenville Park for the Project.  Nothing herein shall be 
taken to supersede any state or federal law or regulation.   
 

Section 11.  Law enforcement agencies for Anderson County and the Town of Pendleton 
will have initial jurisdiction to make arrests and exercise all authority and power within the 
boundaries of the Anderson-Greenville Park for the Project.  Water, sewer and fire services will be 
provided by the entities which provide such services for the geographic location of the Anderson-
Greenville Park in Anderson County.  EMS service will be provided by Anderson County EMS 
providers. 
 

Section 12.  Should any section of this Ordinance be, for any reason, held void or invalid, 
it shall not affect the validity of any other section hereof which is not itself void or invalid, all of 
which are hereby declared separable. 
 

Section 13.  The Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement for the Project may not be 
terminated except by concurrent ordinances of Greenville County Council and Anderson County 
Council, in accordance with the terms of the Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement.  
   

Section 14.  Anderson County hereby designates that the distribution of the fee-in-lieu of 
ad valorem taxes pursuant to the Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement received and retained by 
Anderson County for Anderson-Greenville Park premises shall be as directed by Anderson County 
Council, and in accordance with the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, including, without 
limitation, by and through its annual budget ordinance and the Anderson-Greenville Park 
Agreement, provided that the County may, from time to time, by ordinance, and in accordance with 
the Infrastructure Financing Agreement, amend the distribution of the fee-in-lieu of tax payments to 
all taxing entities.  All taxing entities levying taxes over the Project site shall receive some 
distribution of Park revenues. Zero percent (0%) of the fee-in-lieu-of-tax payments from the 
Anderson-Greenville Park for the Project shall be paid to any taxing entity, other than those 
designated by Anderson County Council (i.e., those not levying a tax over the Project site).  A 
portion of the fee-in-lieu of ad valorem taxes which Anderson County receives and retains pursuant 
to the Anderson-Greenville Park Agreement for Park premises may be, from time to time and by 
ordinance of Anderson County Council or its successor, and in accordance with the Infrastructure 
Financing Agreement, designated for the payment of special source revenue bonds or applied as a 
credit against qualifying infrastructure as provided for in Title 4, Chapters 1, 12 or 29, and Title 12, 
Chapter 44 of the South Carolina Code of Laws, 1976, as amended.   

 
Section 15. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, and the Clerk 

to the County Council, for and on behalf of the County, are hereby each authorized and directed to 
do any and all things necessary or proper to effect the execution and delivery of the  Infrastructure 
Financing Agreement, and the performance of all obligations of the County under and pursuant to 
the Infrastructure Financing Agreement. 
 



45273909 v3 7 

 Section 16. The Chairman of County Council, the County Administrator, and the Clerk 
to the County Council, and any other proper officer of the County, be and each of them is hereby 
authorized and directed to execute and deliver any and all documents and instruments and to do and 
to cause to be done any and all acts and things necessary or proper for carrying out the transactions 
contemplated by this Ordinance. 
 
 Section 17. The provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be separable and if 
any section, phrase, or provision shall for any reason be declared by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the 
remainder of the sections, phrases, and provisions hereunder. 
 
 Section 18. All orders, resolutions, ordinances, and parts thereof in conflict herewith are, 
to the extent of such conflict only, hereby repealed and this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full 
force from and after its passage and approval. 
 



45273909 v3 8 

 Done in meeting duly assembled this ______ day of  _________________, 2022. 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY COUNCIL 
  
 ____________________________________ 

Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
  
ATTEST:  
  
_____________________________________ 
Rusty Burns, Administrator 
Anderson County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

  
_____________________________________ 
Clerk 
Anderson County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

  
Approved as to form: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Leon Harmon, County Attorney 

 

  
First Reading:      October 4, 2022  
Second Reading: ______________________ 
Third Reading: _______________________ 
Public Hearing: _______________________ 

 

 



1 
49302189 v2 

INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING AGREEMENT 
 
 

 THIS INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCING AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”), dated as of 
_____________, 2022 (the “Agreement”), between ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH 
CAROLINA, a body politic and corporate, and Tetramer Technologies LLC (“Company A”) and 
Hoobastank Industries LLC (“Company C”), limited liability companies authorized to do business 
in South Carolina, (the “Companies” or “Project Tetramer 2”).  
 
 

W I T N E S S E T H : 
 

 WHEREAS, the County, acting by and through its County Council (the “County Council”) 
is authorized by Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the “Code”), to 
provide special source revenue credits, secured by and payable solely from revenues of the County 
derived from payments in-lieu of taxes pursuant to Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina 
Constitution, and sections 4-1-170 and 4-29-68 of the Code for the purpose of defraying the cost 
of designing, acquiring, constructing, improving, or expanding the infrastructure serving the 
County and for improved or unimproved real estate used in the operation of a manufacturing or 
commercial enterprise in order to enhance the economic development of the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with the provisions of an Inducement Agreement dated as of 
December 1, 2013 (the “Inducement Agreement”), Company A, in conjunction with an investor 
affiliate, committed to acquire and expand by construction and purchase, certain manufacturing 
facilities in the County, including paying a portion of the cost of certain infrastructure of the 
County serving the expansion (the “First Project” or “Project Choco”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County and Greenville County, South Carolina, with the consent of the 
Town of Pendleton, established a joint county industrial and business park (the “Park”), pursuant 
to the provisions of Article VIII, Section 13 of the South Carolina Constitution and Section 4-1-
170 of the Code, specifically for the Project Choco real property, which was the only real property 
contained in the Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the property on which Project Tetramer 2 is located is included within the 
Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of the Park Agreement (as defined herein), the 
owners of all property located within the Park are obligated to make or cause to be made payments-
in-lieu of tax to the County, which such payments-in-lieu of tax are to be distributed according to 
the Park Agreement to Greenville County and to Anderson County, in the total amount equivalent 
to the ad valorem property taxes or negotiated fees-in-lieu of taxes that would have been due and 
payable but for the location of the property within the Park; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to and as explained in the Inducement Agreement, the County 
agreed to provide special source revenue credits to reimburse Company A and its investor affiliate 
for a portion of the Company’s costs of eligible and qualifying Infrastructure (as defined herein) 



 2 
49302189 v2 

for the Project by means of providing a credit of up to ninety-nine percent (99%) against the Net 
Fee Payments (as defined herein) paid by the Company on behalf of Project Choco and adjacent 
parcels of real property owned by the Company in the Park for a period of up to ten (10) years up 
to a maximum, total, for both companies, of $165,000; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 2014-017, duly enacted by the County Council on June 3, 
2014, following a public hearing conducted on June 3, 2014, in compliance with the terms of the 
Act (as defined herein), the County Council of the County duly authorized execution and delivery 
of an Infrastructure Financing Agreement, providing the credit described above to the Companies; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Companies and the County have all met their commitments and 
obligations under the 2013 and 2014 documents, and the credit described above has been used by 
the Companies in its entirety; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Tetramer (Company A) and Hoobastank Industries LLC (“Hoobastank”, or 
“Company C”) (together, the “New Companies”, or “Project Tetramer 2”), limited liability 
companies, duly authorized to do business in South Carolina, and, in fact, already doing business in 
the State, are considering acquiring by construction or purchase or lease/purchase certain land and 
buildings, and by construction or purchase certain  furnishings, fixtures, machinery, apparati, and 
equipment, for the further development and expansion of the Project Choco manufacturing facility in 
the County (the Project Tetramer 2), which will result in an expected new total investment of over 
One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) (specifically $1,016,000) in the County, which would be subject to 
this Agreement, all within the meaning of the Act, and the maintenance of the twenty-one (21) jobs 
currently in existence at the Companies in connection with Project Choco, during the period beginning 
with the first day that real or personal property comprising the Project Tetramer 2 is purchased or 
acquired (1/1/22) and ending five (5) years after the last day of the Companies’ property tax year 
(which at this time is the calendar year) during which the Project is first placed in service (at this time 
expected to be 2022) (which ending date at this time, is estimated to be the end of 2027 (the “Initial 
Investment Period”)); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined that the Project Tetramer 2, and recruitment of the 
Companies to Anderson County, would be aided by the availability of the assistance which the County 
might render through  (1) the inclusion and retention of the Project Tetramer 2 and the other real and 
personal property of the Companies located at the Project Tetramer 2 site(s) in the County, in a joint-
county industrial and business park which is already in existence (a Park, as defined herein, was 
created at the Project Tetramer 2 site for the first Tetramer Technologies LLC project), or to be created 
by the County (the Park, as defined above, or the “Joint-County Park”); (2) the granting by the County 
to the Companies of certain infrastructure credits, pursuant to Section 4-1-175 of the Code and other 
applicable provisions of the Act (the “Infrastructure Credits”),  to partially reimburse the Companies 
for economic development infrastructure serving the County; and, that the inducement will, to a great 
degree of certainty, result in the acquisition and construction of the Project in the County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has given due consideration to the economic development impact 
of the Project Tetramer 2, has found that the Project and the Park payments-in-lieu-of-taxes from the 
Project Tetramer 2 in the Park would be directly and substantially beneficial to the County, the taxing 



 3 
49302189 v2 

entities of the County, and the citizens and residents of the County, and that the Project Tetramer 2 
would directly and indirectly benefit the general public welfare and serve a public purpose of the 
County by providing services, employment, recreation, promotion of tourism, or other public benefits 
not otherwise provided locally; and, that the Project Tetramer 2 gives rise to no pecuniary liability of 
the County or any of its municipalities, or a charge or pledge against the full faith, general credit. or 
taxing power of the County or any of its municipalities; and, that the purposes to be accomplished by 
the Project Tetramer 2, i.e., economic development and welfare, creation of jobs, promotion of 
tourism, and addition to the manufacturing footprint and tax base of the County, are proper 
governmental and public purposes and that the inducement of the location or expansion of the Project 
Tetramer 2 within the County and State is of paramount importance and that the benefits of the Project 
Tetramer 2 will be greater than the cost; and, has agreed to effect the issuance, execution and delivery 
of an Infrastructure Financing Agreement, pursuant to Ordinance of the County Council, and on the 
terms and conditions set forth therein: 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the respective representations and agreements 
hereinafter contained, the County, Company A and Company C agree as follows: 
 

ARTICLE I 
 

DEFINITIONS 
 

 The terms defined in this Article I shall for all purposes of this Agreement have the 
meanings herein specified, unless the context clearly otherwise requires.  Except where the context 
otherwise requires, words importing the singular number shall include the plural number and vice 
versa.  Terms not defined herein shall have the meaning provided in the Act or in the Ordinance 
 
 “Act” shall mean, collectively, Chapters 1 and 29 of Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South 
Carolina 1976, as amended. 
 
 “Agreement” shall mean this Infrastructure Financing Agreement, as the same may be 
amended, modified or supplemented in accordance with the terms hereof. 
 
 “Code” shall mean the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended. 
 
 “Companies” shall mean, collectively, Tetramer Technologies LLC, or Company A and 
Hoobastank Industries LLC, or Company C, both limited liability companies duly authorized to 
do business in South Carolina, and their successors and assigns. 
 



 4 
49302189 v2 

 “Cost” or “Cost of the Infrastructure” shall mean, to the extent permitted by the Act, the 
cost of acquiring, by construction and purchase, the Infrastructure and shall be deemed to include, 
whether incurred prior to or after the date of the Agreement: (a) obligations incurred for real 
property, labor, materials, and other expenses to builders and materialmen in connection with the 
acquisition, construction, and installation of the Infrastructure; (b) the costs of construction bonds 
and of insurance of all kinds that may be required or necessary during the course of construction 
and installation of the Infrastructure, which costs are not paid by the contractor or contractors or 
otherwise provided for; (c) the expenses for test borings, surveys, test and pilot operations, 
estimates, plans and specifications and preliminary investigations therefor, and for supervising 
construction, as well as for the performance of all other duties required by or reasonably necessary 
in connection with the acquisition, construction, and installation of the Infrastructure; and (d) all 
other costs of any kind which may be required under the terms of any contract for the acquisition, 
construction, and installation of the Infrastructure. 
 
 “County” shall mean Anderson County, South Carolina, a body politic and corporate and 
a political subdivision of the State of South Carolina and its successors and assigns. 
 
 “County Council” shall mean the County Council of the County. 
 
 “Event of Default” shall mean, with reference to this Agreement, the occurrence described 
in Section 5.01 hereof. 
 
 “Fee Payments” shall mean payments-in-lieu of taxes made by the Companies with respect 
to the Project Choco and the Project Tetramer 2 by virtue of the real and personal property of the 
Companies being located in the Park. 
 
 “Full-Time Job” shall mean a job requiring a minimum of thirty-five (35) hours of an 
employee’s time per week in the entire normal year of the Companies’ operation. 
 
 “Infrastructure” shall mean infrastructure serving the County and improved or unimproved 
real estate and personal property, including machinery and equipment, used in the operation of the 
Project Choco and the Project Tetramer 2, within the meaning of Section 4-29-68 of the Code. 
 

“Infrastructure Credit” or “Credit” shall mean the special source revenue credit in the 
amount set forth in Section 3.02 hereof against the Companies’ Net Fee Payments as authorized 
by the Act to reimburse the Companies for a portion of the Cost of the Infrastructure. 
 
 “Initial Investment Period” shall mean the first day that real or personal property 
comprising the Project Tetramer 2 is purchased or acquired and ending five (5) years after the last 
day of Company A’s property tax year during which Project property is initially placed in service.
  
 “Multi-County Fee” shall mean the fee payable by the County to Greenville County, South 
Carolina, pursuant to the Park Agreement. 
 
 “Net Fee Payments” shall mean the Fee Payments retained by the County after payment of 
the Multi-County Fee. 



 5 
49302189 v2 

 
 “Ordinance” shall mean Ordinance No. 2022 - ____ enacted by the County Council of the 
County on November 15, 2022, authorizing the execution and delivery of this Agreement. 
 
 “Park Agreement” shall mean the Agreement for Joint County Industrial and Business Park 
within Anderson County, South Carolina (Tetramer Technologies, LLC and South Mechanic 
Street Properties, LLC) dated as of July 1, 2014, by and between the County and Greenville 
County, South Carolina, with the consent of the Town of Pendleton, as from time to time amended. 
 
 “Park” shall mean the Joint County Industrial and Business Park established by the County 
and Greenville County, with the consent of the Town of Pendleton, with regard to Project Choco, 
pursuant to the terms of the Park Agreement. 
 
 “Project Tetramer 2” shall mean the New Companies’ acquisition by construction or 
purchase of certain land, buildings, equipment, furnishings, structures, fixtures, appurtenances and 
other materials for manufacturing operations in the Park within the County, whether such property 
is exempt or non-exempt according to the Act, only to the extent that such property be placed in 
service before or during the Initial Investment Period. 
 
 “Person” shall mean an individual, a corporation, a partnership, an association, a joint stock 
company, a trust, any unincorporated organization, or a government or political subdivision. 
 
  

ARTICLE II 
 

REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES 
 

 SECTION 2.01.  Representations by the County. The County makes the following 
representations and covenants as the basis for the undertakings on its part herein contained: 
 
 (a) The County is a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision of the State 
of South Carolina and is authorized and empowered by the provisions of the Act to enter into the 
transactions contemplated by this Agreement and to carry out its obligations hereunder.  By proper 
action by the County Council of the County, the County has been duly authorized to execute and 
deliver this Agreement and any and all agreements collateral thereto. 
 

(b) The County proposes to reimburse the Company for a portion of the Cost of the 
Infrastructure for the purpose of promoting the economic development of the County. 
 

(c) To the best of its knowledge, the County is not in violation of any of the provisions 
of the laws of the State of South Carolina, where any such violation would affect the validity or 
enforceability of this Agreement. 

 
(d) To the best of its knowledge, the authorization, execution, and delivery of this 

Agreement, and the compliance by the County with the provisions hereof, will not conflict with or 
constitute a breach of, or a default under, any existing law, court or administrative regulation, 



 6 
49302189 v2 

decree or order, or any provision of the South Carolina Constitution or laws of the State relating 
to the establishment of the County or its affairs, or any agreement, mortgage, lease, or other 
instrument to which the County is subject or by which it is bound. 

 
(e) There is not, to the County’s knowledge, any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or 

investigation, at law or in equity, or before or by any court, public body, or public board, which is 
pending or threatened challenging the creation, organization or existence of the County or its 
governing body or the power of the County to enter into the transactions contemplated hereby, or 
wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect the enforceability, of 
this Agreement or any other agreement or instrument to which the County is a party and which is 
to be used in connection with or is contemplated by this Agreement, nor to the best of the 
knowledge of the County is there any basis therefor. 

 
SECTION 2.02.  Representations by the Companies.  The Companies make the following 

representations and warranties as the basis for the undertakings on their part herein contained: 
 
(a) The Companies are in good standing, under the laws of the State of South Carolina, 

have the power to enter into this Agreement, and by proper Company action each has been duly 
authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement. 

 
(b) This Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Companies and 

constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation of the Companies, enforceable in accordance 
with its terms except as enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, or similar 
laws affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally. 

 
(c) The execution and delivery of this Agreement, the consummation of the 

transactions contemplated hereby, and the fulfillment of or compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement, will not result in a material breach of any of the terms, conditions, 
or provisions of any Company restriction or any agreement or instrument to which the Companies 
are now a party or by which either is bound, will not constitute a default under any of the foregoing, 
and will not result in the creation or imposition of any lien, charge, or encumbrance of any nature 
whatsoever upon any of the property or assets of the Companies, other than as may be created or 
permitted by this Agreement. 

 
(d) The provision of Infrastructure Credits to the Companies to reimburse the 

Companies for a portion of the cost of the Infrastructure by the County has been instrumental in 
inducing the Companies to acquire, construct and maintain the Project in the County and in the 
State of South Carolina, and to retain and create jobs at the Project. 

 
(e) There is not, to the Companies’ knowledge, any action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, 

or investigation, at law or in equity, or before or by any court, public body, or public board, which 
is pending or threatened challenging the creation, organization or existence of the Companies or 
their governing body or the power of the Companies to enter into the transactions contemplated 
hereby, or wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would adversely affect the 
enforceability, of this Agreement or any other agreement or instrument to which either Company 



 7 
49302189 v2 

is a party and which is to be used in connection with or is contemplated by this Agreement, nor to 
the best of the knowledge of the Companies is there any basis therefor. 

 
SECTION  2.03.  Covenants of the County. 

 
 (a) The County will at all times maintain its corporate existence and will use its best 
efforts to maintain, preserve, and renew all its rights, powers, privileges, and franchises; and it will 
comply with all valid acts, rules, regulations, orders, and directions of any legislative, executive, 
administrative, or judicial body applicable to this Agreement. 
 
 (b) The County covenants that it will from time to time and at the expense of the 
Companies execute and deliver such further instruments and take such further action as may be 
reasonable and as may be required to carry out the purpose of this Agreement; provided, however, 
that such instruments or actions shall never create or constitute an indebtedness of the County or 
any of its municipalities within the meaning of any State constitutional provision (other than the 
provisions of Article X, Section 14(10) of the South Carolina Constitution) or statutory limitation 
and shall never constitute or give rise to a pecuniary liability of the County or its municipalities, 
or a charge against their general credit or taxing power, or pledge the credit or taxing power of the 
State or any other political subdivision of the State. 
 
 SECTION 2.04.  Covenants of the Companies.     
 

(a) Pursuant to the Inducement Agreement, the Companies expects to invest 
approximately One Million Dollars ($1,016,000, in fact) in the overall Project, and the 
maintenance of the twenty-one (21) (av/hr $43.22) jobs currently in existence at Companies in 
connection with the Project, during the period beginning with the first day that real or personal 
property comprising the Project is purchased or acquired (1/2/22) and ending five (5) years after 
the last day of Company A’s property tax year (which at this time is calendar year) during which 
the Project is first placed in service (at this time expected to be 2022) (which ending date at this 
time, is estimated to be the end of 2027 (the “Initial Investment Period”)).   
 

(b) The Companies shall hold harmless Indemnified Parties (as defined herein) against 
and from all claims by or on behalf of any person, firm or company arising from the conduct or 
management of, or from any work or thing done on the Project, during the term of the Agreement, 
except for those proximately caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such 
Indemnified Parties.  The Companies shall further indemnify, defend and save the Indemnified 
Parties harmless against and from all claims arising during the term of the Agreement directly from 
(i) any condition of the Project, (ii) any breach or default on the part of the Companies in the 
performance of any of their obligations under the Agreement, (iii) any act of the Companies or any 
of their agents, contractors, servants, employees or licensees, involving the Project, (iv) any act of 
any assignee or sublessee of the Companies or of any agents, contractors, servants, employees or 
licensees of any assignee or sublessee of the Companies involving the Project, or (v) any 
environmental violation, condition, or effect on, upon or caused by the Project except for those 
proximately caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Parties.  
The Companies, as to the Project,  shall indemnify and save the Indemnified Parties harmless from 
and against all costs and expenses incurred in or in connection with any such claim arising as 



 8 
49302189 v2 

aforesaid or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, except for those 
proximately caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of such Indemnified Parties and 
upon notice from an Indemnified Party, the Companies, respectively, shall defend it in any such 
action, prosecution or proceeding with legal counsel reasonably acceptable to the County.   
 

Notwithstanding the fact that it is the intention of the parties that the Indemnified Parties 
not incur pecuniary liability by reason of the terms of this Agreement, or the undertakings required 
of the County hereunder, by reason of the execution of this Agreement, by reason of the 
performance of any act requested of it by the Companies, or by reason of the operation of the 
Project by the Companies, including all claims, liabilities or losses arising in connection with the 
violation of any statutes or regulations pertaining to the foregoing, nevertheless, if the Indemnified 
Parties should incur any such pecuniary liability, then in such event the Companies, as to the 
Project, shall indemnify and hold them harmless against all claims by or on behalf of any person, 
firm or company, arising out of the same, and all costs and expenses incurred in connection with 
any such claim or in connection with any action or proceeding brought thereon, and upon notice, 
the Companies, as to the Project, shall defend them in any such action or proceeding with legal 
counsel reasonably acceptable to the County.   
 

These indemnification covenants shall be considered included in and incorporated by 
reference in subsequent documents after closing which the County and Companies are requested 
to sign, and any other indemnification covenants in any subsequent documents shall not be 
construed to reduce or limit the above indemnification covenants. 
 

(c) The Companies shall pay the reasonable and necessary expenses, including the 
ordinary and reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the County with respect to the Project and this 
Agreement, with a maximum cap on such fees of $5,000, absent extraordinary circumstances; 
provided, however, that no such expense shall be considered owed by the Companies unless and 
until the County furnishes to the Companies a statement or invoice in writing indicating the reason 
such expense has been or will be incurred and either estimating the amount of such expenses or 
stating the basis on which the expense has been or will be computed. 

 
(d) The Companies will provide sufficient information to the County legal and 

economic development staff, including, without limitation, copies of property tax filings made by 
the Companies to the S.C. Department of Revenue with regard to the Project and the Companies' 
other property in the Park, to allow County staff to verify the Companies’ investment, jobs 
creation, and credits received hereunder, annually. Further, the Companies will reasonably 
cooperate with County in performing such verification.  In return, whenever such filings or 
cooperation involve the use of confidential, proprietary, or business secret information which can 
be lawfully exempted from public disclosure, and the Companies identify such information to the 
County, the County will reasonably cooperate with the Companies to restrict disclosure of such 
filings or information to just that which is legally required to be disclosed. 
 
 



 9 
49302189 v2 

ARTICLE III 
 

INFRASTRUCTURE CREDIT 
 

 SECTION 3.01.  Payment of Cost of Infrastructure.  The Companies agree to pay, or cause 
to be paid, the Costs of the Infrastructure as and when due.  The Companies agree that, as of any 
date during the term of this Agreement, the cumulative dollar amount expended by the Companies 
on Costs of Infrastructure shall equal or exceed the cumulative dollar amount of the Infrastructure 
Credit received by the Companies. The Companies agree to complete the acquisition and 
construction of the Infrastructure pursuant to the plans and specifications approved by the 
Companies.  The plans and specifications for the Infrastructure may be modified from time to time 
as deemed necessary by the Companies.   
 
 SECTION 3.02.  Special Source Revenue Credits. 
 
 (a) In order to reimburse the Companies for the Cost of the Infrastructure with respect to 
the Project Choco and the Project Tetramer II, commencing with the annual Fee Payment due for the 
2023 tax year (based on the status of the real and personal property of the Companies as of December 
31, 2022, including all real and personal property placed in service during 2022), the County shall 
provide to the Company Infrastructure Credits equal to a percentage of that portion of Fee Payments 
payable by the Company with respect to the Project, calculated and applied after payment of the 
amount due the non-host county under the Park Agreement, as follows: (i) 75% Infrastructure 
Credits for consecutive years one through three (2023-2025), and (ii) 50% Infrastructure Credits 
for consecutive years four through eleven (2026-2033), such credits to be calculated and applied 
after payment by the County of the one percent (1%) amount due the non-host county under the 
Park Agreement, subject to the following limitations and requirements: (1) as of any date during 
the term of this Agreement, the cumulative dollar amount expended by the Companies on Costs 
of Infrastructure shall equal or exceed the cumulative dollar amount of the Infrastructure Credit 
received by the Companies, (2) the Company shall not claim total or partial abatement of ad 
valorem property taxes as to any property for which an Infrastructure Credit is given, and (3) once 
the Company has realized and received the Infrastructure Credit for a total of eleven (11)  
consecutive annual fee payments, beginning with the Anderson County ad valorem property tax 
bill for the 2023 tax year, the Infrastructure Credits provided hereunder shall end.  THIS 
AGREEMENT AND THE CREDITS PROVIDED FOR HEREUNDER ARE LIMITED 
OBLIGATIONS OF THE COUNTY PROVIDED BY THE COUNTY SOLELY FROM THE 
NET FEE PAYMENTS RECEIVED AND RETAINED BY THE COUNTY, AND DO NOT 
AND SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE AN INDEBTEDNESS OF THE COUNTY OR ANY OF 
ITS MUNICIPALITIES WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISION 
(OTHER THAN THE PROVISIONS OF ARTICLE X, SECTION 14(10) OF THE SOUTH 
CAROLINA CONSTITUTION) OR STATUTORY LIMITATION, AND DO NOT AND 
SHALL NEVER CONSTITUTE OR GIVE RISE TO A PECUNIARY LIABILITY OF THE 
COUNTY OR ANY OF ITS MUNICIPALITIES OR A CHARGE AGAINST THEIR GENERAL 
CREDIT OR TAXING POWER.  THE FULL FAITH, CREDIT, AND TAXING POWER OF 
THE COUNTY OR ANY OF ITS MUNICIPALITIES ARE NOT PLEDGED FOR THE 
CREDITS.   
 



 10 
49302189 v2 

(b) Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, if the Companies do not maintain 
the aforestated existing 21 jobs or invest at least $1,016,000 by the Companies through the end of 
the Initial Investment Period, or both then the Infrastructure Credit provided hereby shall be 
reduced to thirty percent (30%), prospectively, from that point forward and no further 
Infrastructure Credits will be owed or taken, hereunder. However, if the total jobs and new 
investment in Project Tetramer 2 by the Companies reach the retained jobs number of 21 and the 
investment by the Companies in Tetramer 2 are fully in place by the end of Tax Year 2029 (the 
seventh (7th) tax year under this Agreement), then the incentives hereunder may return to their 
original terms; however, all other provisions notwithstanding, no lost incentives may be 
recaptured. 
 
 (c) No breach by the County of this Agreement shall result in the imposition of any 
pecuniary liability upon the County or any charge upon its general credit or against its taxing 
power.  The liability of the County under this Agreement or of any warranty herein included or for 
any breach or default by the County of any of the foregoing shall be limited solely and exclusively 
to the Net Fee Payments from the Project in the Park.  The County shall not be required to execute 
or perform any of its duties, obligations, powers, or covenants hereunder except to the extent of 
the Net Fee Payments. 
 
 (d) As set forth in Section 4-29-68(A)(2)(ii) of the Code, to the extent that the 
Infrastructure Credit is used as payment for personal property comprising a portion of the 
Infrastructure, including machinery and equipment, and the personal property is removed from the 
project at any time during the eleven (11) year term of the Infrastructure Credit, the amount of the 
fee in lieu of taxes due on such personal property for the year in which the personal property was 
removed from the Project also shall be due for two years immediately following the removal.  If 
personal property comprising a portion of the Infrastructure is removed from the Project but is 
replaced with qualifying replacement property, then the Infrastructure personal property will not 
be considered to have been removed from the property. 
 

 
ARTICLE IV 

 
CONDITIONS TO DELIVERY OF AGREEMENT; 

TITLE TO INFRASTRUCTURE 
 

 SECTION 4.01.  Documents to be Provided by County.  Prior to or simultaneously with 
the execution and delivery of this Agreement, the County shall provide to the Companies (a) a 
copy of the Ordinance, duly certified by the Clerk of the County Council under its corporate seal 
to have been duly enacted by the County and to be in full force and effect on the date of such 
certification; and (b) such additional certificates (including appropriate no-litigation certificates 
and certified copies of ordinances, resolutions, or other proceedings adopted by the County), 
instruments or other documents as the Companies may reasonably request.   
 
 SECTION 4.02.  Transfer of Project.  The County hereby acknowledges that the 
Companies may from time to time and in accordance with applicable law and the provisions of the 
Inducement Agreement, sell, transfer, lease, convey, or grant the right to occupy and use the 



 11 
49302189 v2 

Project, in whole or in part, to others.  No sale, lease, conveyance, or grant shall relieve the County 
from the County’s obligations to provide the Infrastructure Credit to the Companies’ assignee of 
such payments under this Agreement, provided (a) such assignee continues to make Fee Payments 
pursuant to the Park Agreement in the same manner and to the same extent as required of the 
Companies, and (b) such assignment is consummated in accordance with the provisions of the 
Inducement Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 4.03.  Assignment by County.   The County shall not attempt to assign, transfer, 
or convey its obligation to provide the Infrastructure Credit provided for hereunder to any other 
Person. 
 

ARTICLE V 
 

DEFAULTS AND REMEDIES 
 

 SECTION 5.01.  Events of Default.  If the County or Companies shall fail duly and 
punctually to perform any covenant, condition, agreement or provision contained in this 
Agreement on the part of the County or Companies, respectively, to be performed, which failure 
shall continue for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice by the other specifying the failure 
and requesting that it be remedied is given to the County or Companies, respectively by first-class 
mail, the County or Companies, respectively shall be in default under this Agreement (an “Event 
of Default”). 
 
 SECTION 5.02.  Legal Proceedings by Companies or County.   Upon the happening and 
continuance of an Event of Default, then and in every such case the Companies or County in its 
discretion may: 
 
 (a) by mandamus, or other suit, action, or proceeding at law or in equity, enforce all of 
its rights and require the other to carry out any agreements with or for its benefit and to perform 
the duties of the other under the Act and this Agreement; 
 

 (b) exercise any or all rights and remedies in effect in the State of South Carolina, or 
any applicable law, as well as all other rights and remedies possessed by the Companies or County; 
or 
 
 (c) by action or suit in equity enjoin any acts or things which may be unlawful or in 
violation of its rights. 
 
 SECTION 5.03.  Remedies Not Exclusive.   No remedy in this Agreement conferred upon 
or reserved to the Companies or County is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy or 
remedies, and each and every such remedy shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to every 
other remedy given under this Agreement or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by 
statute. 
 
 SECTION 5.04.  Nonwaiver.   No delay or omission of the Companies or County to 
exercise any right or power accruing upon any default or Event of Default shall impair any such 



 12 
49302189 v2 

right or power, or shall be construed to be a waiver of any such default or Event of Default or an 
acquiescence therein; and every power and remedy given by this Article VI to the Companies or 
County may be exercised from time to time and as often as may be deemed expedient. 
 
 

ARTICLE VI 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 
 

 SECTION 6.01.  Successors and Assigns.  All the covenants, stipulations, promises, and 
agreements in this Agreement contained, by or on behalf of, and for the benefit of, the County or 
Companies, shall, to the extent permitted by law, bind and inure to the benefit of the successors of 
each from time to time, and any officer, board, commission, agency, or instrumentality to whom 
or to which any power or duty of the County or Companies shall be transferred. 
 
 SECTION 6.02.  Provisions of Agreement for Sole Benefit of County and Companies.  
Except as in this Agreement otherwise specifically provided, nothing in this Agreement expressed 
or implied is intended or shall be construed to confer upon any Person other than the County and 
the Companies, any right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement, this Agreement 
being intended to be for the sole and exclusive benefit of the County and the Companies. 
 
 SECTION 6.03.  Severability.  In case any one or more of the provisions of this Agreement 
shall, for any reason, be held to be illegal or invalid, the illegality or invalidity shall not affect any 
other provision of this Agreement, and this Agreement and the Infrastructure Credit shall be 
construed and enforced as if the illegal or invalid provision had not been contained herein or 
therein.  Further, if the Infrastructure Credit is held to be illegal or invalid, to the extent permitted 
by law and at the expense of the Companies, the County agrees to issue a special source revenue 
bond in place of the Infrastructure Credit provided for herein, such special source revenue bond to 
provide for the same economic benefit to the Companies which would otherwise be enjoyed by 
the Companies for the duration of the Infrastructure Credit. 
 
 SECTION 6.04.  No Liability for Personnel of County or Companies.   No covenant or 
agreement contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be the covenant or agreement of any 
member, agent, or employee of the County or its governing body, or of the Companies or any of 
their officers, employees, or agents in his individual capacity, and neither the members of the 
governing body of the County nor any official executing this Agreement shall be liable personally 
on the Agreement or the Infrastructure Credit or be subject to any personal liability or 
accountability by reason of the issuance thereof. 



 13 
49302189 v2 

 
 SECTION 6.05.  Notices.  All notices, certificates, requests, or other communications 
under this Agreement shall be sufficiently given and shall be deemed given, unless otherwise 
required by this Agreement, when (i) delivered or (ii) sent by facsimile and confirmed by United 
States first-class registered mail, postage prepaid, addressed as follows: 
 
  As to the County: 
 
  Anderson County, South Carolina 
  Attn:  County Administrator 
  P. O. Box 8002 
  Anderson, South Carolina  29622 
  
  With a copy to: 
 
  Anderson County Attorney 
  P. O. Box 8002 
  Anderson, South Carolina  29622 
 
  As to the Companies: 
 
  Company A 
  Tetramer Technologies LLC 
       
       
 
 
  Company C 
  Hoobastank Industries LLC 
       
       
 
 
 The County and the Companies may, by notice given as provided by this Section 6.05, 
designate any further or different address to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or 
other communications shall be sent. 
 
 SECTION 6.06. Applicable Law.  The laws of the State of South Carolina shall govern the 
construction and application of this Agreement. 
 
 SECTION 6.07. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in any number of 
counterparts, each of which, when so executed and delivered, shall be an original, but such 
counterparts shall together constitute but one and the same instrument. 
 
 SECTION 6.08. Amendments. This Agreement may be amended only by written 
agreement of the parties hereto. 



 14 
49302189 v2 

 
 SECTION 6.09.  Waiver.  Either party may waive compliance by the other party with any 
term or condition of this Agreement only in a writing signed by the waiving party. 
 
 SECTION 6.10.  Conflict Between Transactional Documents.   To the extent of any conflict 
between this Agreement and the Inducement Agreement dated as of December 1, 2013 between 
the County and Company A, this Agreement shall control. 
 

 
 

[EXECUTION PAGE FOLLOWS] 
 
 
  



 15 
49302189 v2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Anderson County, South Carolina, has caused this Agreement 
to be executed by the Chairman of its County Council and County Administrator and its corporate 
seal to be hereunto affixed and attested by the Clerk of its County Council, and the Companies 
have caused this Agreement to be executed by an authorized officer, all as of the day and year first 
above written. 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 
  

By: ____________________________________________ 
Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Council 
Anderson County, South Carolina 
 
 

By: ____________________________________________ 
Rusty Burns, County Administrator 
of Anderson County, South Carolina 

(SEAL)  
  
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Clerk to County Council 
of Anderson County, South Carolina 

 

 
 
       
 
 
 



 16 
49302189 v2 

       
 
 Company A 

 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Its: ________________________________ 
 



 17 
49302189 v2 

           
 
 Company C 

 
By: ________________________________ 
 
Its: ________________________________ 
 

 
 

 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022-051 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE A LEASE AGREEMENT BETWEEN ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, AND EQUINOX MILL AFFORDABLE, LP FOR A 
PARCEL OF REAL PROPERTY IDENTIFIED AS TAX MAP PARCEL 123-11-02-026 
WHICH IS PART OF THE FORMER EQUINOX MILL SITE LOCATED AT 200 
JACKSON STREET, ANDERSON, SOUTH CAROLINA; AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. 
 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County is the owner of real property bearing Tax Map No. 123-
11-02-026 located at 200 Jackson Street, Anderson, South Carolina and is one parcel of the former 
Equinox Mill Site which is not being sold to Equinox Mill Affordable, LP; 
 
 WHEREAS, Equinox Mill Affordable, LP is in the process of acquiring the other parcels 
of property which were part of the former Equinox Mill Site, i.e. parcels with TMS numbers 123-
12-09-001, 123-11-02-015, 123-11-02-014, 123-11-03-002, 123-12-05-003 and 123-11-02-008; 
 
 WHEREAS, Equinox Mill Affordable, LP desires to lease the parcel bearing Tax Map 
No. 123-11-02-026 in order to facilitate removal of remnants of the former Equinox Mill which 
remain on this parcel; and  
 
  WHEREAS, Anderson County desires to lease this parcel to Equinox Mill Affordable, 
LP and has authority pursuant to Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina to lease, sell, or 
otherwise dispose of real property. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that:  
 
 1. The Lease Agreement, attached as Exhibit A, between Anderson County, South 
Carolina and Equinox Mill Affordable, LP is hereby approved and the Anderson County 
Administrator is authorized to execute the Lease Agreement on behalf of the County. 

 2. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
  
 
 
 
 



 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 
 
 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____  day of __________,  2022. 
 
 

ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns         Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading:       October 18, 2022 
 
Second Reading:  November 1, 2022 
 
Third Reading: __________________ 
 
Public Hearing: __________________ 
 



  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-052 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to 
so include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of_______________, 2022.  
 
 
ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns        Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
                
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading:       October 18, 2022  
 
Second Reading:  November 1, 2022 
 
Third Reading:     __________________ 
 
Public Hearing:     __________________ 
 



A-1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
All that certain piece, parcel or tract of land situated, lying and being in Grove Township, County of 
Greenville, State of South Carolina, on the East side of Augusta Road, as shown on a ALTAL Land Title & 
Topographic Survey dated February 4, 2022, and recorded in Plat Book PL 1438, Page 13, and having the 
following metes and bounds, to-wit: 
 
BEGINNING at the Northwest corner of a 14.78 acre tract conveyed to Margie Smith, recorded in Deed 
Book 1461, Page 576 and shown on Plat Book 6-M, Page 84 in the RMC Office for Greenville County, said 
corner being a found 1-inch crimped iron pipe, said corner being the Northeast corner of the herein 
described tract; 
 
THENCE South 21°31’11” West, along the West line of said 14.78 Smith tract, along the East line of the 
herein described tract, 1,910.82 feet to the North right-of-way line of Ray Road, 50-foot wide, according to 
Plat Book 22-Z, Page 76 recorded in the RMC Office for Greenville County, said point being the Southwest 
corner of said 14.78 acre Smith tract, said point being a 1-inch crimped iron pipe, said point being the 
Southeast corner of the herein described tract; 
 
THENCE the following courses and distances along the North right-of-way line of Ray Road: 
North 71°17’20” West, 190.72 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 79°48’49” West, 6.86 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 77°35’40” West, 199.69 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 78°07’15” West, 256.58 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 81°00’34” West, 85.37 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 85°19’31” West, 721.51 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 05°01’29” East, 8.00 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 85°26’21” West, 115.00 feet to a found 5/8-inch iron rod; 
North 11°22’52” West, 32.94 feet to a found 4x4 fence post, said point being on the East right of way line of 
Augusta Road, said point being the Southwest corner of the herein described tract;  
 
THENCE North 23°35’26” East, 2,029.52 feet, along the East right-of-way line of Augusta Road, to a found 
5/8-inch iron rod with cap, “LS 14808”, said point being a westerly corner of 140.26 acre tract conveyed to 
NWH Properties LP, said point being the Northwest corner of the herein described tract;  
 
THENCE South 75°56’53” East, 1,490.69 feet, along a southern line of said 140.26 acre NWH tract, to the 
said POINT OF BEGINNING, said description containing 67.69 acres (2,948,687 square feet) of land. 
 
Greenville County Tax Map Nos. 0594020102800 and 0594020102900



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of_________, 20__, _________, 20__ and 
_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: _________, 20__ 



ORDINANCE NO. 2022- 053 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO APPROVE THE GRANT OF A FIBER COMPANY RIGHT -OF-
WAY EASEMENT TO WC FIBER, LLC ON PROPERTY OWNED BY ANDERSON 
COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA LOCATED AT 399 SIMMONS FORD ROAD, 
TOWNVILLE, SOUTH CAROLINA (TMS NO. 016-00-01-003); AND OTHER MATTERS 
RELATED THERETO. 
 
 WHEREAS, Anderson County, South Carolina (the “County”), acting by and through its 
County Council is authorized Title 4 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina to lease, sell or 
otherwise dispose of real property owned by the County; 
 
 WHEREAS, the County proposes to grant to WC Fiber, LLC (“WC Fiber”) an easement 
over a portion of its property with TMS No. 016-00-01-003 and located on Simmons Ford Road 
for location of fiber optic cable facilities; and 
 
 WHEREAS, location of fiber optic cable within the rural area of the County is a desirable 
feature for the citizens of Anderson County. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the Anderson County Council in meeting duly 
assembled that: 
 
 1. The Anderson County Council hereby approves the Fiber Company Right -of-Way 
Easement on a portion of tax parcel 016-00-01-003, as shown on Exhibit A attached hereto, for 
purposes of laying, constructing, maintaining, operating, repairing, altering, replacing and/or 
removing fiber optic cable and the necessary cabinets and equipment within the Right-of-Way 
Easement.  The County Administrator is hereby authorized, empowered, and directed to execute, 
acknowledge, and deliver all documents in the name of and or behalf of the County to carry out 
the transaction authorized by this Ordinance. 

 2. Should any part or provision of this Ordinance be deemed unconstitutional or 
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such determination shall not affect the 
remainder of this Ordinance, all of which is hereby deemed separable. 

 3. All Ordinances, Orders, Resolutions, and actions of Anderson County Council 
inconsistent herewith are, to the extent of such inconsistency only, hereby repealed, revoked, and 
rescinded. 
 
 4. This ordinance shall take effect and be in full force upon the Third Reading and 
Enactment by Anderson County Council. 
  



 
 
 

ORDAINED in meeting duly assembled this ____  day of __________,  2022. 
 
 

ATTEST:   
 
 
_____________________________      ______________________________   
Rusty Burns         Tommy Dunn, Chairman 
Anderson County Administrator   Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
_____________________________    
Renee Watts    
Clerk to Council 
               
  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Leon C. Harmon 
Anderson County Attorney  
     
 
 
First Reading:       October 18, 2022 
 
Second Reading:  November 1, 2022 
 
Third Reading:     __________________ 
 
Public Hearing:    __________________ 
 
 



  
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2022-054 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AN AGREEMENT FOR THE DEVELOPMENT 

OF A JOINT COUNTY INDUSTRIAL AND BUSINESS PARK (2010 PARK) OF 
ANDERSON AND GREENVILLE COUNTIES SO AS TO ENLARGE THE PARK; 
AND OTHER MATTERS RELATED THERETO. 

 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 2010-026 enacted October 19, 2010 by Anderson County 
Council, Anderson County entered into an Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 
Business Park (2010 Park) dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, with Greenville County (the 
“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 3(A) of the Agreement, the boundaries of the park created therein 
(the “Park”) may be enlarged pursuant to ordinances of the County Councils of Anderson County and 
Greenville County; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in connection with certain incentives being offered by Greenville County, it is now 
desired that the boundaries of the Park be enlarged to include certain parcels in Greenville County;  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by Anderson County Council that Exhibit A to the 
Agreement is hereby and shall be amended and revised to include property located in Greenville County 
described in the schedule attached to this Ordinance, and, pursuant to Section 3(B) of the Agreement, upon 
adoption by Greenville County of a corresponding ordinance, the Agreement shall be deemed amended to 
so include such property and Exhibit A as so revised, without further action by either county. 
 
 DONE in meeting duly assembled this ____ day of_______________, 20__.  
 
 
 ANDERSON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA 

(SEAL) By:________________________________________ 
  Chairman, Anderson County Council 
 
Attest: 

By:_______________________________ 
 Anderson County Administrator 
 
 
By:_______________________________ 
 Clerk to Anderson County Council 
 
 
 
First Reading: _________, 20__  
Second Reading: _________, 20__  
Third Reading: _________, 20__  
Public Hearing: _________, 20__  



A-1 

Addition to Exhibit A to 
Agreement for the Development of a Joint County Industrial and 

Business Park dated as of December 1, 2010, as amended, 
between Anderson County and Greenville County 

 
 
 
 
 
All of that certain piece, parcel or lot of land situate, lying and being in the County of Greenville, 
State of South Carolina, having a gross area of 2,129,645 square feet or 48.89 acres, more or 
less, and being shown on a plat entitled “ ALTA/NSPS SURVEY FOR WILLIMON BUSINESS 
PARK”, dated April 13, 2022, last revised on April 28, 2022 prepared by 3D Land Surveying, 
Inc., having the following metes and  bounds to-wit: BEGINNING at a 1/2” rebar set situated on 
the northerly 33 feet right of way of Antioch Church Road; being a common corner with the 
property now or formerly of Wagner Properties, LLC; and being 4,035 feet westerly, more or 
less, from the intersection with the westerly right of way limit of Fork Shoals Road; thence 
running with the easterly line of Wagner Properties, LLC  N 12°21'11" W for a distance of 
133.72' to a 5/8” rebar found; being a common corner with the property now or formerly of Jane 
R. Pirkle and Lonnie D. Pirkle; being shown as “Common Area (Detention Pond)” on a plat 
entitled “MICHELAND PLACE PHASE 1” dated May 10, 2004; prepared by Dave Modny PLS 
Lic# 22746, and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County in Plat 
Book 48 V, Page 84 on September 22, 2004; thence running with the easterly line of said 
property N 11°33'22" W for a distance of 230.46' to a ½” rebar set; being a common corner with 
Lot 15 of Micheland Place Phase 1, shown on the plat mentioned above; thence turning and 
running along the rear lot lines for Lots 15 thru Lot 20 of Micheland Place Phase 1, the following 
two (2) courses and distances: 1) N 45°29'52" W for a distance of 181.36' to a to a 5/8” rebar 
bent w/nail found; 2) N 45°29'49" W for a distance of 300.74' to a to a 5/8” rebar bent w/nail 
found; being a common corner with Lot 21 of Micheland Place, Phase 2; shown on a plat entitled 
“MICHELAND PLACE PHASE 2” dated April 12, 2007; prepared by 3D Land Surveying, Inc., 
and recorded in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Greenville County in Plat Book 1038, 
Page 60 on May 10, 2007; thence running along the rear lot lines for Lots 21, 24 thru 30, and the 
Detention Pond Lot, shown on the plat mentioned above, the following ten (10) courses and 
distances: 1)  N 45°30'29" W for a distance of 68.73' to a 5/8” rebar found; 2) N 45°25'47" W for 
a distance of 170.96' to a found ½” rebar found; 3) N 45°29'28" W for a distance of 115.47' to a 
found ½” rebar found; 4) N 45°27'41" W for a distance of 78.56' to a 5/8” rebar bent w/nail 
found; 5) N 45°43'24" W for a distance of 69.97' to a 5/8” rebar found; 6) N 45°22'01" W for a 
distance of 102.39' to a 5/8” rebar found; 7) N 45°29'43" W for a distance of 120.35' to a 1” solid 
rod; 8) S 40°37'41" W for a distance of 95.02' to a 5/8” rebar found; 9) S 40°28'53" W for a 
distance of 165.66' to a 5/8” rebar found; 10) S 39°48'33" W for a distance of 124.02' to a ½” 
open top; being a common corner with the property now or formerly of Carolina Concrete Co, 
Inc.; thence turning and running with the easterly line of said property N 48°36'57" W for a 
distance of 427.06' to a 2” open top; being on the southerly 40 feet right of way limit of 
Perimeter Road; thence tuning and running along said right of way limit the following ten (10) 
courses and distances: 1) N 55°08'58" E for a distance of 219.14' to a 1/2” rebar set; 2) N 
55°06'02" E for a distance of 161.14' to a1/2” rebar set; 3) N 54°49'35" E for a distance of 



A-2 

256.65' to a 1/2” rebar set; 4) N 53°53'33" E for a distance of 47.97' to a 1/2” rebar set; 5) with a 
curve turning to the left with an arc length of 203.41', with a radius of 1408.70', with a chord 
bearing of N 50°56'40" E, with a chord length of 203.23', to a 1/2” rebar set; 6) N 44°11'35" E 
for a distance of 46.78' to a 1/2” rebar set; 7) N 43°12'47" E for a distance of 94.90' to a 1/2” 
rebar set; 8) N 42°17'55" E for a distance of 107.47' to a 1/2” rebar set; 9) N 43°15'00" E for a 
distance of 53.98' to a 1/2” rebar set; 10) N 42°23'47" E for a distance of 38.02' to a point in the 
centerline of Huff Creek; being a common corner with the property now or formerly of Willcoll 
Developments, LLC; thence turning and running along the centerline of Huff Creek the 
following fifty one (51) courses and distances: 1) N 89°06'42" E for a distance of 38.49' to a 
point; 2) N 84°22'50" E for a distance of 43.66' to a point; 3) S 85°33'59" E for a distance of 
60.48' to a point; 4) S 70°14'49" E for a distance of 79.96' to a point; 5) S 63°57'43" E for a 
distance of 31.11' to a point; 6) S 47°31'24" E for a distance of 18.88' to a point; 7) S 36°49'30" 
E for a distance of 33.39' to a point; 8) S 20°27'50" E for a distance of 52.07' to a point; 9) S 
56°46'49" E for a distance of 33.35' to a point; 10) S 89°21'57" E for a distance of 31.69' to a 
point; 11) S 70°11'07" E for a distance of 24.81' to a point; 12) S 26°14'02" E for a distance of 
44.16' to a point; 13) S 39°04'11" E for a distance of 27.18' to a point; 14) S 49°56'49" E for a 
distance of 28.34' to a point; 15) S 49°40'47" E for a distance of 87.20' to a point; 16) S 
47°56'14" E for a distance of 42.23' to a point; 17) S 42°56'02" E for a distance of 45.27' to a 
point; 18) S 36°33'41" E for a distance of 51.04' to a point; 19) S 40°32'36" E for a distance of 
19.58' to a point; 20) S 20°30'56" E for a distance of 41.68' to a point; 21) S 14°18'27" E for a 
distance of 12.80' to a point; 22) S 42°59'44" E for a distance of 27.90' to a point; 23) S 
59°55'30" E for a distance of 32.95' to a point; 24) N 89°59'38" E for a distance of 30.02' to a 
point; 25) S 58°39'19" E for a distance of 24.59' to a point; 26) S 63°02'37" E for a distance of 
38.87' to a point; 27) S 64°25'31" E for a distance of 32.88' to a point; 28) S 71°57'11" E for a 
distance of 35.58' to a point; 29) S 47°26'27" E for a distance of 17.73' to a point; 30) S 
05°54'51" W for a distance of 28.88' to a point; 31) S 31°02'08" W for a distance of 38.54' to a 
point; 32) S 04°37'19" E for a distance of 28.93' to a point; 33) S 36°45'03" E for a distance of 
32.66' to a point; 34) S 59°24'46" E for a distance of 36.26' to a point; 35) S 35°28'27" E for a 
distance of 40.88' to a point; 36) S 60°55'24" E for a distance of 43.50' to a point; 37) S 
62°33'52" E for a distance of 43.28' to a point; 38) S 54°55'37" E for a distance of 49.94' to a 
point; 39) S 46°51'02" E for a distance of 48.94' to a point; 40) S 08°45'47" E for a distance of 
52.51' to a point; 41) S 17°20'06" E for a distance of 31.53' to a point; 42) S 34°44'29" E for a 
distance of 53.79' to a point; 43) S 41°42'45" E for a distance of 44.17' to a point; 44) S 
31°37'06" E for a distance of 42.24' to a point; 45) S 23°48'59" E for a distance of 52.82' to a 
point; 46) S 37°54'16" E for a distance of 26.21' to a point; 47) S 08°33'43" E for a distance of 
21.90' to a point; 48) S 34°37'48" E for a distance of 36.36' to a point; 49) S 56°27'16" E for a 
distance of 15.21' to a point; 50) S 27°37'37" E for a distance of 29.84' to a point; 51) S 
41°02'47" E for a distance of 31.43' to a point; being a common corner with the property now or 
formerly of Duke Power Company; thence turning and leaving the centerline of Huff Creek N 
85°05'37" W for a distance of 111.80' to a ½” rebar set; thence turning and running with the 
westerly line of said property S 04°54'23" W for a distance of 200.00' to a ½” rebar set; thence 
turning S 85°05'37" E for a distance of 217.02' to a point in the centerline of Huff Creek; thence 
turning and running along the centerline of Huff creek the following eight (8) courses and 
distances: 1) S 36°58'36" E for a distance of 14.33' to a point; 2) S 13°03'54" W for a distance of 
57.26' to a point; 3) S 06°17'58" E for a distance of 53.13' to a point; 4) S 03°54'07" W for a 
distance of 51.67' to a point; 5) S 07°35'09" E for a distance of 110.14' to a point; 6) S 07°08'07" 



A-3 

W for a distance of 144.92' to a point; 7) S 00°33'29" W for a distance of 116.34' to a point; 8) S 
00°32'04" W for a distance of 105.65' to a point; being on the northerly 33 feet right of way limit 
of Antioch Church Road; thence turning and running along said right of way limit the following 
two (2) courses and distances: 1) N 82°33'21" W for a distance of 712.35' to a ½” rebar set; 2) N 
82°45'31" W for a distance of 72.69' to THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Tax Map Numbers: 0593030100404 and 0593030100405 
 



 

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA  ) 
      ) 
COUNTY OF ANDERSON    ) 
 
 I, the undersigned Clerk to County Council of Anderson County, South Carolina, do hereby certify 
that attached hereto is a true, accurate and complete copy of an ordinance which was given reading, and 
received majority approval, by the County Council at meetings of_________, 20__, _________, 20__ and 
_________, 20__, at which meetings a quorum of members of County Council were present and voted, and 
an original of which ordinance is filed in the permanent records of the County Council. 
 
 
      _________________________________________ 
      Clerk, Anderson County Council 
 
 
Dated: _________, 20__ 
































































































	Agenda CCM November 1, 2022
	2a Resolution Twin Creeks Lavender Farm
	2b Resolution Flexon USW
	2c Resolution 2022-064 PARD Grant
	2d Proclamation Family Court Awareness
	3a Minutes CCM 92022
	3b Minutes CCM 100422
	5a Ordinance 2022-042 Project Hurricane FILO
	5b Ordinance 2022-043 Project Hurricane MCIP
	5c Ordinance 2022-049 FILO Project Cove
	5d Ordinance 2022-050 MCIP Project Cove
	6a Ordinance 2022-048 Tetramer
	6b Ordinance 2022-051 Lease Agreement Equinox
	6c Ordinance 2022-052 MCIP SRPF/Greenville Park 25
	6d Ordinance 2022-053 R/W Easement WC Fiber
	7a Ordinance 2022-054 MCIP
	8a Resolution 2022-062 Abandonment/Closure Broyles Point Rd
	9 Approval Professional Service Contract
	11a Change Order Band Shell Ampitheater
	11b Bid #23-011 Hurricane Creek Pump Station
	11c Bid #23-013 ASEC Walkway
	12a Appropriation Request SC HS Soccer Coaches Assoc.
	12b Appropriation Request United Way/Westside Community Center



